3

V.

For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!



http://www.adobe.com/go/reader


112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

GOVERNMENTAL BODY: Carroll City Council
DATE OF MEETING: December 18, 2017
TIME OF MEETING: 5:15P.M.
LOCATION OF MEETING: City Hall Council Chambers

www.cityofcarroll.com

AGENDA

I. Pledge of Allegiance
II. Swearing in of Newly Elected Officials
III. Roll Call
Iv. Conéent Agenda
A. Approval of Minutes of the December 11 Meeting
B. Approval of Bills and Claims
C. Licenses and Permits:
None
V. Appointment to Committees, Commissions and Boards
1. Patrick Macke — Planning and Zoning Commission (5 year term to expire 12-31-22)
VI Oral Requests and Communications from the Audience
VII. National Blood Donor Month Proclamation
VIII. Ordinances
None
IX. Resolutions
A. Library/City Hall Project
1. Review answers to questions related to project cost and architectural service based on the
November 27, 2017 City Council meeting
2. Review an update from the Carroll Public Library Foundation
3. Review an updated current preliminary cost model for the City Hall/Library project
4. Consider a resolution to approve a B101- 2007 Standard Form of Agreement Between
Owner and Architect with OPN Architects for construction at the City of Carroll Library
located at 112 E. 5th St. Carroll, IA 51401






XTI
XII.

XIIIL

X1V.
XV.

5. Consider a resolution to approve a B101- 2007 Standard Form of Agreement Between
Owner and Architect with OPN Architects for construction at the City of Carroll City Hall
located at 627 N. Adams St. Carroll, IA 51401
6. Consider approval of a lease with R & R Rental, Inc. for space at 112 E. 5th St. in Carroll
(City Hall)
7. Consider approval of a lease with Badding Construction Company for space at 425
Highway 30 W, Suite 340 in Carroll (Library)
Reports
A. RFP for Municipal Labor Attorney Services
Committee Reports
Monthly Activity Reports
Comments from the Mayor
Comments from the City Council

Adjourn

December/January Meetings:

Library Board of Trustees — December 20, 2017

Board of Adjustment — January 2, 2018

City Council — January 8, 2018

Airport Commission — January 8, 2018

Planning and Zoning Commission — January 10, 2018

Parks, Recreation and Cultural Advisory Board — January 15, 2018
Library Board of Trustees — January 15, 2018

City Council — January 22, 2018

City Council 1* Budget Work Session — Monday, January 29, 2018
City Council 2™ Budget Work Session — Thursday, February 1, 2018
City Council 3* Budget Work Session — Monday, February 5, 2018
City Council 4" Budget Work Session (as needed) — Thursday, February 8, 2018

www.cityofcarroll.com

disabilities, please notify us at least three business days in advance when possible at
712-792-1000, should special accommodations be required.

! The City of Carroll will make every attempt to accommodate the needs of persons with







112 E. 5th Street

MEMO TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJECT:

Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager M«({Q o/
December 14, 2017

Appointment to Committees, Commissions and Boards

We have received an application from Patrick Macke for appointment to the Planning and
Zoning Commission. '

Members to be appointed by Council:

Commission

Planning and Zoning Patrick Macke 5 year term expiring December 31, 2022







12-14-2017 10:41 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 1
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATESzs=z======= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-001704 ACCO POOL/SPA SUPPLIES 242.61 0.00 000000 0/00/00 242.61
*% TOTALS ** 242.61 0.00 242.61
01-001698 ADVANCED LASER TECHNOLOGI TONER CARTRIDGE 59.95 0.00 000000 0/00/00 59.95
** TOTALS ** 59.95 0.00 59.95
01-012650 ALLIANT ENERGY-IES UTILIT GAS BILLS 5,887.83 5,887.83- 110037 12/14/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 5,887.83 5,887.83- 0.00
01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY SUPPLIES 117.98 0.00 000000 0/00/00 117.98
01-002370 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY SUPPLIES 33.87 0.00 000000 0/00/00 33.87
*% TOTALS ** 151.85 0.00 151.85
01-003043 BERNHOLTZ MASONRY REMOVE AIRPORT MARBLE SIGN 144.00 144.00- 110029 12/14/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 144.00 144 .00- 0.00
01-000609 BIERSCHBACH EQUIP & SUPPL SUPPLIES 987.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 987.00
** TOTALS ** 987.00 0.00 987.00
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 16.17 0.00 000000 0/00/00 16.17
01-003515 BOMGAARS PLASTIC SNOW FENCE 56.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 56.96
01-003515 BOMGAARS GRINDING WHEELS 9.93 0.00 000000 0/00/00 9.93
01-003515 BOMGAARS BRINE TRAILER HOSE 83.76 0.00 000000 0/00/00 83.76
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 63.96 0.00 000000 0/00/00 63.96
01-003515 BOMGAARS SUPPLIES 42.27 0.00 000000 0/00/00 42.27
*% TOTALS ** 273.05 0.00 273.05
01-003670 BRIGGS INC OF OMAHA RESTROOM REPAIRS 118.17 0.00 000000 0/00/00 119.17
01-003670 BRIGGS INC OF OMAHA TRANS MAIN A SEIS PLUGS 127.65 0.00 000000 0/00/00 127.65
** TOTALS ** 246.82 0.00 246.82
01-001423 BROWNELLS INC RIFLE GAS RINGS 26.20 0.00 000000 0/00/00 26.90
** TOTALS ** 26.90 0.00 26.90
01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER GENERAIL WORK 675.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 675.00
01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER POLICE/MAGISTRATE 1,026.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 1,026.00
01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 162.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 162.00
01-003693 BRUNER & BRUNER PUBLIC WORKS/ENGINEER 135.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 135.00
** TOTALS ** 1,998.00 0.00 1,998.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 88.92 88.92- 110033 12/14/17 0.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 12.00 12.00- 110033 12/14/17 0.00
01-004138 CAPITAL SANITARY SUPPLY CLEANING SUPPLIES 161.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 161.00

** TOTALS ** 261.92 100.92- 161.00






12-14-2017 10:41 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 2
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN I TEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= s==z====TTEM DATES=z========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
VENDOR -~~~ VENDCOR NAME ~----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-025028 CAROL SCHOEPPNER SECRETARY CONTRACT 350.00 350.00- 110042 12/14/17 0.00
*% TOTALS *x* 350.00 350.00- 0.00
01-004132 CARROLL AVIATION INC. CONTRACT 6,450.00 6,450.00- 110032 12/14/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 6,450.00 6,450.00- 0.00
01-024005 CARROLL EYE CARE ASSOC. SAFETY GLASSES - PARCHER 135.75 0.00 000000 0/00/00 135.75
*%x TOTALS ** 135.75 0.00 135.75
01-004200 CARROLL LUMBER SUPPLIES 60.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 60.00
*%* TOTALS ** 60.00 0.00 60.00
01-002977 CARROLL REFUSE SERVICE NOVEMBER GARBAGE 57.00 57.00- 110025 12/14/17 0.00
01-002977 CARROLIL, REFUSE SERVICE NOV. TRASH COLLECTIONS 12,161.06 12,161.06- 109935 12/08/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 12,218.06 12,218.06- 0.00
01-004237 CARROLL VETERINARY CLINIC JAN DOG CARE CONTRACT 650.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 650.00
** TOTALS ** 650.00 0.00 650.00
01-003058 CENTRAL IOWA READY MIX MUDJACKING 966.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 966.00
*%* TOTALS ** 966.00 0.00 266.00
01-002998 CENTURYLINK TELEPHONE BACK-UP LINE 56.76 56.76- 110027 12/14/17 0.00
01-002998 CENTURYLINK TELEPHONE - BACKUP LINE 107.71 107.71- 110028 12/14/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 164.47 164.47- 0.00
01-004836 COMMUNITY OIL CO. INC. EQUIPMENT FUEL 1,311.60 1,311.60- 110034 12/14/17 0.00
*%* TOTALS ** 1,311.60 1,311.60- 0.00
01-007866 CONCRETE CREATORS LLC COURT STREET PLAZA ALLEY 8,500.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 8,500.00
*% TOTALS ** 8,500.00 0.00 8,500.00
01-001595 COUNSEL OFFICE & DOCUMENT COPIER CONTRACT 187.36 0.00 000000 0/00/00 187.36
** TOTALS *¥* 187.36 0.00 187.36
01-002677 CTK GROUP INTERVIEW CLASS - CHRISTIAN 395.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 395.00
01-002677 CTK GROUP INTERVIEW CLASS - AMDOR 395.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 395.00
** TOTALS ** 790.00 0.00 790.00
01-006810 ECOWATER SYSTEMS COOLER RENT AND WATER 101.96 101.96- 110035 12/14/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 101.96 101.96- 0.00

01-004185 EMPLOYMENT RESOURCES NOV. CITY HALL CLEANING 978.40 0.00 000000 0/00/00 978.40






12-14-2017

VENDOR SET:

REPORTING:

PATD ITEMS
PARTIALLY
UNPAID ITE

10:41 AM
01 City of Carroll
PATD, UNPAID, PARTIAL

======PAYMENT DATES=======
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

DATES :
ITEMS DATES:
MS DATES :

DESCRIPTION

==1TEM DATES
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

======POSTING DATES
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

01-002644

01-008027
01-008027

01-008050

01-008212

01-003095

01-000587

01-009535

01-001992

01-002172

01-000480

01-011996

01-012552

01-012604
01-012604

01-002994

ETS CORPORATION

FAREWAY STORES
FAREWAY STORES

FASTENAL COMPANY

FELDMANN & CO. CPA'S PC

FOSTER GRANDPARENTS

GARQOLD SORENSEN

GENERAL RENTAL

GOLF SERVICES LLC

GPM

HAT.BUR HARDWARE

IABO

INDUSTRIAL BEARING SUPP.

CC PROCESSING FEES

* %

SUPPLIES RETURNED
OFFICE SUPPLIES

* %

SUPPLIES

* *

TOTALS

TOTALS

TOTALS

TOTALS

1/3 FY 17 AUDIT SERVICES

* %

TOTALS

1/2 FY 18 FUNDING REQUEST

* %

STEEL TOED BOOTS

* %

SHEAR BOLTS HOLE SAW
* %

2017 CLUBHOUSE MANAGER

* %

LAB SUPPLIES

* %k

DIG UP WATER LINE

* %

IRC-NEC CODE CONFERENCE

* %

BELTS

* %

TOTALS

TOTALS

TOTALS

FINAL

TOTALS

TOTALS

TOTALS

TOTALS

TOTALS

IOWA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOC BELLINGHAUSEN OFFICE TRAINING
IOWA PEACE OFFICERS ASSOC OFFICE TRAINING KLEVER

* %

IOWA STATE POLICE ASSOCIA MEMBERSHIP DUES

TOTALS

* %

* %

* d

* %

* %

* %

* %

* %

* %

* J

* %

* %

* %

GROSS AMT PAYMENTS
978.40 0.00
293.48 293.48-
293.48 293.48-

2.19- 0.00
8.19 0.00
6.00 0.00
216.18 0.00
216.18 0.00
4,500.00 0.00
4,500.00 0.00
1,500.00 0.00
1,500.00 0.00
46.21 46.21-
46.21 46.21-
38.50 0.00
38.50 0.00
2,734.62 0.00
2,734.62 0.00
2,655.00 0.00
2,655.00 0.00
683.90 683.90-
683.90 683.90-
130.00 0.00
130.00 0.00
13.27 0.00
13.27 0.00
50.00 0.00
50.00 0.00
100.00 0.00
600.00 0.00

PAGE: 3
BANK: AP

CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
978.40

000000 12/11/17 0.00
0.00

000000 0/00/00 2.19-
000000 0/00/00 8.19
6.00

000000 0/00/00 216.18
216.18

000000 0/00/00 4,500.00
4,500.00

000000 0/00/00 1,500.00
1,500.00

110022 12/14/17 0.00
0.00

000000 0/00/00 38.50
38.50

000000 0/00/00 2,734.62
2,734.62

000000 0/00/00 2,655.00
2,655.00

110021 12/14/17 0.00
0.00

000000 ©0/00/00 130.00
130.00

000000 ©0/00/00 13.27
13.27

000000 0/00/00 50.00
000000 0/00/00 50.00
100.00

000000 0/00/00 600.00






12-14-2017 10:41 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABRLE PAGE: 4
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES======= =======]TEM DATES=====z=z=== ======POSTING DATES=z======
PAID ITEMS DATES 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
VENDOR ---- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
*% TOTALS ** 600.00 0.00 600.00
01-012663 IOWA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMEN ELEVATOR INSPECTION/PERMIT 175.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 175.00
*% TOTALS ** 175.00 0.00 175.00
01-002453 JASON MATTHEW LAMBERTZ PRODUCTION COSTS 570.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 570.00
*% TOTALS ** 570.00 0.00 570.00
01-013917 JEO CONSULTING GROUP INC. THIRD ST RESURFACING 7,881.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 7,881.00
*% TQTALS ** 7,881.00 0.00 7,881.00
01-003097 JP FLOORING FLOOR TILE 338.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 338.50
*% TOTALS ** 338.50 0.00 338.50
01-000994 KABEL BUSINESS SERVICES - NOV HRA CHECKS 5,937.92 5,937.92- 000000 12/08/17 0.00
*% TQOTALS ** 5,937.92 5,937.92- 0.00
01-014940 KITT PLBG. AND HTG. INC. BATHROOM REPAIRS 203.00 203.00- 110039 12/14/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 203.00 203.00- ‘ 0.00
01-010827 LEON HENDRICKS NOV. CONTRACT METER READER 1,798.94 1,798.94- 109936 12/08/17 0.00
*% TOTALS *+* 1,798.94 1,798.94- 0.00
01-001947 MATHESON TRI-GAS INC. TORCH GAS 118.22 0.00 000000 0/00/00 118.22
*% TOTALS ** 118.22 0.00 118.22
01-002993 MC CLURE ENGINEERING CO. ENGINEERING CIP FUNDING 1,110.00 1,110.00- 110026 12/14/17 0.00
01-002993 MC CLURE ENGINEERING CO. ENGINEERING ENTRANCE DRIVE 2,876.50 2,876.50- 110026 12/14/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 3,986.50 3,986.50- 0.00
01-017220 MC FARLAND CLINIC PC PHYSICAL - NICHOLS 333.50 0.00 000000 0/00/00 333.50
%% TOTALS ** 333.50 0.00 333.50
01-012680 MID AMERICAN ENERGY ELECTRIC BILLS 22,261.44 22,261.44- 110038 12/14/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 22,261.44 22,261.44- 0.00
01-017564 MID-IOWA SALES INC. FLOOR BROOMS 90.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 90.00
*% TOTALS *x* 90.00 0.00 90.00
01-017585 MIDWEST WHOLESALE BUILDING REPATRS 90.23 90.23- 110040 12/14/17 0.00
01-017585 MIDWEST WHOLESALE BUILDING REPAIRS 8.63 8.63- 110040 12/14/17 0.00
01-017585 MIDWEST WHOLESALE BRACKETS /WOOD 22.72 0.00 000000 0/00/00 22.72
*% TOTALS ** 121.58 98.86- 22.72






12-14-2017 10:41 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PAGE: 5
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATESz==z==z==== ==z=====]TEM DATES========= ======POSTING DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES : 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
UNPATD ITEMS DATES : 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
VENDOR ~--- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---
01-003020 MONERIS SOLUTIONS INC. CC PROCESSING FEES 47.39 47.39- 000000 12/11/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 47.39 47.39-~ 0.00
01-003168 NAT 4KE LAWN AND LANDSCAP STREETSCAPE PHASE 8 3,298.04 0.00 000000 0/00/00 3,298.04
=% TOTALS ** 3,298.04 0.00 3,298.04
01-003021 NBX MERCHANT SERVICES COR EFT & CC FEES 241.45 241.45- 000000 12/11/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 241.45 241.45- 0.00
01-003170 NICOLE COCHRAN KID'S NIGHT OUT REFUND 10.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 10.00
*% TOTALS ** 10.00 0.00 10.00
01-020330 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 273.94 0.00 000000 0/00/00 273.94
01-020330 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS AIR FILTERS 15.51 0.00 000000 0/00/00 15.51
*% TOTALS ** 289.45 0.00 289.45
01-020326 OPTIONS INK CAR RENTAIL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 31.05 31.05- 110041 12/14/17 0.00
01-020326 OPTIONS INK PAPER AND INK CARTRIDGE 45.20 0.00 000000 0/00/00 45.20
01-020326 OPTIONS INK FREIGHT SAMPLES 19.38 0.00 000000 0/00/00 19.38
*% TOTALS ** 95.63 31.05- 64.58
01-001949 PERFORMANCE TIRE & SERVIC REPAIR PARTS 129.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 129.00
*% TOTALS ** 129.00 0.00 129.00
01-003169 PHYLLIS SCHWEERS MEMBERSHIP REFUND 11.81 0.00 000000 0/00/00 11.81
*% TOTALS ** 11.81 0.00 11.81
01-001490 PITNEY BOWES/PURCHASE POW POSTAGE 2,000.00 2,000.00- 109934 12/08/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 2,000.00 2,000.00- 0.00
01-021860 PRESTO-X-COMPANY PEST CONTROL REC CENTER 55.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 55.00
*% TOTALS ** 55.00 0.00 55.00
01-009870 RACCOON VALLEY ELECTRIC C NOVEMBER ELECTRIC SERVICE 1,231.58 1,231.58- 110036 12/14/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 1,231.58 1,231.58- 0.00
01-023640 RAY'S REFUSE SERVICE NOV TRASH COLLECTIONS 34,407.25 34,407.25- 109937 12/08/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 34,407.25 34,407.25- 0.00
01-023815 REGION XII COG NOV. TAXI PROGRAM DONATIONS 3,210.00 3,210.00- 109938 12/08/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 3,210.00 3,210.00- 0.00
01-023828 RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER 1/2 FY 18 FUNDING REQUEST 4,750.00 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,750.00

*% TOTALS *=* 4,750.00 0.00 4,750.00






12-14-2017 10:41 AM

VENDOR SET: 01
REPORTING:

PATID ITEMS DATES :

PARTIALLY

City of Carroll
PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL

ITEMS DATES:

UNPAID ITEMS DATES

12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

U N P A
I R

=

T 8
TEM
SUMMARY
=======]TEM DATES=========
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

DESCRIPTION

GROSS AMT

01-003024

01-004178

01-025606

01-025880

01-025935

01-001739

01-026427

01-027060

01-002437
01-002437

01-028168

01-002449

01-028435
01-028435
01-028435

01-028814
01-028814

SHARP FUNERAL HOME

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT CO

SOPPE CHIROPRACTIC CLINIC

STONE PRINTING CO.

SUBWAY

SYN-TECH SYSTEMS INC.

TERRACON CONSULTANTS INC

TREASURER OF IOWA

UNIFIED CONTRACTING SERVI
UNIFIED CONTRACTING SERVI

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

UNITYPOINT CLINIC-OCCUPAT

UTILITY EQUIPMENT COMPANY
UTILITY EQUIPMENT COMPANY
UTILITY EQUIPMENT COMPANY

VAN METER COMPANY, THE
VAN METER COMPANY, THE

CEMETERY SPACES OVERPAYMENT

** TOTALS
TIRE DISPOSAL

*%* TOTALS
RANDOM DRUG TESTING

*%* TOTALS
LAMINATING

** TOTALS

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
** TOTALS

TECH SUPPORT/FUEL MASTER
*%* TOTALS

SOIL AND CONCRETE TESTING
** TOTALS

11/16-11/30/17 SALES TAX
** TOTALS

FUEL SYSTEM CARD READER
FUEL SYSTEM CARD READER
** TOTALS

FREIGHT W/E 12/2/2017
** TOTALS

RANDOM DRUG TESTING
*% TOTALS

REPATIR PARTS RETURNED
OPERATING SUPPLIES
OPERATING SUPPLIES

*%* TOTALS

FUSES
ELECTRICAL CONNECTOR
** TOTALS

* %

* %

* %

* %k

* *

* %

* %

* %

* %

*

* %

* %

* %

2,510.00
2,510.00

237.00
237.00

40.00
40.00

45.34
45.34

550.00
550.00

4,157.25
4,157.25

9,933.00
9,933.00

355.09
35.35
390.44

79.63
79.63

74 .00
74 .00

107.30-

907.27

246.30
1,046.27

153.64
57.54
211.18

PAGE : 6
BANK: AP

======POSTING DATES=======
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

0.00 000000 0/00/00 2,510.00

0.00 2,510.00

0.00 000000 0/00/00 237.00

0.00 237.00

0.00 000000 0/00/00 £0.00

0.00 40.00

0.00 000000 0/00/00 2.01

0.00 2.01

0.00 000000 0/00/00 45.34

0.00 45.34

550.00- 110023 12/14/17 0.00

550.00- 0.00

4,157.25- 110042 12/14/17 0.00

4,157.25- 0.00

9,933.00- 000000 12/14/17 0.00

9,933.00- 0.00

355.09- 110024 12/14/17 0.00

35.35- 110024 12/14/17 0.00

390.44- 0.00

79.63- 109939 12/08/17 0.00

79.63- 0.00

0.00 000000 0/00/00 74.00

0.00 74.00

0.00 000000 0/00/00 107.30-

0.00 000000 0/00/00 907.27

0.00 000000 0/00/00 246.30

0.00 1,046.27

0.00 000000 0/00/00 153 .64

0.00 000000 0/00/00 57.54

0.00 211.18






12-14-2017 10:41 AM ACCOUNTS PAYABRBLE PAGE: 7

VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll OPEN ITEM REPORT BANK: AP

REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL SUMMARY

======PAYMENT DATES=z==z=z===== z=======]TEM DATESzzz====== ======POSTING DATES=======

PAID ITEMS DATES : 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

UNPAID ITEMS DATES : 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

VENDOR --~- VENDOR NAME ----- DESCRIPTION GROSS AMT PAYMENTS CHECK# CHECK DT ----BALANCE---

01-003171 VENTEICHER ELECTRIC INC, ENTRANCE LIGHTING PROJECT 23,000.00 23,000.00- 110030 12/14/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 23,000.00 23,000.00~ 0.00

01-003377 WELLMARK BLUE CROSS/BLUE JAN HEALTH INS. PREMIUMS 38,708.41 38,708.41- 110031 12/14/17 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 38,708.41 38,708.41- 0.00

01-030355 WITTROCK MOTOR CO. NOVEMBER CAR RENTAL 375.00 375.00- 110044 12/14/17 0.00
** TOTALS ** 375.00 375.00- 0.00

01-001303 ZIMMER & FRANCESCON INC. OPERATING SUPPLIES 4,824.067 0.00 000000 0/00/00 4,824.67
** TOTALS ** 4,824.67 0.00 4,824.67

* Payroll Expense 0.00






12-14-2017 10:41 AM A C
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll o P
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL

UNT P A
I7T R

23l

S
EM
SUMMARY
======PAYMENT DATES=======
PAID ITEMS DATES 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES

=======1TEM DATES=========
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

REPORT TOTALS

PAGE:
BANK: AP

======POSTING DATES=======
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

GROSS PAYMENTS BALANCE
PAID ITEMS 180,401.54 180,401.54CR 0.00
PARTIALLY PAID 0.00 0.00 0.00
UNPAID ITEMS 56,035.55 0.00 56,035.55
VOID ITEMS 0.00 0.00 0.00
*% TOTALS ** 236,437.09 180,401.54CR 56,035.55
UNPATID RECAP

UNPAID INVOICE TOTALS 56,145.04

UNPAID DEBIT MEMO TOTALS 0.00

UNAPPLIED CREDIT MEMO TOTALS 109.49CR

*% UNPAID TOTALS **

56,035.55






12-14-2017 10:41 AM
VENDOR SET: 01 City of Carroll
REPORTING: PAID, UNPAID, PARTIAL

PAID ITEMS DATES : 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
PARTIALLY ITEMS DATES: 12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
UNPAID ITEMS DATES :

FUND TOTALS

001 GENERAL FUND

010 HOTEL/MOTEL TAX

110 ROAD USE TAX FUND

303 C.P. - AIRPORT

304 C.P. STREETS

309 C.P. - CORRIDOR OF COMM.
500 PERPETUAL: CARE FUND

600 WATER UTILITY FUND

602 WATER UTILITY CAP. IMP.
610 SEWER UTILITY FUND

620 STORM WATER UTILITY
850 MEDICAL INSURANCE FUND

GRAND TOTAL

UN P A
I R

(5l
o=

T S
TEM
SUMMARY
z==z=z==] TEM DATES==s=======
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

102,718.70
499.50
10,820.82
30,033.75
7,881.00
3,298.04
1,250.00
16,241.02
127.65
18,366.28
554.00
44,646.33

236,437.09

======POSTING DATES=======
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017
12/08/2017 THRU 12/14/2017

PAGE:
BANK: AP







112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

MEMO TO:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager W’VJ

DATE: December 14, 2017

SUBJECT: Committee Reports

LA W

© L Na

Library Board (meets 3" or 4" Monday of month) —

Board of Adjustment (meets 1% Monday of month) —

Planning and Zoning Commission (meets 2" Wednesday of month) —

Carroll Airport Commission (meets 2" Monday of month) —

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Advisory Board (meets 3™ Monday of January, March,

May, July, September and November) —

Carroll County Solid Waste Management Commission (meets 2™ Tuesday of month) — December 12, 2017
Historical Preservation Commission (no regular meeting dates) —

Safety Committee (no regular meeting dates) —

Civil Service Commission (as needed) —






CARROLL COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT COMMISSION
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING--UNOFFICIAL MINUTES

December 12, 2017

1. The meeting was called to order at 8:00 a.m. by Chairman Marty Danzer, in the office of the Carroll County Recycling Center. Others in attendance were
Harvey Dales, City of Manning; Mike Schwabe, City of Breda; and Dr. Eric Jensen, City of Carroll. Also attending were Mary Wittry, Director and Dan

Halbur, Office Manager.
2. Agenda: Dales made the motion to approve the agenda and Schwabe seconded. Motion carried, all voting aye.

3. Dales made the motion and Dr. Jensen seconded to approve the minutes of the Executive Board Meetings on November 14 and November 29, 2017.
Motion carried, all voting aye.

4. Dales reviewed the Bills Payable--see attached. Wittry went over the following: Bomgaars--$624.45—pallet of windshield washer fluid, safety vests, and
supplies; Clark Equipment--$1801.20—snowblade; Foth--$32615.71—sampling, consulting, and single stream study; King Construction--$98221.17—final
pay application for leachate force main project; Kolbeck --$2872.75—tree and pallet grinding; Mid-lowa Insurance--$19122.00--2018 property insurance;

Olsen, Muhlbauer & Co --$14190.00—audit and cash basis accrual report; Rupiper Grinding--$800.00—compost grinding. Dales made the motion and
Schwabe seconded to approve the bills as presented. Motion carried, all voting aye.

5. Halbur presented the financial report --see attached. Schwabe made the motion and Dr. Jensen seconded to approve the financial report as presented.
Motion carried, all voting aye.

6. Wittry discussed the single stream feasibility report. No action taken.

7. Wittry presented the proposed amended budget for 2017-2018. Schwabe made the motion and Dales seconded to approve the proposed amended budget
for 2017-2018 as presented. Motion carried, all voting aye.

8.  Wittry presented the proposed budget for 2018-2019. Dales made the motion and Schwabe seconded to approve the proposed budget for 2018-2019 with
an increase of the tipping fee to $45 per ton. Motion carried, all voting aye.

9. Wittry discussed a partnering opportunity with the city of Manning on a grant that would apply to the greenhouse gas reduction component of
Environmental Management System program. No action taken.

10. Landfill update: Wittry informed the board of the dry and windy conditions.
11.  Recycling update: Prices held steady from last month and products continue to move,

12. Next meeting date: Executive Board on January 17, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. in the Carroll County Courthouse basement
Annual Meeting on January 17, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. in the Carroll County Courthouse basement

13. Other: None

14. Schwabe made the motion and Dales seconded to adjourn the meeting at 9:55 a.m. Motion carried, all voting aye.

Respectiully submitted by:

Dan Halbur







COUNCIL MEETING
DECEMBER 11, 2017
(Please note these are draft minutes and may be amended by Council before final approval.)

The Carroll City Council met in regular session on this date at 5:15 p.m. at the Council
Chamber of the Farner Government Building. Members present: Misty Boes, Jerry Fleshner, Clay
Haley, Mike Kots, and Carolyn Siemann. Absent: LaVern Dirkx. Mayor Eric Jensen presided and
City Attorney Dave Bruner was in attendance.

R e

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the City Council. No Council action taken.
*khk Kk Kk ik
It was moved Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve the minutes of the November 27, 2017
council meeting as written. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.
E R I S
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kaots, to approve the bills and claims in the amount of
$534,657.82. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.
R S i S b
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to authorize the Mayor to execute the Order
accepting the Settlement Agreement from Hy-Vee for a violation of the State’s tobacco law. On roll
call, all present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.

EE S S e S

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, approve the 2018 Fire Department Officers as

follows:
Fire Chief Greg Schreck
Assistant Chief Bob Shields
Captains Mark Werner and Dan Hannasch
Lieutenants Jeff Cullen and Josh Hamilton
Training Officer B.J. Schreck

On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.

* Kk k* Kk kK%

It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kots, to approve the following appointments to

Committees, Commissions and Boards:

Appointment by Mayor with Council Approval






1. Mary Baumhover — Historical Preservation Commission (3 year term to
expire 12-31-20)
2. Barbara Hackfort — Historical Preservation Commission (3 year term to
expire 12-31-20)
Appointment by Council

1. Aaron Juergens — Board of Adjustment (5 year term to expire 12-31-22)
2. Gene Vincent — Airport Commission (6 year term to expire 12-31-23)
3. Eric Jensen — Carroll City/County Communications Commission (1 year
term to expire 12-31-18)
4. Mike Pogge-Weaver — Carroll City/County Communications Commission
(1 year term to expire 12-31-18)
On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.

* k kX kK %

There were no oral requests or communications from the audience.
* ok ok ok ok kK
Carroll High School students Kayd Nissen, Tyler Comstock and Tyler Tunning were
recognized for their fundraising efforts for the Carroll Police Department’s K-9 Program to
purchase K-9 Officer Eudoris. No Council action taken.
* ok ok ok ok kk
The City of Carroll, JEO Consulting Group and Tri-State Paving, Inc. were presented the
2017 APAI Municipal Asphalt Paving Program Award for the High Ridge Road and Third Street
Resurfacing Projects. No Council action taken.
* ok ok k ok kk
Sarah Foley, Carroll Chamber of Commerce Program Director, and Steve Blackburn, 2018
Chamber of Commerce Board President, presented a FY 2019 funding request in the amount of
$34,500 from hotel/motel tax funds for a tourism marketing campaign. No Council action taken.
Shannon Landauer, Carroll Area Development Corporation (CADC) Executive Director,
presented a FY 2019 funding request in the amount of $72,250 for CADC. No Council action taken.
* ok k k kK K
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Fleshner, to accept the public improvements in the
Northridge Fourth Subdivision Phase Three for future maintenance and repair subject to the
provisions of the maintenance bonds. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: Drikx. Motion

carried.

R I





An ordinance establishing street grades on 10" Street, Woodland Drive, Northridge Drive
and Roman Road was introduced by Council Member Fleshner.
It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to waive all three readings of said ordinance.
On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.
It was moved by Fleshner, seconded by Haley, to approve said Ordinance No. 1711. On roll
call, all present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.
* ok k k kK K
It was moved by Kots, seconded by Haley, to postpone for three months the discussion of
Park Regulations (Park Hours) for three months. Jeff Cayler, Carroll resident, addressed Council on
this issue. On roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.
* ok ok ok kK k
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Kaots, to approve Resolution No. 1781, Covering Street
Lighting Changes by adding a street light at the intersection of Main Street and Anthony Street. On
roll call, all present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.
* ok ok ok ok kK
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Boes, to approve Resolution No. 1782, Changing the
December 26, 2017, regular Council Meeting to December 18, 2017. On roll call, all present voted
aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.
* ok ok ok ok kk
It was moved by Kots, seconded by Haley, to allow city staff and volunteers to apply for
grants and seek donations for a Miracle League Baseball Field in Carroll. John Heim, Joel
Lundstrom, Pat Tigges and Alie Tigges addressed Council on this issue. On roll call, all present
voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.
* ok ok k ok kk
It was moved by Haley, seconded by Fleshner, to adjourn at 6:34 p.m. On roll call, all

present voted aye. Absent: Dirkx. Motion carried.

Eric P. Jensen, Mayor
ATTEST:

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk






112 E. 5th Street

MEMO TO:
FROM:
DATE:
SUBJECT:

Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712} 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members

Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager ﬂkﬁu}

December 14, 2017

Library/City Hall Project

Review answers to questions related to project cost and architectural
service based on the November 27, 2017 City Council meeting
Review an update from the Carroll Public Library Foundation
Review an updated current preliminary cost model for the City
Hall/Library project

Consider a resolution to approve a B101- 2007 Standard Form of
Agreement Between Owner and Architect with OPN Architects for
construction at the City of Carroll Library located at 112 E. 5th St.
Carroll, IA 51401

Consider a resolution to approve a B101- 2007 Standard Form of
Agreement Between Owner and Architect with OPN Architects for
construction at the City of Carroll City Hall located at 627 N.
Adams St. Carroll, TA 51401

Consider approval of a lease with R & R Rental, Inc. for space at
112 E 5% St in Carroll (City Hall)

Consider approval of a lease with Badding Construction Company
for space at 425 Highway 30 W, Suite 340 in Carroll (Library)

The Library/City Hall project was discussed at the November 27, 2017 City Council meeting.
Ultimately the Council tabled consideration so additional information could be obtained. To
address the questions that were raised the following items are attached to this memo:

e A handout with answers to questions related to overall project cost and
architectural service from the November 27, 2017 City Council meeting.

e A letter from the Carroll Public Library Foundation that outlines their cash on
hand for this project, total pledges, and timeline that pledges will be fulfilled.

e An updated preliminary cost model for the City Hall/Library project that shows
the project’s total range.






Contract and Fee Proposal with OPN Architects

With the ability to rent temporary space during building construction, the proposed contract
and fee proposal from OPN Architects is based on simultaneously completing work for both
the Library and City Hall. The anticipated start time for the projects would be August 2018.
The following is an outline of fees from the contract:

Library City Hall Total
Design Phase $289,746 $128,650 $418,396
Programing Review | $9,800 $3,200 $13,000
Construction Phase $108,288 $53,482 $161,770
Reimbursable $5,500-$6,500 $4,000-$5,000 $9,500-$11,500
Total $413,334 - $414,334 | $189,332 - $190,332 | $602,666 - $604,666

The range of $602,666 - $604,666 is the total fees that will be paid to OPN Architects and
their sub-consultants, If the Council finds these fees acceptable and approves constructing the
project simultaneously, then they are asked to approve the contract and fee proposals.
Attached to this memo are two contracts (AIA B101- 2007 Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Architect) for the project. The first is for the work at the Library and the
second is for the City Hall. The contracts have been reviewed and approved to form by City
Attorney Bruner.

Temporary Leases

Based on the recommendation of the Library/City Hall Steering Committee, staff has
negotiated leases with R & R Rental for property at 515 N Carroll St (part of the former DOT
licensing station) for City Hall and Badding Construction for property at 425 Highway 30 W
(part of the former Wal-Mart site, west side of the building adjacent to Serendipity Studio) for
the Carroll Public Library. The following outlines the size and rent costs of the two sites:

City Hall Lease Total Sq Ft | 12-month | Cost/SqFt | If needed,.additional
lease cost monthly lease cost
515 N Carroll St 3,722 sqft | $36,260.00 | $9.74 $2,559.67

Owner: R&R Rental

City would be responsible for electrical, gas, water, sewer, and trash. Included in the rent is
property taxes, building insurance, and common area maintenance which includes snow removal,
lawn care, maintenance of parking lot, sidewalk, exterior building fagade, roof, and mechanical

equipment,

Library Lease Total Sq Ft | 18-month | Cost/Sq Ft | If needed, additional
lease cost monthly lease cost

425 Highway 30 W 8,401sqft | $85,050.00 | $6.75 $4,725.00

Badding Construction

City would be responsible for electrical, gas, and trash. Included in the rent is property taxes,
building insurance, watet/sewer usage and common area maintenance which includes snow removal,
lawn care, maintenance of parking lot, sidewalk, exterior building fagade, roof, and mechanical

equipment.






Attached you will find copies of the proposed leases. The leases have been reviewed and
approved to form by City Attorney Bruner.

Current preliminary cost model from OPN Architects

Based on direction of City Staff, OPN Architects provided a preliminary cost model for the
November 27 meeting that showed what represented the high end of the expected costs for
the project. Based on feedback at that meeting, OPN has submitted a revised preliminary cost
model showing the overall project range like they have in the past.

This preliminary cost model assumes that construction will be completed simultaneously for
both the Library and City Hall. The overall cost model shows the total construction cost at
$5,192,526; which still includes the higher 15% Design/Bid/Construction Contingency. This
amount is what would be expected to be paid to a contractor at this point in time in the design
process. As design work progresses, the total construction cost will continue to be refined,
especially related to the final project contingency amount.

The overall project cost with professional fees, furnishings, and miscellaneous costs is
currently projected to be between $6,546,551 and $6,807,124. Work by city staff is still
needed to secure a quote to move City Hall.

Update from the Carroll Public Library Foundation

Included with this memo is an update from the Carroll Public Library Foundation. The letter
includes the total cash on hand for the project, total pledges, and timeline that pledges will be
fulfilled. Council should review and discuss the attached letter.

RECOMMENDATION: Mayor and City Council is asked to take the following actions for
the Library/City Hall project:

1. Consider a resolution to approve a B101- 2007 Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Architect with OPN Architects for construction at the
City of Carroll Library located at 112 E. 5th St. Carroll, IA 51401

2. Consider a resolution to approve a B101- 2007 Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Architect with OPN Architects for construction at the
City of Carroll City Hall located at 627 N Adams St Carroll, IA 51401

3. Consider approval of a lease with R & R Rental, Inc. for space at 112 East 5th
St in Carroll (City Hall)

4. Consider approval of a lease with Badding Construction Company for space at
425 Highway 30 W, Suite 340 in Carroll (Library)






Answers to questions related to project cost and architectural services from the November 27, 2017
meeting. Developed by City Staff in consultation with OPN Architects.

Q: In December of 2016, the plan was to complete work at the CSB site for City Hall, have City Hall
move, then complete work on the Library. Why not stick to the original plan for completing
work on the Bank first and then complete the work for the Library after City Hall moves?

A: The scope of the feasibility study asked to consider both buildings independently. At that time,
options around move phasing or temporary space were unknown. This was something that the
City Staff brought as an option for OPN to comment on after completion of the scope of the
feasibility study. After reviewing this option, it appears to be viable and offers possible flexibility
for schedule and cost.

Q: What additional costs could the City expect to incur by moving from a separate construction
projects to a simultaneous construction project? Why would the City move to a one phase
project if it will cost us money?

A: Areas of cost that the City would incur centers around temporary lease space and some
additional moving costs. That said, the potential to save money due to estimated escalation for
the library project should it remain in two phases, along with some value that the contractor
may see in full site access, not only offset the cost of temporary space, but could save money
overall. Running these projects concurrent also allows joint evaluation of budgets throughout
design and bidding phases, where staggered projects removes this opportunity.

The September 6, 2017 memo for the RFP to lease building(s) for the Library/City Hall Project
stated: “Since OPN included inflationary cost increases for the Library renovations the idea
would be that the savings from moving the project up could be used to pay for leased space(s) in
the community.” During the discussion on the RFP on September 11, 2017 Mike Pogge-Weaver
stated “just the inflationary increase was about a hundred to a hundred fifty thousand.” The
following summarizes the expected moving cost, lease costs, and reduced escalation cost when
comparing separate construction to simultaneous construction.

Separate Construction Simultaneous Construction

Temporary Lease Space S 0 $ 121,310
Reduce Escalation on Library 4% S 0 (S 146,543)
Moving Cost 2 moves for Library S 0 S 44,625
Rearranging Library during phased cons’t S 30,000 (est.) S 0

City Hall Move(s) S 12,500 (est.) S 25,000 (est.)
Total Cost S 42,500 S 44,392

Q: Why is an optional programming review being considered? Was that not completed with the
Final Renderings and Floor Plan that were approved by the City Council on May 22"? Doesn’t
the open concept provide the flexibility needed into the future making the program review
pointless?

A: Programming was not included as part of the original feasibility study scope for either the
Library or City Hall. To complete the concept phase as directed, OPN evaluated prior program
documents that had been completed and had a single meeting to review the original program






done by Himmel Wilson in 2014. OPN offered comments and review of that program at that
point in time. A full program review would provide specific input on space use and
requirements for both projects. While an open concept does provide flexibility for the future, it
does not address specific space needs or specifics of collections (e.g. linear footage required of
cabinetry, shelving, etc. in city hall offices or library staff/collection spaces).

Additionally, the contract approved by the City Council on March 13 for the floor plan and
renderings stated that it was for referendum assistance. The intent of the floor plan and
renderings was to assist with the referendum and not for final design purposes. This is similar to
other capital projects in lowa that are subject to public referendums.

If a programing review is not completed, City Staff will be expected to complete this work and
provide direction to OPN Architects on final space requirements.

: Why was a preliminary cost model that exceeded the City’s established budget of $6.8 million?
OPN was asked to identify the “high” range of the cost due to the extremely early nature of this
concept costing and the many unknowns. No additional cost estimating has been completed
since the original concept booklet in December of 2016. At that time, estimates listed $7.1M to
$7.34M as the range. OPN then worked with the city to identify a list of additional potential
areas to target for savings. No additional services were added to re-estimate the work since the
original concept in late 2016. The $6.8M was, and still is, a target number identified; not
anything that came directly from the cost estimate.

Please explain why you still list a 15% contingency?

It is standard practice to hold a contingency of this value at this early point in ANY project. This
is in place to protect the owner and the overall budget as more is learned about the work
through further design and documentation. At the feasibility and concept stage, estimates are
built from plans that are essentially area diagrams and only narrative descriptions for building
systems such as MEPT. Existing buildings, in this case —two of them, inherently have unknowns
to a higher degree than new construction might. As we work through the design process
phases, this contingency value will be reduced at each costing benchmark (SD, DD and 50% CD)
to reflect the more ‘known’ level of detail. Some level of contingency would need to remain in
place going into construction as well.

Please explain general requirements, contractor markup, and contingency. Who is paid these
fees? Will OPN receive these fees? Why are they separate from the construction price?

The construction cost is simply the sum total of the individual cost of the work by each of the
sub-contractors. This estimate was built by the estimating consultant in much the same manner
as a general contractor would approach this, by including overall mark-up and fees paid to the
general contractor at the bottom, rather than built into each line item throughout the

estimate. These dollars are part of the bid you would eventually see from your general
contractor, and cover the contractor’s time to coordinate the sub-contractors, mobilize the site,
maintain schedule, etc. No part of any of these values goes to the design team.






Carroll Public Library Foundation
118 East 5th St
Carroll, TA 51041

December 13, 2017

Mayor Dr. Eric Jensen

Members of the Carroll City Council
112 East Fifth Street

Carroll, IA 51401

Honorable Mayor and City Council:

As of December 13, 2017, the Carroll Public Library Foundation has pledges
totaling $1,398,425.41. That includes $778,800.41 in cash on hand for the project
and $619,625 in pledges to be fulfilled.

Of the pledges that need to be filled, the scheduled collection is heavily front-
loaded as follows:

2017: $50,000
2018: $288,125
2019: $125,250
2020: $81,750
2021: $64,000
2022: $10,500

Since our last letter, dated November 22, the Foundation raised $50,000 in
additional funds, going from $1.348 to $1.398 million.

We have submitted, with the assistance of a professional grant writer, nine grant
applications seeking a total of $1.3 million. We have had private and productive
conversations with some of those philanthropic organizations. We are confident
grant money will be a significant part of our fundraising mix. More grant
applications will be made in coming months.






With the momentum we have demonstrated, the continued flow of money into our
non-profit, and long-standing commitment of the foundation members, many of
whom have attended dozens of council meetings and worked to improve our
library for more than a decade, we believe we have earned the confidence of the
community and its elected officials.

Our November 22 letter indicates our commitment to initial phases of the project.
Please accept this letter as our commitment that we will pay all invoices related to
Architectural Services and temporary lease payments when presented to us within
five business days. If the Council needs or desires a more formal agreement, we
are prepared to enter into such agreement. We believe this relationship of paying
invoices when they are presented follows past practice of the City for other similar
partnership projects.

We hope the council would afford the same trust and respect in our work and
proven progress as it has in other organizations, past and present, seeking public-
private partnerships with the city and its taxpayers to improve our communities
with parks, a pool, and basketball courts, etc. We have been present and
accountable as library advocates for more than 10 years, and we will work hard—
in our volunteer capacities—to see this modern library through to completion. It’s
part of an exciting Fifth Street Alive corridor, that with the opening of Carroll
Brewing Company and the expansion of Biokenimetrics, makes for a showcase
section of Carroll, Jowa.

Sincerely,

Mitch Hiscocks
Foundation President






Carroll Public Library: Preliminary Cost Model
Monday, December 18, 2017

1 New Construction - Building Cost
Bill Farner Building Renovation
Bill Farner Building Addition
CSB Building

Costruction Subtotal

2 General requirements
3 Contractor Markup
4 Design/Bid/Construction Contingnency

Construction Cost Estimate

5 Professional Fee (Bldg & Site)
6 Cost Estimation Services
7 Programming ($9800 Lib + $3200 CH)
8 Reimbursables (estimated)
9 Furnishing/Shelving Range Library
10 Furnishing/Shelving Range City Hall
11 FFE Design/Spec Fee Range

12 Misc Costs:
Soil Borings/topo boundary survey
Construction Testing
Computers/IT
AV systems
Interior Signage
13 Temporary Lease space

14 Reduce escalation on Library 4-5%
2019 S to 2018 S costs

15 Moving cost - Library (includeds temp move and final)

16 Moving cost - City Hall
Total Project Cost:

Estimated Project Cost

1

1l

1

$2,249,750
$590,235
$1,104,145

6%
8%
15%

$546,966 10.53%
$33,200
$13,000
$11,500

$369,198
$99,373
$42,171

$259,626.30

10.53%

13%
9%
9%
5%

14.4%
11%
9%
8%

$121,310

-5% -5186,945 -4%
544,625

TBD
36,546,551

1

I

$3,944,130

$236,648
$334,462
$677,286

=|  $5,192,526

1l

1

1

11

$546,966
$33,200
$13,000
$11,500
$408,958
$121,456
$47,737
$415,402

$121,310
-$149,556

$44,625
TBD

$6,807,124





oy
=
N~

N

HQ
)

1)

o

SiE

D

9.4
L)

AIA Document B101" - 2007

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect

seventeen
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

’ AGREEMENT made as of the Eighteenth day of December in the year Two thousand and

BETWEEN the Architect’s client identified as the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address and other information)

City of Carroll

112 E. 5th Street

- Carroll, IA 51401

“and the Architect:

(Name, legal status, addres& and other information)

OPN Architects, Inc.
100 Court Avenue, Suite 100

 Des Moines, IA 50309

for the following Project:

 (Name, location and detailed description)

17842000 Carroll Public Library
112 E, 5th Street,

 Carroll, IA 51401

REMIT ALL PAYMENTS TO:
OPN Architects Inc. '

200 Fifth Avenue SE, Suite 201
Cedar Rapids, IA 52401

" ATTN: Vickie Choa'te'(Vchoate@opnarchitects.com)

Becky Ulferts (bulferts@opnarchitects.com)

- The Owhér and Architect agree as follows.

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to
the standard form text is available
from the author and should be
reviewed. A vertical line in the left
margin of this document indicates
where the author has added
necessary information and where
the author has added to or deleted
from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or madification.

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects, All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 1
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
! under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






Init.

TABLE OF ARTICLES
1 -INITIAL INFORMATION

2 _ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES

4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES
5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

6 COST OF THE WORK

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
11 COMPENSATION
12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT A INITIAL INFORMATION

ARTICLE1 INITIAL INFORMATION _ .

§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Article 1 and in optional Exhibit A, Initial
Information;

(Complete Exhibit A, Initial Infor matlon ana’ incorporate it into the Agreement at Section 13.2, or state below
Initial Information such as details of the Project’s site and program, Owner's contractors and consultants,
Architect’s consultants, Owner’s biidge! for the Cost of the Work, authovized representatives, anticipated

“procurement method, and other information relevant to the Project.)

' See Exhibit 'A’

§1 2 The Owner’s antlclpated dates for commencement of construction and Substantial Completion of the Work are
set forth below: ;
A Commencement of construction date:
August 23,2018
2 Su‘b‘starntial Completion date:
. August 23,2019

§1.3 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that such

- information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the

schedule, the Architect’s services and the Architect’s compensation,

ARTICLE 2 ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide the professional services as set forth in this Agreement.

AlA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997), Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may resuit in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA19)

2






§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by
architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances, The Architect shall
perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of
the Project.

-§ 2.3 The Architect shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect with respect to the
Project.

§ 2.4 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any
employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect’s professional
~judgment with respect to this Project.

- §2.5 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance for the duration of this Agreement, If any of the
requirements set forth below exceed the types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall
reimburse the Architect for any additional cost:

(Identify types and limits of insurance coverage, and other insurance requirements applicable 1o the Agreement, if

any,) o ‘
1 General Liability
l . ' s Fach Oc‘currelyl‘ce: $1,000,000 / Aggregate: $2,000,000
2 Automobile Liability
l o | '—Sringle Combined Limit: $1,000,000
| 3 Wdi'icers’ Compensation
- 7 7 f; P@:r Stafuté, 4
A4 PrqrfessrirojnalrLiability
l . P&éiaim{ $2,000,000
. N 7 ‘_Per Aggrggate: $2,000,000
‘ l | e B 'Excess,/ Unbrella Liability
, & ; T ~ Each Occur‘rénéerz $2,000,000 / Aggregate:
. $2,000,000
I 6 Empk;ye‘rsk Liability
: l o Per Ac;:idént, Per Disease, and Policy Limit: $500,000
| kARTlCLE 3 SCOPE :OkFVARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES
§ 3.1 The Architect’s Basic Services consist of those described in Article 3 and include usual and customary

structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Article 3 are Additional
Services.

§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect’s services, consult with the Owner, research applicable design
criteria, attend Project meetings, communicate with members of the Project team and report progress to the Owner.

§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner’s
consultants. The Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and information
furnished by the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Architect shall provide prompt written notice to the
Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any error, omission or inconsistency in such setrvices or information.

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American [nstitute of Architects. All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 3
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
! under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






Init.

§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for the Owner’s approval a
schedule for the performance of the Architect’s services. The schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for the

" commencement of construction and for Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth in the Initial Information.

The schedule shall include allowances for periods of time required for the Owner’s review, for the performance of
the Owner’s consultants, and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Once

approved by the Owner, time limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded
by the Architect or Owner. With the Owner’s approval, the Architect shall adjust the schedule, if necessary, as the

Project proceeds until the commencement of construction.

- §3.1.4 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner’s directive or substitution made without the Architect’s
“approval.

§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall, at appropriate times, contact the governmental authorities required to approve the
Construction Documents and the entities providing utility services to the Project. In designing the Project, the
Architect shall 1espond to apphcable design requirements imposed by such governmental authorities and by such
entities providing utility services.

§ 3.1.6 The Architect sh‘al‘] assist the Owner in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for filing documents

. l‘eqUIréd for the approval of gOVemmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§3. 2 SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review laws,

codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect’s services.

‘ § 3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule, budget for the Cost

of the Work, Project site, and the proposed procurement or delivery method and other Initial Information, each in
terms of the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any
inconsistencies discovered in the information, and (2) other information or consulting services that may be
reasonably needed for the Project.

§3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and shall discuss with the Owner

alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project, including the feasibility of incorporating

_environmentally responsible design approaches. The Architect shall reach an understanding with the Owner
“regarding the requirements of the Project.

§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project’s requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present for

~ the Owner’s approval a preliminary design illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components.

. §3.2.5 Based on the Owner’s approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design
“Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other

documents 1ncludmg a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and may
include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital modelmg Preliminary selections of
major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing,

§ 3.2.5.1 The Architect shall consider environmentally responsible design alternatives, such as material choices and
building orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that
is consistent with the Owner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain other
environmentally responsible design services under Article 4.

- § 3.2.52 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together

with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent
with the Owner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit to the Owner an estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with
Section 6.3.

AlA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.

User Notes: (3BYADA1S)

4






§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner, and request the Owner’s
approval,

§ 3.3 DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE SERVICES
§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of
-any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare

- Design Development Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and
describe the development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist of drawings and other
documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building
‘systems to fix and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and
electrical systems, and such other elements as may be appropriate. The Design Development Documents shall also
include outline specifications that identify major materials and systems and establish in general their quality levels.

:§,3-3-2 The Architect shall update the estimate of the Cost of the Work.

- §3.3.3 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any
- adjustments to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Owner’s approval.

§ 3.4 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE SERVICES
§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare
Construction Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and describe the
- further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist of Drawings and
Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels of materials and systems and other requirements for the
construction of the Work, The Owner and Architect acknowledge that in order to construct the Work the Contractor
will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar submittals,
*which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4.

§ 3.4.2 The Al‘clﬁtect shall iﬁc’orporate into the Construction Documents the design requirements of governmental
authorities havingjurisdiction over the Project.

§34.3 Du1 ing the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the
development and preparation of (1) bidding and procurement information that describes the time, place and
conditions of bidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (2) the form of agreement between the Owrner and
Contractor; and (3) the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary and other Conditions).
The Architect shall also compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contract for Construction and
Spemﬁca‘uons and may 1nclude blddmg 1equ1rements and sample forms.

§3.4.4 The A1 chitect shall update the estimate for the Cost of the Work.

§3. 4 5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any adjustments
to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the Owner’s
approval.

8§35 BIDDING OR NEGOTIATION PHASE SERVICES
. §3.51GENERAL
The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner’s
approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining either competitive
--=bids or negotiated proposals; (2) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid
ot proposal, if any; and, (4) awarding and preparing contracts for construction.

§ 3.5.2 COMPETITIVE BIDDING
' § 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents.

§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by
1 procuring the reproduction of Bidding Documents for distribution to prospective bidders;

AlIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 19897). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects, All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 5
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
i under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






Init.

.2 distributing the Bidding Documents to prospective bidders, requesting their return upon completion of
the bidding process, and maintaining a log of distribution and retrieval and of the amounts of
deposits, if any, received from and returned to prospective bidders;

.3 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders;

4 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and
interpretations of the Bidding Documents to all prospective bidders in the form of addenda; and

.5 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and distributing the
bidding results, as directed by the Owner.

§ 3.5.2.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, and

 shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all prospective bidders.

-§35.3 NEGOTIATED PROPOSALS
-§3.5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements and proposed Contract Documents.

~§ 3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtaining proposals by

1 procuring the reproduction of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors, and
requestmg their return upon completion of the negotiation process;
2 organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; and
3 participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a summary
repott of the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner.

§ 3.5.3.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Proposal Documents petimit substitutions, and
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all prospective contractors.

§ 3.6 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

§ 3.6.1 GENERAL
§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set

: f01t11 below and in AlA Document A201™-2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. If the Owner
‘and Contractor modify AIA Document A201-2007, those modifications shall not affect the Architect’s services

under this Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect amend this Agreement.

§ 3 6.1, 2 The A1 chltect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The
_ Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The

Architect shall not have control ovet, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the
Architect be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the lequu ements of the

;Contlact Documents. The Axchltect shall be responsible for the Architect’s negllgent acts or omissions, but shall not
have conttol over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other

petsons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§3. 6. 1. 3 Subject to Section 4.3, the Architect’s responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services commences
with the award of the Contlact f01 Construction and terminates on the date the Architect issues the final Certificate

fjfor Payment, -

- § 3.6.2 EVALUATIONS OF THE WORK
§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise

required in Section 4.3.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work
completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the
Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect shall not
be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On
the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of
the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract Documents and
from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and deficiencies observed in

the Work.

AIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1874, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

(3B9ADA19)

for resale,
User Notes:

6






Init.

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever
the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to require inspection or
testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not such Work is

- fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith
~either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the

Contractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees or other persons or entities

performing portions of the Work.

§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests
shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable
from the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, shall not

show pattiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. The
- Architect’s decisions on mattels relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the

;Contl act Documents

§ 3.6.2.5 Unleés the Owner and Contractor designate another person to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, as that
term is defined in AIA Document A201-2007, the Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the

- Owner and Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents.

-+§3.6.3 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR
§3.6.3. 1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such

amounts. The Architect’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on the
Architect’s evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the Contractor’s
Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, the Work has
progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents.
The foregoing representations are subject (1) to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract
Documents upon Substantial Completion, (2) to results of subsequent tests and inspections, (3) to correction of
minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and (4) to specific qualifications expressed by
the Ar chltect

§ 3.6.3.2 The isSUahce of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from

" Subcontractors and material suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to

payment, or (4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of

““the Contract Sum.

§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment.

§ 3.6.4 SUBMITTALS
§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Contractor’s submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or withhold

-approval, The Architect’s action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with the approved submittal

schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient
time in the Architect’s professional judgment to permit adequate review.

§3.64.2 In accordance with the Architect-approved submittal schedule, the Architect shall review and approve or
take other appropriate action upon the Contractor’s subimittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples,
~“but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept

expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is not for the purpose of determining the accuracy
and completeness of other information such as dimensions, quantities, and installation or performance of equipment
or systems, which are the Contractor’s responsibility. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety
precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods,

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may resuit in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

(3B9ADA19)

for resale.
User Notes:

7






techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an
assembly of which the item is a component.

§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment, the Architect shall specify the
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Architect shall review Shop
Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the design professional retained by the
Contractor that bear such professional’s seal and signature when submitted to the Architect. The Architect shall be
entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals
‘performed or provided by such design professionals.

§ 3.6.4.4 Subject to the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information
about the Contract Documents, The Architect shall set forth in the Contract Documents the requirements for requests
for information. Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the
specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The
Architect’s response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or otherwise with
~ reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and
: ‘Spemﬁcauons in response to requests for information.

§ 3.6,4.5 The Arclntect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the Contractor in
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.5 CHANGES IN THE WORK

§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect may authorize minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract
Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Subject to
the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the
Owner’s approval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6;5.2 The Architecf sjh‘alli maintain records relative to changes in the Work,

§ 3.6.6 PROJECT COMPLETION

§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect shall conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the
date of final coinpletion; issue Cettificaies of Substantial Completion; receive from the Contractor and forward to
the Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract
Documents and assembled by the Contractor; and issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection
indicating the Work complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect’s inspéctions shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and completeness of the list submitted by the
Contractor of Work to be completed or corrected.

§ 3.6.6.3 When the Work is found to be substantially complete, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the
balance of the Contract Sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, including the amount to be retained from the
_ Contract Sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the Work.

- §3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the Contractor: (1)
~consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (2)
affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (3) any other

documentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents.

‘ § 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial Completion,
the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the facility
“operations and performance,

AlA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B161™ — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 8
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
] under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






Init.

ARTICLE 4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES

§ 4.1 Additional Services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The
Architect shall provide the listed Additional Services only if specifically designated in the table below as the
Architect’s responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2.

‘ (Designate the Additional Services the Architect shall provide in the second column of the table below. In the third

column indicate whether the service description is located in Section 4.2 or in an attached exhibit. If in an exhibit,
identify the exhibit.)

Additional Services Responsibility Location of Service
(Architect, Owner or Not Description
Provided) (Section 4.2 below or in an
exhibit attached 1o this
document and identified

iE & below)
1.§4.1.1 Programming (B2027™8-2009) Not Provided-AddService
1 §4.1.2. Multiple preliminary designs Not Provided - Add Service

§ 4.1.3 Measured drawings Not Provided - Add Service

§ 4.1.4 Existing facilities surveys Not Provided - Add

o Service

§ 4.1.5 - Site Evaluation and Planning (B203™- | Not Provided - Add Service

2007y v

§ 4.1.6 “Building Information Modeling (E203™- | Not Provided

2008) e

§ 4.1.7 _Civil engineering Owner - Survey

‘ Confluence See Exhibit 'A’

§ 4.1.8 Landscape design = =

§4.1.9 - Architectural Interior Design (B252™— Architect See Exhibit 'A’

2007)

§ 4.1.10 . Value Analysis (B204™-2007) Not Provided

§4.1.11 Detailed cost estimating - Stecker-Harmsen See Exhibit ‘A"

§4.1.12  On-site Project Representation Not Provided - Add Services

(B207™-2008) o

§ 4.1.13 " Conformed construction documents Not Provided - Add Service

§4.1.14 . As-Designed Record drawings Not Provided - Add Service

§ 4.1.15 - As-Constructed Record drawings Not Provided - Add Service

§4.1.16 - Post occupancy evaluation = Not Provided - Add Service

§4.1.17 Facility Support Services (B210T™— Not Provided - Add Service

2007)

§ 41.18 Tenant-related services Not Provided - Add Service

§ 4.1.19 Coordination of Ownei’s consultants Not Provided Add Service

§ 4.1.20 .. Télecommunications/data design Alvine Engineering See Exhibit ‘A’

§4.1.21 Security Evaluation and Planning Not Provided - Add Service

(B206™-2007)

§4.1.22 Commissioning (B211™-2007) Not Provided - Add Service

§4.1.23 Extensive environmentally responsible | Not Provided - Add Service

design . :

§ 4.1.24 - LEED?® Certification (B214™-2012) Not Provided - Add Service

§ 4.1.25  Fast-track design services Not Provided - Add Service

§ 4.1.26 - Historic Preservation (B205™-2007) Not Provided - Add Service

§4.1.27 Furniture, Furnishings, and Equipment | Not Provided - Add Service

Design (B253™-2007)

AlA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American [nstitute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes: (3BSADA19)

9






Init.

§ 4.2 Insert a description of each Additional Service designated in Section 4.1 as the Architect’s responsibility, if not
further described in an exhibit attached to this document.

§ 4.3 Additional Services may be provided after execution of this Agreement, without invalidating the Agreement,
Except for services required due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services provided in accordance with
this Section 4.3 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an appropriate adjustment in
the Architect’s schedule,

§ 4.3.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner
with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect shall not
proceed to provide the following services until the Architect receives the Owner’s written authorization:

‘ . Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given by
the Owner, or-a material change in the Project including, but not limited to, size, quality, complexity,
the Owner’s schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery method;

.2 . Services necessitated by the Owner’s request for extensive environmentally responsible design
alternatives, such as unique system designs, in-depth material research, energy modeling, or LEED®
certification;

:3 . Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by the enactment or

. revision of codes, laws or regulations or official interpretations;
4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure of
. performance on the patt of the Owner or the Owner’s consultants or contractors;
.5 Preparing digital data for transmission to the Owner’s consultants and contractors, or to other Owner
authorized recipients;
Preparation of design and documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the Ownet;
~“Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing;
Preparation for, and attendance at a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where the
- Architect is party thereto;
.9 Evaluation of the qualifications of bidders or persons providing proposals;
10 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction;
A1 Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect.

o U

§ 43.2 To avoid délay‘ in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall provide the following Additional Services,
“notify the Owner with reasonable promptness, and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. If the

Owner subsequently determinés that all or parts of those services are not required, the Owner shall give prompt

_written notice to the Architeét, and the Owner shall have no further obligation to compensate the Architect for those
- services; ‘ ‘ ‘

.1 Reviewing a Contractor’s submittal out of sequence from the submittal schedule agreed to by the
Architect; -

.2 - Responding to the Contractor’s requests for information that are not prepared in accordance with the
Contract Documents or where such information is available to the Contractor from a careful study
and comparison of the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided information,
Contractor-prepared coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation;

.3 :Preparing Change Orders and Construction Change Directives that require evaluation of Contractor’s
proposals and supporting data, or the preparation or revision of Instruments of Service;

4 Evaluating an extensive number of Claims as the Initial Decision Maker;

.5 . Evaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner or Contractor and making subsequent revisions to

. Instruments of Service resulting therefrom; or

- .6 Tothe extent the Architect’s Basic Services are affected, providing Construction Phase Services 60

~days after (1) the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or (2) the anticipated date of Substantial
Completion identified in Initial Information, whichever is earlier,

§ 4.3.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additional
Services, When the limits below are reached, the Architect shall notify the Owner:

AIA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B161™ = 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 10
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible

under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






Init.

.1 Two (2 ) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittal of the
Contractor

.2 Twenty-Six (26 ) visits to the site by the Architect over the duration of the Project during
construction

.3 Two (2) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is
substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents

4 One (1) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion

§ 4.3.4 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within Fifty-two ( 52 ) weeks of August

- 23,2018, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect’s services beyond that time shall be

compensated as Additional Services.

ARTICLE 5 OWNER'’S RESPONSIBILITIES

§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the
Owner’s objectives, schedule, constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships, flexibility,

~ expandability, special equipment, systems and site requirements. Within 15 days after receipt of a written request

from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to

_evaluate, give notice of or enforce lien rights.

k § 5.2 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the budget
“for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner’s other costs; and, (3) reasonable contingencies

related to all of these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the

“Work, the Owner shall notify the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall thereafter agree to a corresponding
" change in the Project’s scope and quality.

§ 5.3 The Owner shall identify aﬁ representative authorized to act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the Project.

- The Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect’s submittals in a timely manner in order to avoid

unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect’s services.

§ 5.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for
the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as

‘applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands;
“adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and

contours of the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements
and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below
grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark.

§ 5.5 The Owner shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may include but are not limited to test

borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic
evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil
conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations.

§ 5.6 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect.
Upon the Architect’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the contracts between the
Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated
in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional Service, when the Architect requests
such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of the Project. The Owner shall
require that its consultants maintain professional liability insurance as appropriate to the services provided.

-§ 57 Th‘e‘ Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as
-~ structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials.

§ 5.8 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests.

AIA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B1561™ = 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No, 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.

User Notes: (3BYADA1Y)

11






§ 5.9 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any fault or
defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service.

- § 5,10 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, or when direct communications have been specially
authorized, the Owner shall endeavor to communicate with the Contractor and the Architect’s consultants through
.the Architect about matters arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents. The Owner shall promptly notify
the Architect of any direct communications that may affect the Architect’s services.

§ 5.11 Before executing the Contract for Construction, the Owner shall coordinate the Architect’s duties and
responsibilities set forth in the Contract for Construction with the Architect’s services set forth in this Agreement.
The Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and Contractor,
including the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

o § 5.12 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and shall
obligate the Contractor to provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress.

‘ARTICLE 6 . COST OF. THE WORK

*§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include contractors’ general conditions costs,
overhead and profit. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the Architect, the costs of the land,
rights-of-way, financing, contingencies for changes in the Work or other costs that are the responsibility of the

Owner. -

§ 6.2 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and may be adjusted

throughout the Project as required under Sections 5.2, 6.4 and 6.5. Evaluations of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of
- the Work, the preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work and updated estimates of the Cost of the Work prepared

by the Architect, represent the Architect’s judgment as a design professional. It is recognized, however, that neither

the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, materials or equipment; the Contractor’s methods of
“determining bid prices; or competitive bidding, market or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, the Architect cannot

and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner’s budget for the Cost
~of the Work or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work or evaluation prepared or agreed to by the Architect.

§ 6.3 In preparing estimates of the Cost of Work, the Architect shall be permitted to include contingencies for
design, bidding and price escalation; to determine what materials, equipment, component systems and types of
construction are to be included in the Contract Documents; to make reasonable adjustments in the program and
< scope of the Project; and to include in the Contract Documents alternate bids as may be necessary to adjust the
estimated Cost of the Work to meet the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work. The Architect’s estimate of the
Cost of the Work shall be based on current area, volume or similar conceptual estimating techniques. If the Owner
... requests detailed cost estimating services, the Architect shall provide such services as an Additional Service under
- Article 4.

§ 6.4 If the Bidding or Negotiation Phase has not commenced within 90 days after the Architect submits the
. Construction Documents to the Owner, through no fault of the Architect, the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the
 Work shall be adjusted to reflect changes in the general level of prices in the applicable construction market.

§6.51fat any time the Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the
Work, the Architect shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project’s size, quality or
budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments.

§ 6.6 If the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase
Services is exceeded by the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, the Owner shall
-1 give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work;

.2 authorize rebidding or renegotiating of the Project within a reasonable time;

.3 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5,

4 in consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce

the Cost of the Work; or
5 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative.

AlA Document B101™ - 2007 (formerly B151™ - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 12
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
] under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






Init.

§ 6.7 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.6.4, the Architect, without additional compensation, shall
modify the Construction Documents as necessary to comply with the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work at the
conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase Services, or the budget as adjusted under Section 6.6.1. The
Architect’s modification of the Construction Documents shall be the limit of the Architect’s responsibility under this

_ Article 6.

ARTICLE7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

§ 7.1 The Architect and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, the
transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to
transmit such information for its use on the Project. If the Owner and Architect intend to transmit Instruments of
Service or any other information or documentation in digital form, they shall endeavor to establish necessary
protocols goveming such transmissions.

§ 7.2 The Architect and the Alchltect s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official
legulatmy requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication
in der ogatlon of the 1ese1ved rights of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants.

§ 7.3 Upon execution of this Agreement, the Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the

Architect’s Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering
and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, including prompt payment
of all sums when due, under this Agreement. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the
Architect’s consultants consistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to
authorize the Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers, as well as the
Owner’s consultants and separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the Instruments of Service solely
and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the Architect rightfully terminates
this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9.4, the license granted in this Section 7.3 shall terminate.

§ 7.3.1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the author of the Instruments of

Service, the Owner releases the Architect and Architect’s consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising
from such uses, The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Architect and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes
of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner’s use of
the Instruments of Service under this Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section 7.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner
rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9.4.

-~ §7.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied

under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license
granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the
Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner’s sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect’s
consultants. L

ARTICLE 8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

§ 8.1 GENERAL
§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, or

otherwise, against the other arising out of or related to this Agreement in accordance with the requirements of the
method of binding dispute resolution selected in this Agreement within the period specified by applicable law, but in
any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Architect

‘waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 8.1.1.

§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect waive all rights against
each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents and employees of the other for damages, except such
rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AIA Document A201-2007, General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of the

AlIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

(3B9ADA19)

for resale,
User Notes:

13






Init.

contractors, consultants, agents and employees of any of them similar waivers in favor of the other parties
enumerated herein.

§ 8.1.3 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question

arising ‘out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential
damages due to either party’s termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7.

§ 8.2 MEDIATION
§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to

mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien
arising out of the Architect’s services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with
the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution.

.§8.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between
- them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American

Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of
the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Agreement, and
filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of
a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in
advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days
from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order, If an arbitration
proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s)
and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding
dispute resolution shall be the following:

(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution below,
or.do not subsequently.agreé inwriting (o a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will

be resolved in a courl of competent jurisdiction.)

Il ',Al‘bitrgtion pursUaht to Section 8.3 of this Agreement
[X] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

1] Other (Sperci'fy)“:

‘ v(Pal"agraphs‘Deletea)

ARTICLE9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be
considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect’s option, cause for suspension
of performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give
seven days’ written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of
services. Before resuming services, the Architect shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses
incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining
services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale,

User Notes: (3BSADA19)

14






interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining services and the time
schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the
Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ written notice.

§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice should the other party
“fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating
the termination,

§ 9.5 The OWner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Architect for the
Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 9.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Architect, the Architect shall be compensated for services
performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and all Termination Expenses as

defined in Section 9.7.

§ 9.7 Termination Expenses are in addition to compensation for the Architect’s services and include expenses
- directly attributable to termination for which the Architect is not otherwise compensated, plus an amount for the
Architect’s anticipated profit on the value of the services not performed by the Architect.

§ 98 The Owhér’_sg‘i:ghts to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this
Agreement are set forth in Article 7 and Section 11.9.

ARTICLE 10 'MIVSCEVLLAN'EOUS PROVISIONS
§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, except that if the
- parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern

~Section 83. Gt

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in ATA Document A201-2007, General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

'§ 10,3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the
written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for
the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this Agreement.

~:§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests
‘the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment {o a lender, the Architect shall execute
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the
Architect for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or
consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement.

§10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor
of a third party against either the Owner or Architect.

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery,
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any

_form at the Project site.

§10.7 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the
Project among the Architect’s promotional and professional materials, The Architect shall be given reasonable
access to the completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect’s materials shall not include
the Owner’s confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of
the specific information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide
professional credit for the Architect in the Owner’s promotional materials for the Project.

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects, All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 15
this AJA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
I under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.
(3BSADA19)

User Notes:






§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated by the other party as “confidential” or

- “business proprietary,” the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it
to any other person except to (1) its employees, (2) those who need to know the content of such information in order
to perform services or construction solely and exclusively for the Project, or (3) its consultants and contractors
whose contracts include similar restrictions on the use of confidential information.

ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION

§ 11.1 For the Architect’s Basic Services described under Atticle 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as
follows: ;

(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.)

“(Design Phase) Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction Documents
Professional Fee $289,746

(Cdnstructioh Phase) Bidding ahd Negotiations, Construction Administration
Professional Fee. .~ o $108,288

Total Professional Fce $398,034
Reimbersable expenses are not included in the Professional Fees and will be invoiced at 1.1 times actual cost.

REMIT ALL;PAYMENTS TO:
OPN Architects Inc,

200 Fifth Avenue SE; Suite 201
Cedar Rapids, 1A 52401

ATT N: Vickie Choate (vchoate@opnarchitects.com)
Becky Ulferts (bulferts@opnarchitects.com)

§1 1.2 For Additional Services designated in Section 4.1, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services to which particular methods of
compensation apply.) ‘

| - Stipulated Sum per service or per Standard Hourly Rates

§ 1.3 For Additional Services that may;arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.3, the
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows:

(Insert amount of, or basis for,-compensation.)

' " Per Standard Hourly Rates

~ § 11.4 Compén‘sa‘tion for Additional Services of the Architect’s consultants when not included in Section 11.2 or
] - 11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus Ten percent ( 10 %), or as otherwise stated below:

| : (Paragraph Deleted)

B (Table Deleted)

I (Paragraph Deleted)

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects, Al rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 16
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
] under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No, 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale,
User Notes: (3B9ADA1S)






Init.

§ 11.7 The houtly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants, if any, are set forth
below. The rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect’s and Architect’s consultants’ normal review

practices.

(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

See Exhibit 'B'

Employee or Category Rate

§11.8 COMPENSATION FOR REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and include
expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants directly related to the Project, as follows:
A Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;
2 Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project Web sites,
and extranets;
3 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;
.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form documents;
.5 Postage, handling and delivery;
6 . Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner;
7. Renderings, models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by the
, -Owner;
.8 Architect’s Consultant’s expense of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this
" Project, or the expense of additional insurance coverage or limits if the Owner requests such
: insurance in excess of that nonmally carried by the Architect’s consultants;
.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses;
10 Site office expenses; and
11 Other similar Project-related expenditures.

§11.8.2 For‘R'eimbﬁrsable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the

“Architect’s consultants. Reimbursable expenses are not included in Professional Fees and will be invoiced at 1.1

times actual cost. Reimbursable expenses include authorizaed travel, courier services, express mail, in house

~ printing, mileage and meal reimbursements. Estimated Reimbursable expense of $5,500 - $6,500.

Reimbursable expense not included would be plan review fees, permit fees, reproduction of project documents,
puntmc for pmject b1d documents, photography [if required], out-of-house digital processing.

§11 9 COMPENSATION FOR USE OF ARCHITECT’S INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE

1f the Owner terminates the Architect for its convenience under Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this
Agreement under Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay a licensing fee as compensation for the Owner’s continued use of
the Architect’s Instr uments of Service solely for purposes of completing, using and maintaining the Project as
follows:

Not Applicable

§11.10 PAYMENTS TO THE ARCHITECT

- §11.10.1 An initial payment of Zero Dollars ($ 0 ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the

minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final invoice.

§ 11.10.2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed.
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid Sixty ( 60 ) days after
the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate prevailing
from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect.

(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

1.5 % monthly

AlA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ — 1987). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects, All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADA19)

17






Init.

§ 11.10.3 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect’s compensation to impose a penalty or
liquidated damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in
the Work unless the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution

proceeding.

§ 11.10.4 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Additional Services, and services performed on
the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times.

ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

':Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:

12.1 179D(d)(4) Energy Tax Allocation for Designers of Government-Owned Buildings. The Owner agrees to

.allocate to the Architect and the Architect's participating and responsible Consultants all section 179D tax

deductions dedicated the Designers of energy efficient commercial property, provided these commercial property
improvments qualify for allocations per the Energy Policy Act of 2005, Section 179D, Notice 2008-40. Upon
achieving Substantial ‘Completion for the Project, the Architect will prepare and submit the Form of Allocation letter
to the Owner for approval on behalf of the design team and particpating Consultants. The Architect and Architect's

participating Consultants will maintain records as are sufficient to establish the entitlement to, and amount of, any

dedumton claimed by the Consultant relevant to 179D per IRS regulations.

‘Refel ence: As part of the Ene1 gy Policy Act of 2005, Congress enacted Section 179D of the Internal Revenue Code
‘in order to encourage the energy efficient design and construction of new or rehabilitated properties. Notice 2008~
40 of Intemal Revenue Bulletin 2008-14 sets forth guidance as to the allocation of the section 179D deduciton to
designers of government owned buildings. Notice 2008-40 provides that in the case of a government owned

propel“cy (Federal, State or Local government or political subdivision) the deduction for energy efficient buildings
may be allocated to the designer for the taxable year that includes the date on which the property was placed in

“service. These tax allocations are not possible to claim as a government entitiy and are therefore assigned to the

< responsible designer(s) of qualifying energy efficient property incorporated into the Project. A designer may
“include, for example, an architect, engineer, contractor, environmental consultant or energy services provider who
~creates the technical specification for a new building or an addition to an existing building that incorporates energy

efficient commercial property allowed under Section 179D.

_ ARTICLE 13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and

“supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be

amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Architect.
§13.2 This Agréeement is comprised of the following documents listed below:

.1 ATA Document B101™-2007, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect

(Pafagraph Deleted) H

.3 Other documents:
(List other documents, if any, including Exhibit A, Initial Information, and additional scopes of

service, if any, forming part of the Agreement.,)

Exhibit 'A' - Proposal
Exhibit 'B' - Standard Hourly Rates

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

AlA Document B1017™ - 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes: (3BYADA19)

18






Init.

OWNER ARCHITECT

(Signature) (Signature)
Eric Jensen, Mayor Danielle C. Hermann, AIA, Associate Principal
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

AlA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B161™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights

reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of

this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible

under the faw. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADA19)

19






Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA® Document B101™ - 2007

~ This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has
added to the standard form AlA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from
the original AlA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AlA text.

Note: This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any
part of the associated AlA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated
simultaneously by AIA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017.

PAGE 1

AGREEMENT made as of the Eighteenth day of December in the year Two thousand and seventeen

City of Cafroll
112 E. 5th Street
Carroll IA 51401

OPN Architects, Inc.
2100 Court Avenue, Suite 100
Des Moines. TA 50309 -

I

17842000 Carroll Public Library
112 E. Sth Street
Carroll, TA 51401

REMIT ALL PAYMENTS TO:

OPN Architects Inc.

200 Fifth Avenue SE, Suite 201

Cedar Rapids, IA 52401

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American [nstitute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale,

User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






ATTN: Vickie Choate (vchoate@opnarchitects.com)

Becky Ulferts (bulferts@opnarchitects.com)

PAGE 2
See Exhibit Al

August 23,2018

August 23,2019

Each Occurrence; $1,000,000 / Aggregate: $2.000,000

Single Combined Limit: $1,000.000

Per Statute

Per Claim: $2.000,000

Per Asoregate: $2,000,000

S Ekégss /Umbrella Liability

- Bach Occurrence: $2.000,000 / Aggregate:

$2.000,000

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may resuit in severe ¢ivil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BYADA19)






.6 __Employers Liability

Per Accident, Per Disease, and Policy Limit:

PAGE 9

500,000

Additional Services

Responsibility
{Architect. Owner or Not

Provided)

Location of Service
Description
(Section 4.2 below or in an
exhibit attached 1o this
document and identified
below)

§4.1. 1 Plggnammmg (B202T“L-2009)

Not Provided-AddService

§41.2 Mult gle p ellmmaw desuzns

Not Provided - Add Service

§4.1.3 _Measured drawings

Not Provided - Add Service

| §4.1.4  Existing facilities surveys

Not Provided - Add
Service

18415 Site Evaluation and Planning (B203™_2007)

Not Provided - Add Service

§4.1.6 Bulldlng Infomlanon Modeling (E203™

Not Provided

2008)

§41 7 C1v1l en,qmeerl g

Owner - Survey

Confluence See Exhibit 'A’
'§41.8 Landscape desuzn
§4.1.9  Architectural Interior Design (B252TM—2007) Architect See Exhibit 'A’
| § 4.1.10 " Value Analysis (B204™--2007) Not Provided
- | 844141 Detailed cost estimating Stecker-Harmsen See Exhibit 'A’
|.§44.12 - On-site Project Representation (B207™— Not Provided - Add
2008) k Services
§ 4.1.13 Conformed construction documents Not Provided - Add Service
§41.14  As-Designed Record drawings Not Provided - Add Service
§4.1.15 As-Constructed Record drawings Not Provided - Add Service
§41.16  Post occupancy evaluation Not Provided - Add Service
4.1.17 _Facility Support Services (B210™-2007) Not Provided - Add Service
§ 4.1.18 Tenant-related services Not Provided - Add Service
§ 41,19 Coordination of Owner’s consultants Not Provided Add Service
§4.1.20 Telecommunications/data design Alvine Engineering See Exhibit 'A’
§4.1.21 Security Evaluation and Planning (B206™~- | Not Provided - Add Service
2007) s
§4,1.22 Commissioning (B211™-2007) Not Provided - Add Service
§ 4,1.23  Extensive environmentally responsible design | Not Provided - Add Service
§41.24 LEED® Certification (B214™-2012) Not Provided - Add Service
§4.1.25 Fast-track design services Not Provided - Add Service
§ 4.1.26 _Historic Preservation (B205™-2007) Not Provided - Add Service

§4.1.27 Furniture, Furnishings, and Equipment
Design (B253™-2007)

Not Provided - Add Service

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B161™ - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be

prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.

4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADA19)






Additional Servi R Bl Locationof Service Descrioti
rehitectOwner | (Seetionddbel . Libi
doniifiod-bel

§443Measured-drawinss
e istine facilit

20 - Talecommunieations/datadaecion
Zu-——1elecohicatdolraataGesigh

H IRATITM 2007
Pz 1T =997

O o iaciaBiis
13 SHHHSSIORHRE

A Two (2) rcVieWS‘of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittal of the

Contractor

.2 Twenty-Six (26 ) visits to the site by the Architect over the duration of the Project during

construction

3 Two ( 2) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is
~substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents

4 One (1) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion

Additions and Deletions Report for AlA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B161™ — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be

prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.

4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3B9ADA19)






§ 4.3.4 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within -(-menths-ofthe-date-ofthis
AsreementFifty-two ( 52 ) weeks of August 23, 2018, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the
Architect’s services beyond that time shall be compensated as Additional Services.

PAGE 14

[X] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ = 2007 {formerly B151™ = 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






PAGE16

gDésign Phase) Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction Documents

Professional Fee - $289.746

(Construction Phase) Bidding and Negotiations, Construction Administration

~Professional Fee .- $108.288

Total Professional Fee o $398.034
Reimbersable expenses are not included in the Professional Fees and will be invoiced at 1.1 times actual cost.

REMIT ALL PAYMENTS TO:
OPN Architects Inc.
200 Fifth Avenue SE, Suite 201

Cedar Rapids, 1A 52401

ATTN: Vickie Choate (vchoate@opnarchitects.com)

Becky Ulferts (bulferts@opnarchitects.com)

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ = 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and wiil be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BYADA19)






“Stipulated Sum per service or per Standard Hourly Rates

Per Standard Hourly Rates

L

§ 11.4 Compensation for Additional Services of the Architect’s consultants when not included in Section 11.2 or
11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus Ten percent ( 10 %), or as otherwise stated below:

Ge&s&ue&eﬁ : %)

DNacuments Phaca

DeetmentsPhase

BiddincorNesotigtion-Phase . []

Biddinsor NesotiationPhase pereent{ %)
: i 3 N ' e 04)

- PAGE 17
 See Exhibit B’

-§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the

Architect’s consultantsplus—percent-{—%)-. Reimbursable expenses are not included in Professional Fees and will
“be invoiced at 1.1 times actual cost. Reimbursable expenses include authorizaed travel, courier services, express
mail, in house printing, mileage and meal reimbursements. Estimated Reimbursable expense of $5,500 -

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1897). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is hot for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






of the-expensesineurred-Reimbursable expense not included would be plan review fees, permit fees, reproduction of
project documents, printing for project bid documents, photography [if required], out-of-house digital processing.

Not Applicable

- §11.10.1 An initial payment of Zero Dollars ($ 0 ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the
minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final invoice.

§ 11.10.2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed.
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid Sixty ( 60 ) days after
the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate prevailing
from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect.

' Q % monthly
PAGE 18

12.1 :179D(d)(4) Energy Tax Allocation for Designers of Government-Owned Buildings. The Owner agrees to
allocate to the Architect and the Architect's participating and responsible Consultants all section 179D tax
deductions dedicated thé Designers of energy efficient commetrcial property, provided these commercial property
improvments qualify for allocations per the Energy Policy Act of 20035, Section 179D, Notice 2008-40. Upon

achieving Substantial Completion for the Project, the Architect will prepare and submit the Form of Allocation letter
to the Owner for approval on behalf of the design team and particpating Consultants, The Architect and Architect's
participating Consultants will maintain records as are sufficient to establish the entitlement to, and amount of, any

deduciton claimed by the Consultant relevant to 179D per IRS regulations.

Refelence As nalt of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, Congress enacted Section 179D of the Internal Revenue Code
in order 10 encourage the energy efficient design and construction of new or rehabilitated properties. Notice 2008-
40.of Internal Revenue Bulletin 2008-14 sets forth guidance as to the allocation of the section 179D deduciton to
' gemgnens of government owned buildings. Notice 2008-40 provides that in the case of a government owned
X Federal, State or Local government or political subdivision) the deduction for energy efficient buildings
may be allocated to the designer for the taxable vear that includes the date on which the property was placed in
service. These tax allocations are not possible to claim as a government entitiyv and are therefore assigned to the
responsible designer(s) of qualifying energy efficient property incorporated into the Project. A designer may
- include, for example. an architect, engineer, contractor, environmental consultant or energy services provider who
creates the technical specification for a new building or an addition to an existing building that incorporates energy
efficient commercial property allowed under Section 179D.

Exhibit 'A' - Proposal

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ = 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may resuilt in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






Exhibit 'B' - Standard Hourly Rates

PAGE 19

Eric Jensen, Mayor Danielle C. Hermann, AIA, Associate Principal

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ = 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale,

User Notes: (3B9ADA19)






Certification of Document's Authenticity
AIA® Document D401™ — 2003

L, ; hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the attached final document
simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this cettification at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017
under Order No. 4396204884 from ATA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final
“document I made no changes to the original text of AIA® Document B101™ - 2007, Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Architect, as published by the AIA in its software, other than those additions and deletions shown
in the associated Additions and Deletions Report.

(Signed)

(T iﬂe)x |

- (Dgtew =

AIA Document D401™ = 2003. Copyright ® 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may 1
result in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA
software at 17:41:01 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BADA19)






December 18, 2017

Mr. Mike Pogge-Weaver
City Manager

City of Carroll

112 E. 5" Street

Carroll, IA 51401-2799

RE: Proposal for Phase 1l Services (Basic Services) for City of Carroll
Library

Mike:

OPN could not be more excited to be a part of this project. Please find below the scope of
services for the Library Project located at 112 E. 5% St. Carroll, 1A 51401.

We have separated out the Library and the City Hall into two individual fee proposals. We
have also divided up the fee for Design Phase services from Bidding and Construction
Administration services. The follow is specific to the Library building only. A lum sum
professional fee for the two design phases as indicated below.

Programming Review — Additional services if desired

This phase of the work is intended to review, analyze and confirm prior space needs work
that was performed for the library. This is outside of the standard design services. The
library program to date is based on the OPN review of the original Himmel and Wilson
document from 2014. Modifications and assumptions have already been made based on
meetings between OPN and library staff from the summer of 2016. We would like to offer
another look at confirming space needs with the new Library Director and staff and verify
the space allocations identified in the Concept study. OPN would provide an additional
meeting with the Library to review the existing program and provide meeting minute
documentation of the updates. This effort would be required to update the required
amount of shelving needs for each library department.

o The current City Hall/Library building at 112 E. 5" Street.

Standard Professional Services (Design) — Schematic Design, Design Development
and Construction Documents

OPN and our consultants would prepare design documents read to be bid in a typical
Design — Bid — Build Public Project delivery method.
Consultant Services provided:
- Landscape Design Services provided by Confluence — Site Layout Plan, Grading
plan, Planting Plan, Site Details and Specifications.
- MEPT Design Services provided by Alvine Engineering — Mechanical HVAC,
Plumbing, Fire Protection, Fire Alarm Services, Building Services up to 5-0

ARCHITECTS

Daniel J. Thies, AlA
Steven K. Knierim, AlA
Bradd A. Brown, AlA
Terry L. Gebard, AlA

David ). Sorg, AlA

Cedar Rapids

200 Fifth Ave. SE, Ste. 201
Cedar Rapids, 1A 52401
Phone (319) 363 6018
Fax (319) 363 7349

Des Moines

100 Gourt Ave., Ste. 100
Des Moines, 1A 50309
Phone (515) 309 0722
Fax  (515) 309 0725

www.opnarchitects.com






outside the building, Electrical, Lighting and Controls, Telecommunications (voice
and data), Security and video surveillance.

- Structural Design Services provided by Shuck Britson — Standard services

- Cost Estimation Services provided by Stecker-Harmsen — cost estimates provided
at end of Schematic Design, end of Design Development and at 50% Construction
Documents.

Bidding,

Standard Professional Services (Construction) - Negotiation and

Construction Administration

OPN and our consultants would complete standard professional services to see the
project Bid and to provide typical Construction Admistration services.

Assumptions:

e To evaluate the existing building conditions no destructive demolition will be
necessary, nor will any special equipment. All areas necessary to the evaluation
are assumed to be visible or accessible.

e Hazardous material testing and reports and required abatement are to be
provided by the owner outside of the scope of these services.

¢ Both the City Hall and Library project are to be designed and constructed
concurrently to utilize fewer trips on the project. Fees would need to be re-
negotiated if the projects are sequenced in a method that does not allow for them
to be designed or constructed at different times.

o No design services would be provided to assist in moving the existing library
space into temporary space during the construction phase as part of this scope of
services.

¢ Construction Administration services fees based on a 52 week construction
schedule accounting for bi-weekly construction meetings

e Services not included as part of standard services; LEED, energy modeling,
record documentation.

Owner initiated changes in project scope would require a re-evaluation in fee.
Professional Fee is based on an estimated construction cost of $3,738,897,
developed from concept work completed during the feasibility study.

Proposal Summary
Schedule: Design Phase to commense mid-December and complete in the summer of

2018. Construction start date around August 23 2018 with a duration estimate of 52
weeks.

Compensation: Professional fees to complete (Design) Phase services as outlined in this
proposal will be a lump sum fee as follows:

(Design Phase) Schematic Design, Design Development and Consturction Documents

Professional Fee $289,746

Optional Programming Review (see description above) $ 9,800
Not included in total professional fee amout below

(Construction Phase) Bidding and Negotiations, Construction Administration

ARCHITECTS

Daniel }. Thies, AlA
Steven K. Knierim, AlA
Bradd A. Brown, AlA
Terry L. Gebard, AlA

David |. Sorg, AlA

Cedar Rapids

200 Fifth Ave, SE, Sle. 201
Cedar Rapids, A 52401
Phone (319} 363 6018
Fax  {319) 363 7349

Des Moines

100 Court Ave., Ste. 100
Des Moines, 1A 50309
Phone (515) 309 0722
Fax  (515) 309 0725

www.opnarchitects.com






Professional Fee $108,288

Total Professional Fee $398.034

Reimbursable expenses are not included in Professional Fees and will be invoiced at 1.1
times actual cost. Reimbursable expenses include authorized travel, courier services,
express mail, in house printing, mileage and meal reimbursement. Estimated
Reimbursables range of $5500-$6500.

Reimbursable expense not included would be plan review fees, permits and fees,
reproduction of project documents, printing for project bid documents, photography [if
required], out-of-house digital processing.

OPN will invoice monthly based on a percentage of work completed-to-date. Payment is
due the Architect within (30) days from the date the invoice.

Professional Services Agreement between the City of Carroll and OPN Architects is
anticipated to be an AIA B101 [Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and
Architect]. Shuck-Britson, Alvine Engineering, Confluence and Stecker-Harmsen will be
sub-consultants to OPN Architects.

Again, | would like to thank you and the City of Carroll for the opportunity to present our
fee proposal. These projects will undoubtedly be of great benefit to the community and
we are excited for the opportunity to be a part of them.

If you find you have any questions or desire additional information, please do not hesitate
to call. Should you find our proposal acceptable, please sign and return this letter and we
will prepare a draft contract for your review and signature.

We thank you for considering OPN Architects and | look forward to your response.

Danielle Hermann, AlA Accepted:
OPN ARCHITECTS
Associate Principal Title:

OlIdIN

ARCHITECTS

Daniel }. Thies, AlA
Steven K. Knierim, AlA
Bradd A. Brown, AlA

Terry L. Gebard, AlA

David J. Sorg, AlA

Cedar Rapids

200 Fifth Ave. SE, Sle. 201
Cedar Rapids, IA 52401
Phone (319) 363 6018
Fax  (319) 363 7349

Des Moines

100 Court Ave., Ste. 100
Des Moines, 1A 50309
Phone (515) 309 0722
Fax (518) 309 0725

www.opnarchitects.com






OlIAIN

ARCHITECTS

Cedar Raplds

200 Fifth Avenue SE Ste, 201
Cedar Rapids, lowa 52401
(319) 363-6018

Des Moines

100 Court Avenue Ste, 100
Des Moines, lowa 50309
{515} 309-0722

lowa City

24 % 5. Clinton Straet
lowa City, lowa 52240
(319) 363-6018

Madison

301 N. Broom Street Ste. 100
Madison, Wisconsin 53703
(608} 819-0260

opnarchitects.com

CARROLL PUBLIC LIBRARY AND CITY HALL

EXHIBIT 'B'

OPN ARCHITECTS, INC.
2017 HOURLY FEE RATE

PRINCIPAL

ASSOCIATE PRINCIPAL

ASSOCIATE

PROJECT ARCHITECT/PROJECT MANAGER
ARCHITECT

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

JOB CAPTAIN

INTERN ARCHITECT

INTERN LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
SENIOR INTERIOR DESIGNER
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATOR

REVIT DRAFTSPERSON

INTERIOR DESIGNER (NCIDQ CERTIFIED)
INTERIOR DESIGNER

DIRECTORS OF BUSINESS SUPPORT
MARKETING COORDINATOR
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

COLLEGE INTERNS

$225/HOUR
$150/HOUR
$140/HOUR
$115/HOUR
$95/HOUR
$80/HOUR
$85/HOUR
$65/HOUR
$65/HOUR
$95/HOUR
$90/HOUR
$45/HOUR
$75/HOUR
$60/HOUR
$90/HOUR
$565/HOUR
$50/HOUR

$35/HOUR

These rates are subject to annual adjustment (on or about January 1) and your
contract will adjust accordingly






Init.

\@AIA Document B101" - 2007

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect

AGREEMENT made as of the Eighteenth day of December in the year Two thousand and

seventeen
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

BETWEEN the Architect’s client identified as the Owner:

(Name, legal status, address and other information)

City of Carroll
112 E. 12th Street
Carroll, TA 51401

and the Architect: = -
(Name, legal stalus, address and other information)

- OPN Architects, Inc.

100 Court Avenue, Suite 100
Des Moines, 1A 50309

k forrthey following Project:
_ (Name, location and detailed description)

17843000 Carroll City Hall
627 N. Adams Street
Carroll,; TA 51401

REMIT ALL PAYMENTS TO:
OPN Architects Inc.

200 Fifth Avenue SE, Suite 201
Cedar.Rapids, TA 52401

ATTN: Vickie Choate (vchoate@opnarchitects.com)
Becky Ulferts (bulferts@opnarchitects.com)

‘The Owner and Architect agree as follows.

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes added
information as well as revisions to
the standard form text is available
from the author and should be
reviewed. A vertical line in the left
margin of this document indicates
where the author has added
necessary information and where
the author has added to or deleted
from the original AIA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may resuit in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale,
User Notes:

(3BSADA1A)

1






Init.

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 INITIAL INFORMATION

2 ARCHITECT’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 ::SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES

4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES

5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

6 COST OF THE WORK

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

11 COMPENSATION
12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

13 SCOPE OF THE AGREVEMENT

EXHIBIT A INITIAL INFbRMATlON

ARTICLE1 INITIAL INFORMATION

§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Article 1 and in optional Exhibit A, Initial
Information: ' ‘

(Complele Exhibit 4, Initial Information, and incorporate it into the Agreement at Section 13.2, or state below
Initial Information such as details of the Project s site and program, Owner's contractors and consultants,
Architect’s consultants, Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, authorized representatives, anticipated
procurement method, and other information relevant to the Project.)

Exhibit ‘A"

§1.2 The Owner’s anticipated dates for commencement of construction and Substantial Completion of the Work are

set forth below: ;
A1 Commencement of construction date:

August 23,2018
.2 Substantial Completion date:
~ March 23, 2019

§1.3 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that such
inforination may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the
schedule, the Architect’s services and the Architect’s compensation.

ARTICLE 2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide the professional services as set forth in this Agreement.

AIA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ = 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law, This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4386204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

(3BIADATA)

for resale.
User Notes:

2






§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by
architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall
- perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of
““the Project.

§ 2.3 The Architect shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect with respect to the
Project.
§ 2.4 Except with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any
employment; interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect’s professional
Jjudgment with respect to this Project.

k § 2.5 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance for the duration of this Agreement. If any of the
requirements set forth below exceed the types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall

~reimburse the Architect for any additional cost:
(Identify types and limits of insurance coverage, and other insurance requirements applicable to the Agreement, if

any.) -
: “i1  General Liability
[ : - - Each Occufi‘ence: $1,000,000 / Aggregate: $2,000,000
2 Automébilc Liability
I ; Single Combined Limit: $1,000,000
.3 Workers’ Compensation
l i : - Per Statute
-4 Professional Liability

Per Claim: $2,000,000
Per Aggregate: $2,000,000

; | : ; .5 Excess / Umbrella Liability
I : - ~Hach Occurrence: $2;000,000 / Aggregate: $2,000,000
l | 6 Employers Liability
I | o Per‘Accident, Per Disease, and Policy Limit: $500,000
ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES
~ §3.1 The Architect’s Basic Services consist of those described in Article 3 and include usual and customary

: - structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Article 3 are Additional
‘Services, S

-§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect’s services, consult with the Owner, research applicable design
ctiteria, attend Project meetings, communicate with members of the Project team and report progress to the Ownet.

§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner’s
consultants, The Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and information
furnished by the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Architect shall provide prompt written notice to the
Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any error, omission or inconsistency in such services or information.

AlA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ = 1997). Copyright © 1874, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 3
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
] under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.

User Notes: (3BSADA1A)






§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreenient, the Architect shall submit for the Owner’s approval a
schedule for the performance of the Architect’s services. The schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for the
commencement of construction and for Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth in the Initial Information.
The schedule shall include allowances for periods of time required for the Owner’s review, for the performance of
the Owner’s consultants, and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Once
approved by the Owner, time limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded
by the Architect or Owner. With the Owner’s approval, the Architect shall adjust the schedule, if necessary, as the
Project proceeds until the commencement of construction,

§ 3.1.4 The Architect sha 11 not be responsible for an Owner’s directive or substitution made without the Architect’s
approval

§3.1.5 The Alchltect shall at appropriate times, contact the governmental authorities required to approve the
Construction Documents and the entities providing utility services to the Project. In designing the Project, the
Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements imposed by such governmental authorities and by such
entities providing utility services.

§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for filing documents
required for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§3.2 SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review laws,

codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect’s services.

§ 3.2.:2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule, budget for the Cost
of the Work, Project site, and the proposed procurement or delivery method and other Initial Information, each in
terms of the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any

= inconsistencies discovered in the information, and (2) other information or consulting services that may be
reasonably needed for thé Project.

§3.2. 3 The AlChlteCt shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and shall discuss with the Owner
alternative apploaches to design and construction of the Project, including the feasibility of incorporating
__environmentally 1espons1ble design approaches. The Architect shall reach an understanding with the Owner

- regarding the requirements of the Project.

§3.24 Basédkon the PineCt’s requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present for
the Ownel S apploval a plehmmaly de51gn illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components.

§ 3.25 Based on the Owner’s app10va1 of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design
Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other
documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and may
include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital modeling. Preliminary selections of
major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing,

§ 3.2.5.1 The Architect shall consider environmentally responsible design alternatives, such as material choices and
building orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that
is consistent with the Owner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain other
environmentally responsible design services under Article 4.

- §3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together
with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent
with the Owner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit to the Owner an estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with
Section 6.3.

AlA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B161™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 4
this AJA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
] under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.
(3BYADA1A)

User Notes:






§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Docunients to the Owner, and request the Owner’s
approval,

§ 3.3 DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE SERVICES
§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner’s authorization of
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare

- Design Development Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and
describe the development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist of drawings and other
documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building
systems to fix and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and
electrical systems, and such other elements as may be appropriate. The Design Development Documents shall also
include outline specifications that identify major materials and systems and establish in general their quality levels.

§3.3.2 The Architect shall update the estimate of the Cost of the Work.

§3.33 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any
adjustments to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Ownet’s approval.

§3.4 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE SERVICES

§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner’s authotization of

any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare

- Construction Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and describe the

further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist of Drawings and

Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels of materials and systems and other requirements for the

construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that in order to construct the Work the Contractor

will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar submittals,
 which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4.

§ 3.4.2 The Architect shall incorporate into the Construction Documents the design requirements of governmental
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§ 3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the
“development and preparation of (1) bidding and procurement information that describes the time, place and
conditions of bidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (2) the form of agreement between the Owner and
Contractor; and (3) the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary and other Conditions).
The Architect shall also compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contract for Construction and
Spemﬁcatlons and may include bidding requirements and sample forms,

§ 3.4.4 The Architect shall update the estimate for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.4.5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any adjustments
to the estimate of the Cost of the ka take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the Owner’s
approval,

§ 3.5 BIDDING OR NEGOTIATION PHASE SERVICES

§3.51 GENERAL

The Architect shall ‘assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner’s

approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining either competitive

bids or negotiated proposals; (2) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid
- or proposal, if any; and, (4) awarding and preparing contracts for construction.

_ §3.5.2 COMPETITIVE BIDDING
-§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents.

§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by
.1 procuring the reproduction of Bidding Documents for distribution to prospective bidders;

AIA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 5
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
] under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.
User Notes: (3BOADA1A)






Init.

2 distributing the Bidding Documents to prospective bidders, requesting their return upon completion of
the bidding process, and maintaining a log of distribution and retrieval and of the amounts of
deposits, if any, received from and returned to prospective bidders;

.3 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders;

A4 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and
interpretations of the Bidding Documents to all prospective bidders in the form of addenda; and

.5 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and distributing the
bidding results, as directed by the Owner.

§ 3.5.2.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, and
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all prospective bidders.

§ 3.5.3 NEGOTIATED PROPOSALS

§‘3.‘5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements and proposed Contract Documents.

§ 3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtaining proposals by
A procuring the reproduction of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors, and
requesting their return upon completion of the negotiation process;
.2 organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; and
.3 . participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a summary
report of the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner.

§ 3533 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, and
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all prospective contractors.

§ 3.6 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

- §3.6.1 GENERAL ;
- §3,6.1:1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set

forth below and in AIA Document A201™-2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, If the Owner

~and Contractor modify AIA Document A201-2007, those modifications shall not affect the Architect’s services

under this Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect amend this Agreement.

' § 3.6.1.2 The Architect shall advise élnrd‘ éonsult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The

Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The
Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the
Architect be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the
Contract Documents. The Architect shall be responsible for the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions, but shall not
have control over or charge of;-and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other
petsons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.3, the Architect’s responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services commences
with the award of the Contract for Construction and terminates on the date the Architect issues the final Certificate

for Payment.

§3.6.2 EVALUATIONS OF THE WORK

§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise
required in Section 4.3.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work
completed;-and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the
Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents, However, the Architect shall not
be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On
the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of
the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract Documents and
from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and deficiencies observed in

the Work.

AlA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997), Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes:

(3BOADATA)

6






Init.

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents, Whenever
the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to require inspection or
testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not such Work is
fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith
either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the
Contractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees or other persons or entities
performing portions of the Work.

§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the

_Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Arclntect s response to such requests

shall be made in wutmg within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

~§ 3.6.24 Interpretatlons and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable
from the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, shall not

show partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith, The

~ Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the

Contract Documents.

§3. 6 2.5 Unless the Ownex and Contractor designate another person to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, as that
term is defined in AIA Document A201-2007, the Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the
Ownel and Contlactm as plovxded in the Contract Documents.

* §3.6.3 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR

§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such

- amounts, The Architect’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on the
 Architect’s evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the Contractor’s
- Appllcatlon for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge information and belief, the Work has
progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The foregoing representations are subject (1) to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract
Documents upon Substantial Completion, (2) to results of subsequent tests and inspections, (3) to correction of

‘minor deviations from the Contlact Documents prior to completion, and (4) to specific qualifications expressed by
: the Architect.

§ 3.6.3.2 Thé issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made

exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from
Subcontractors and material suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to
payment, or (4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of

~the Contract Sum.

§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment.

§3.6.4 SUBMITTALS
-§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Contractor’s submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or withhold

approval. The Architect’s action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with the approved submittal
schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient
time in the Architect’s professional judgment to permit adequate review.

§ 3,6.4.2.In accordance with the Architect-approved submittal schedule, the Architect shall review and approve or

‘takek other appropriate action upon the Contractor’s submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples,
~ but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept
expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is not for the purpose of determining the accuracy

and completeness of other information such as dimensions, quantities, and installation or performance of equipment
or systems, which are the Contractor’s responsibility. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety
precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods,

AIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes: (3BIADA1A)

7






techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an
assembly of which the item is a component.

§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment, the Architect shall specify the
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Architect shall review Shop
Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the design professional retained by the
Contractor that bear such professional’s seal and signature when submitted to the Architect. The Architect shall be
entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals
pelfouned ot provided by such design professionals.

§ 3.6.4.4 Subject to the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information
about the Contract Documents. The Architect shall set forth in the Contract Documents the requirements for requests
for information. Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the

~ specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The
Architect’s response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or otherwise with
reasonable promiptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and
‘Specifications in response to requests for information.

§ 3.6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the Contractor in
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§3.6.5 CHANGES IN THE WORK
§3.6.5.1 The Architect may authorize minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract
Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Subject to
. the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the
; Ownel 'S apploval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents.

; § 3.6,5.2 The Archltect shall ‘malntam records relative to changes in the Work.

-§3.6.6 PROJECT COMPLETION
§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect shall conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the

_ date of final completion issue Cexﬁﬁcates of Substantial Completion; receive from the Contractor and forward to

 the Owner;for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract
Documents and assembled by the Contractor; and issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection
‘1ndncat1ng the Woxk complies w1th thc requirements of the Contract Documents.

- §3.6.6.2 The Architect’s mspeotlons shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and completeness of the list submitted by the
Contractor of Work to be completed or corrected.

§'3.6.6.3 When the ‘Work is found to be substantially complete, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the
balance of the Contract Sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, including the amount to be retained from the
Contract Sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the Work.

- §3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the Contractor: (1)
“consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (2)
affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (3) any other

documentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial Completion,
the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the facility
operations and performance.

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ —~ 1997}, Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 8
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
] under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale,
User Notes: (3B9ADATA)






ARTICLE 4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES

§ 4.1 Additional Services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The
Architect shall provide the listed Additional Services only if specifically designated in the table below as the
Architect’s responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2.

(Designate the Additional Services the Architect shall provide in the second column of the table below. In the third
column indicate whether the service description is located in Section 4.2 or in an attached exhibit. If in an exhibit,

identify the exhibit,)
Additional Services Responsibility Location of Service Description
(Architect, Owner | (Section 4.2 below or in an exhibit
or Not Provided) attached to this document and
1. ; : identified below)
§4.1.1 Programming (B202™-2009) Not Provided -
‘ ‘ Add Service
§ 4.1.2  Multiple preliminary designs Not Provided -
- ‘ Add Service
§ 4.1.3 - Measured drawings - Not Provided -
‘ ' Add Service
§ 4.1.4 ' Existing facilities surveys Not Provided -
: Add
' ; Service
§ 4.1.5 - Site Evaluation and Planning (B203T™™-2007) Not Provided -
~ , Add Service
§ 4.1.6 : Building Information Modeling (E203™-2008) | Not Provided -
o Add Service
§ 41.7  Civil engineering: Owner - Survey
'§4.1.8 Landscape design Confluence See Exhibit 'A’
§4.1.9 Architectural Interior Design (B252™-2007) Architect See Exhibit 'A’
§ 4110 Value Analysis (B204™-2007) Not Provided -
. 2 Add Service
§ 4.1.11  Detailed cost estimating.: = Steck-Harmsen See Exhibit 'A'
:§ 4.1.12 .. On-site Project Representation (B207™-2008) | Not Provided -
. . . Add Services
§ 4.1.13 " Conformed construction documents Not Provided -
L ' Add Service
§4.1.14 As-Designed Record drawings Not Provided -
' ‘ ~ s Add Service
§ 4.1.15 "-As-Constructed Record drawings Not Provided -
: , : Add Service
§4.1.16 Post occupancy evaluation Not Provided -
: o 3 Add Service
§ 41.17 Facility Support Services (B210™-2007) Not Provided -
‘ 5 Add Service
§4.1.18 Tenant-related services Not Provided -
‘ Add Service
§4.1.19 Coordination of Owner’s consultants Not Provided -
: Add Service
§ 4.1.20  Telecommunications/data design Alvine See Exhibit 'A'
Engineering
§ 4.1.21  Security Evaluation and Planning (B206™— Not Provided -
2007) Add Service
§4.1.22 Commissioning (B211™-2007) Not Provided -
Add Service
§ 41.23 Extensive environmentally responsible design | Not Provided -
Add Service
Ini AlA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
nit. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 9
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may resuit in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
1 f\;r:c::gatge law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

User Notes: (3BIADA1A)






Init.

§4.1.24 LEED® Certification (B214™-2012) Not Provided -
Add Service

§ 4.1.25 Fast-track design services Not Provided -
o Add Service

§ 41.26  Historic Preservation (B205™-2007) Not Applicable

§ 4.1.27 . Furniture, Furnishings, and Equipment Design | Not Provided -
(B253™-2007) Add Service

' §4.2 Insert a description of each Additional Service designated in Section 4.1 as the Architect’s responsibility, if not

further described in an exhibit attached to this document.

k k§ 4.3 Additional Services may be provided after execution of this Agreement, without invalidating the Agreement,

Except for services required due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services provided in accordance with

 this Section 4.3 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an appropriate adjustment in
~the Architect’s schedule

§4.3,1 Upon lecogmzmg the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner

with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect shall not
proceed to prov1de the followmg services until the Architect receives the Owner’s written authorization:

1 Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given by
the Owrer, or a material change in the Project including, but not limited to, size, quality, complexity,
the Owner’s schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery method;

2 Services necessitated by the Owner’s request for extensive environmentally responsible design
alternatives, such as unique system designs, in-depth material research, energy modeling, or LEED®

- certification; :
.3 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by the enactment or
 revision of codes, laws or regulations or official interpretations;
4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure of
pelformance on the part of the Owner or the Owner’s consultants or contractors;

.5 Preparing digital data for transmission to the Owner’s consultants and contractors, or to other Owner
authorized recipients;

6. Preparation of design and documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the Owner;

.1 “Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing;

.8 . Preparation for, and attendance at a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where the

~ Architect is party thereto;
-9 Evaluation of the qualifications of bidders or persons providing proposals;

.10 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction;

cior

A1 Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect.

' § 4.3.2 To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall provide the following Additional Services,
~ notify the Owner with reasonable promptness, and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. If the
‘Owner subsequently determines that all or parts of those services are not required, the Owner shall give prompt

written notice to the Architect, and the Owner shall have no further obligation to compensate the Architect for those
services:
.1.“Reviewing a Contractor’s submittal out of sequence from the submittal schedule agreed to by the
Architect;
.2 Responding to the Contractor’s requests for information that are not prepared in accordance with the
' Contract Documents or where such information is available to the Contractor from a careful study
“~and comparison of the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided information,
Contractor-prepared coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation;
.3 Preparing Change Orders and Construction Change Directives that require evaluation of Contractor’s
proposals and supporting data, or the preparation or revision of Instruments of Service;
.4 EBvaluating an extensive number of Claims as the Initial Decision Maker;

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects, All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe ¢ivil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale,

User Notes: (3BIADA1A)

10






Init.

.5 Evaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner or Contractor and making subsequent revisions to
Instruments of Service resulting therefrom; or

.6 To the extent the Architect’s Basic Services are affected, providing Construction Phase Services 60
days after (1) the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or (2) the anticipated date of Substantial
Completion identified in Initial Information, whichever is eatlier.

§ 4.3.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additional

“Services. When the limits below are reached, the Architect shall notify the Ownet:

1 Two (2) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittal of the
Contractor

.2 Fifeteen ( 15) visits to the site by the Architect over the duration of the Project during construction

.3 Two ( 2) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is
substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents

4. One (1) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion

§4.3.4 I the ser vices covered by this Agreement have not been completed within Thirty ( 30 ) weeks of August 23,
2018, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect’s services beyond that time shall be compensated

as Additlonal Serv1ces

ARTICLE 5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner
1ega1dmg requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the
Owner’s objectives, schedule, constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships, flexibility,
expandability, special equipment, systems and site requirements. Within 15 days after receipt of a written request
from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to
evaluate, give notice of or enforce lien rights.

 §5.2The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the budget

for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner’s other costs; and, (3) reasonable contingencies

“related to all of these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the

Work, the Owner shall not1fy the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall thereafter agree to a corresponding
change in the PrOJect’s scope and quahty

§ 5, 3 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the Project.
The Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect’s submittals in a tlmely manner in order to avoid
unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect’s services.

- § 5.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for

the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands;
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and
contours of the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements
and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below
grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark.

§ 5.5 The Owner shall furnish setvices of geotechnical engineers, which may include but are not limited to test
borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic
evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil

conditions, with written repotts and appropriate recommendations.

- §5.6 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect.

Upon the Architect’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of setvices in the contracts between the

- Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated

in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional Service, when the Architect requests
such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of the Project. The Owner shall
require that its consultants maintain professional liability insurance as appropriate to the services provided.

AIA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects, All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the faw. This document was produced by AIA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

(3BOADA1A)

for resale.
User Notes:

11






nit.

§ 5.7 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as
structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials,

§ 5.8 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests.

§ 5.9 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any fault or
defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service.

k§ 5.10 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, or when direct communications have been specially

authorized, the Owner shall endeavor to communicate with the Contractor and the Architect’s consultants through
the Architect about matters arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents. The Owner shall promptly notify
the Architect of any direct communications that may affect the Architect’s services.

§ 5.11 Before eXecuting the Contract for Construction, the Owner shall coordinate the Architect’s duties and
responsibilities set forth in the Contract for Construction with the Architect’s services set forth in this Agreement.
The Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and Contractor,

_including the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

§ 5.12 The Owner Shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and shall
obligate the Contractor to provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress.

: ‘AkRTlCLE 6 COST OF THE WORK
:.§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all

elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include contractors’ general conditions costs,

- overhead and profit. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the Architect, the costs of the land,
rights-of-way, financing, contingencies for changes in the Work or other costs that are the responsibility of the
- Owner. . e

, §‘6.‘2 The Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and may be adjusted
throughout the Project as required under Sections 5.2, 6.4 and 6.5. Evaluations of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of

the Work, the preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work and updated estimates of the Cost of the Work prepared
by the Architect, represent the Architect’s judgment as a design professional. It is recognized, however, that neither
the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, materials or equipment; the Contractor’s methods of
determining bid prices; or competitive bidding, market or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, the Architect cannot
and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner’s budget for the Cost
of the Work or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work or evaluation prepared or agreed to by the Architect.

- §6.31In pi'éparing estimate‘s of the Cost of Work, the Architect shall be permitted to include contingencies for

design, bidding and price escalation; to determine what materials, equipment, component systems and types of
construction are to be included in the Contract Documents; to make reasonable adjustments in the program and
scope of the Project; and to include in the Contract Documents alternate bids as may be necessary to adjust the
estimated Cost of the Work to meet the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, The Architect’s estimate of the

- Cost of the Work shall be based on current area, volume or similar conceptual estimating techniques. If the Owner

requests detailed cost estimating services, the Architect shall provide such services as an Additional Service under
Article 4. :

§ 6.4 If the Bidding or Negotiation Phase has not commenced within 90 days after the Architect submits the
Construction Documents to the Owner, through no fault of the Architect, the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the
‘Work shall be adjusted to reflect changes in the general level of prices in the applicable construction market.

§ 6.5 If at any time the Architect’s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the
Work, the Architect shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project’s size, quality or
budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments.

§ 6.6 If the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase
Services is exceeded by the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, the Owner shall

AlA Document B101™ — 2007 {formerly B151™ — 1997}, Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

(3BIADA1A)

for resale.
User Notes:

12






give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work;

authorize rebidding or renegotiating of the Project within a reasonable time;

terminate in accordance with Section 9.5;

in consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce
the Cost of the Work; or

.5 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative.

B

§ 6.7 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.6.4, the Architect, without additional compensation, shall
modify the Construction Documents as necessary to comply with the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work at the
-conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase Services, or the budget as adjusted under Section 6.6.1. The
Architect’s modification of the Construction Documents shall be the limit of the Architect’s responsibility under this

Atticle 6.

ARTICLE 7. COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

§ 7.1 The Architect and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Setvice, or any other information, the
transmitting party is the copyught owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to
transmit such information for its use on the Project. If the Owner and Architect intend to transmit Instruments of
“Setrvice or any other information or documentation in digital form, they shall endeavor to establish necessary

protocols governing such transmissions.

§ 7.2 The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official
regulatmy requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication

in derogation of the reserved rights of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants.

- §7.3 Upon execution of this Agleement the Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the
‘Architect’s Instruments of Service solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering
and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, including prompt payment

—of all sums when due, under this Agreement. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the
Architect’s consultants consistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to

authorize the Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers, as well as the
Owner’s consultants and separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the Instruments of Service solely
and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the Architect rightfully terminates
this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9.4, the license granted in this Section 7.3 shall terminate.

§7: 341 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the author of the Instruments of
~ Service, the Owner releases the Architect and Architect’s consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising
- from such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
- Architect and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes
“of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner’s use of
the Instruments of Service under this Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section 7.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner
_ rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9.4,

- § 7.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied
under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license

" granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the
Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner’s sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect’s
consultants, ...

ARTICLE 8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

-§81 GENERAL -
:-§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, or

otherwise, against the other arising out of or related to this Agreement in accordance with the requirements of the
method of binding dispute resolution selected in this Agreement within the period specified by applicable law, but in
any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Architect
waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 8.1.1.

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 {formerly B151™ = 1997), Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. AH rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 13
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
I under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA1A)






§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect waive all rights against
each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents and employees of the other for damages, except such
rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in ATA Document A201-2007, General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of the
contractors, consultants, agents and employees of any of them similar waivers in favor of the other parties
enumerated herein.

§ 8.1.3 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential
damages due to either party’s termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7.

§ 8,2 MEDIATION
- §8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien
arising out of the Architect’s services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with
- the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution.

§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between
them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American
Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of
the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Agreement, and
filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of
a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in
advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days
from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration
proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s)
-and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

- § 823 The partiés _‘shalrl share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding
“dispute resolution shall be the following:
(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution below,
- or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will
 be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction.)

[ ] Arbiti‘ation pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement

[X] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[1 Other (Specify)

(Paragraphs Deleted)

ARTICLE 9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be

- considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect’s option, cause for suspension
of performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give
seven days’ written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of
services. Before resuming services, the Architect shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses

AIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B1561™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights

Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S, Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 14
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
/ under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not
for resale,
User Notes: (3BY9ADATA)






Init.

incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining
services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the
interruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining services and the time

schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the

- Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days” written notice.

§ 9.4 Either party may“terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice should the other party
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating
the termination.

§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Architect for the
Owner’s convenience and without cause.

. § 9.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Architect, the Architect shall be compensated for services

performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and all Termination Expenses as
defined in Section 9.7

§9.7 Termination Expen‘ses'are in addition to compensation for the Architect’s services and include expenses
directly attributable to termination for which the Architect is not otherwise compensated, plus an amount for the
Architect’s anticipated profit on the value of the services not performed by the Architect.

§ 9.8 The Owner’s Tights to use the Architect’s Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this

* Agreement are set forth in Article 7 and Section 11.9.

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, except that if the
parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern

Section 8.3.

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agmement shall have the same meaning as those in ATA Document A201-2007, General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction.

§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal
- representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the

written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for
the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this Agreement.

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be

. ‘submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests

the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the
Architect for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or
consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement.

§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor

~ofa third party against either the Owner or Architect.

§10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery,
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any
form at the Project site.

AIA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1874, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights

reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 15
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible

under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale,
User Notes: (3BYADA1TA)






Init.

§ 10.7 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the
Project among the Architect’s promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable
access to the completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect’s materials shall not include
the Owner’s confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of
the specific information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide
professional credit for the Architect in the Owner’s promotional materials for the Project.

'§10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated by the other party as “confidential” or

“business proprietary,” the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it
to any other person except to (1) its employees, (2) those who need to know the content of such information in order
to perform services or construction solely and exclusively for the Project, or (3) its consultants and contractors
whose contracts include similar restrictions on the use of confidential information.

ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION

§ 11.1 For the Architect’s Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as

- follows: =~ ~

(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.)

(Design Phase) Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction Documents

Professional Fee $128,650

(Construciton Phase) Bidding and Negotiations, Construction Administration
-Professional Fee $53,482

Tbtal Professional Feé $182,132
'REMIT ALL PAYMENTS TO:

OPN Architects Inc,

200 Fifth Avenue SE, Suite 201
Cedar Rapids, TA 52401

ATTN: Vickie Choate (vchoate@opnai‘chitects.com)
Becky Ulferﬁs (bulfel‘ts@opltarchitects.com)

§‘11.2 For Additional Services dgéignated in Section 4.1, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services to which particular methods of
compensation apply.) . o

Stipulated Sum per service or per Standard Hourly Rates

§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.3, the
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.)

Per Standard Houﬂy Rates

§ 11.4 Compensation for Additional Services of the Architect’s consultants when not included in Section 11.2 or
11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus Ten percent ( 10 %), or as otherwise stated below:

(Paragraph Deleted)

(Table Deleted)

AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B1561™ —~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects, All rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes: (3BSADA1A)

16






Init.

(Paragraph Deleted)

§ 11.7 The hourly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants, if any, are set forth
below. The rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect’s and Architect’s consultants’ normal review

~“practices.

(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

See Exhibit 'B'

- Employee or Category Rate

§11.8 COMPENSATION FOR REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

§11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and include
“expenses incurred by the ‘Architect and the Architect’s consultants directly related to the Project, as follows:

1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;

.2 : Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project Web sites,
‘and extranets; .

3 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

4. Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form documents;

.5 Postage, handling and delivery;

6 - Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner;

7.. Renderings, models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by the

~ Owner; :

.8 Architect’s Consultant’s expense of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this
Project, or the expense of additional insurance coverage or limits if the Owner requests such

. _insurance in excess of that normally carried by the Architect’s consultants;

.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses;

.10 _ Site office expenses; and

A1- "Other similar Project-related expenditures.

§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the
Architect’s consultants. Reimbursable expenses are not included in Professional Fees and will be invoiced at 1.1
times actual cost. Reimbursable expenses include authorized travel, courier services, express mail, in house
printing, mileage and meal reimbursement. Estimated Reimbursable range between $4,000 - $5,00.

Reimbursable expense not included would be plan review fees, permits and fees, reproduction of project documents,
printing for project bid documents, photography [if required], out-of-house digital processing.

§ 11.9 COMPENSATION FOR USE OF ARCHITECT'S INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE
If the Owner terminates the Architect for its convenience under Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this
Agreement under Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay a licensing fee as compensation for the Owner’s continued use of

‘the Architect’s Instruments of Service solely for purposes of completing, using and maintaining the Project as

follows:
Not Applicable

§11.10 PAYMENTS TO THE ARCHITECT
§11.10.1 An initial payment of Zero Dollars (§ 0 ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the
minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final invoice.

§ 11.10.2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed.
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid Sixty ( 60 ) days after
the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate prevailing
from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect.

AlA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. Al rights
reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

(3BSADA1A)

for resale,
User Notes:

17






(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

15 % monthly

§ 11.10.3 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect’s compensation to impose a penalty or
liquidated damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in
the Work unless the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution

proceeding.

§ 11.10.4 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Additional Services, and services performed on
the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times.

- ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:

12.1 179D(d)(4) Energy Tax Allocation for Designers of Government-Owned Buildings. The Owner agrees to
allocate to the Architect and the Architect's participating and responsible Consultants all Section 179D tax
deductions dedicated the Designers of energy efficient commercial property, provided these commercial property
improvements qualify for allocations per the Energy Policy Act of 2005, Section 179D, Notice 2008-40. Upon
achieving Substantial Completion for the Project, the Architect will prepare and submit the Form of Allocation letter
to the Owner for approval on behalf of the design team and participating Consultants. The Architect and Architect's

~ participating Consultants will maintain records as are sufficient to establish the entitlement to, and amount of, any
deduction claimed by the Consultant relevant to 197D per IRS regulations.

Reference: As part of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, Congress enacted Section 179D of the Internal Revenue Code
in order to encourage the energy efficient design and construction of new or rehabilitated properties. Notice 2008-
40 of Internal Revenue Bulletin 2008-14 sets forth guidance as to the allocation off the section 179D dedcution to
designers of government owned buildings. Notice 2008-40 provides that in the case of a government owned
property (Federal,-State or Local government or political subdivision) the deduction for energy efficient buildings
may be allocated to the designer for the taxable year that includes the date on which the property was placed in
service.: These tax allocations are not possible to claim as a government enetity and are therefore assigned to the
responsible designer(s) of qualifying energy efficient property incorporated into the Project. A designer may

- include, for example, an architect, engineer, contractor, environmental consultant or energy services provider who
creates the technical specification for a new building or an addition to an existing building that incorporates energy
efficient commercial property allowed under seciton 179D.
ARTICLE13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

- §13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be
amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Architect.

§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below:
.1 AIA Document B101™-2007, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect

(Paragraph Deleted)

.3 “Other documents:
(List other documents, if any, including Exhibit A, Initial Information, and additional scopes of

service, if any, forming part of the Agreement.)

Exhibit'A' - Proposal
Exhibit 'B' - Standard Hourly Rates

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

N AlA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ -~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American [nstitute of Architects. All rights
Init. reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of 18
this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale,
User Notes: (3BOADA1A)






Init.

OWNER ARCHITECT

(Signature) (Signature)
Eric Jensen, Mayor Danielle C. Hermann, AIA, Associate Principal
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

AlA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects, All rights

reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of

this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible

under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not

for resale.
User Notes:

(3BIADATA)

19






Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA® Document B101™ - 2007

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has
added to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from
the original AIA text. Added text Is shown underfined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text.

Noté: This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any
part of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated
simultaneously by AIA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017.

PAGE 1

AGREEMENT made as of the Eighteenth day of December in the year Two thousand and seventeen

City of Carroll
112 E. 12th Street

Carroll, 1A 51401

OPN Architects, In¢.
100 Court-Avenue, Suite 100
Des Moines. 1A 50309

17843000 Catroll City Hall
027 N. Adams Street
Carroll, TA 51401

REMIT ALL PAYMENTS TO:

OPN Architects Inc,

. 200 Fifth Avenue SE, Suite 201

" Cedar Rapids, IA 52401

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ = 1997), Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. Al rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BIADATA)






ATTN: Vickie Choate (vchoate@opnarchitects.com)

Becky Ulferts (bulferts@opnarchitects.com)

PAGE 2
Exhibit 'A’
August 23,2018
o March 23, 2019
PAGE 3

Each Occurrence: $1.000,000 / Aggregate: $2,000,000

Single Combined Limit: $1.000.000

Per Statute

Per Claim: $2.000,000

Per Aggregate: $2.000.000

5 Excess / Umbrella Liability

Each Occurrence: $2.000,000 / Aggregate: $2,000,000

.6  Emplovers Liability

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BYADATA)






Per Accident, Per Disease, and Policy Limit:

500,000

- PAGE 10
-+1-§4.4.1 Programming (B202™-2009) Not Provided -
; | : Add
Service
§4.1.2 Multiple preliminary designs Not Provided -
Add Service
§4.1.3 Measured drawings Not Provided -
: Add Service
§ 4.1.4 . Existing facilities surveys Not Provided -
= Service
§ 4.1.5  Site Evaluation and Planning (B203™-2007) Not Provided -
. - Add Service
§ 4.1.6 - Building Information Modeling 20216 Not Provided -
2008)(E203T™-2008) = = Add Service
§4.1.7. Civil engineering Owner - Survey
1.§4.1.8 .. Landscape design Confluence See Exhibit 'A'
§4.1.9  Architectural Interior Design (B252™-2007) Architect See Exhibit ‘A’
[/§4.1.10  Value Analysis (B204™-2007) Not Provided -
S e Add Service
§ 4111 Detailed cost estimating Steck-Harnisen See Exhibit 'A'
§ 4.1.12 - On-site Project Representation (B207™-2008) | Not Provided -
S [ ; Add Services
§4.1.13 Conformed construction documents Not Provided -
. e . Add Service
§4.1.14 As-Designed Record drawings” Not Provided -
1 Db o - Add Service
§4.1.15 As-Constructed Record drawings Not Provided -
e - Add Service
§ 4.1.16 . Post occupancy evaluation” Not Provided -
S T Add Service
§4.1.17 Facility Support Services (B210™-2007) Not Provided -
~ L Add Service
§4.1.18 Tenant-related services Not Provided -
Sty Add Service
§ 4.1.19 Coordination of Owner’s consultants Not Provided -
1o ‘ Add Service
§4.1.20 Telecommunications/data design Alvine See Exhibit ‘A’
Engineering
§4.1.21 Security Evaluation and Planning (B206™-— Not Provided -
2007) s Add Service
§4.1.22 Commissioning (B211™-2007) Not Provided -
]l Add Service
| §4.1.23  Extensive environmentally responsible design | Not Provided -
. i Add Service
§4.1.24 LEED® Certification (B214™-2012) Not Provided -
Add Service
§4.1.25 Fast-track design services Not Provided -
Add Service

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ — 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADA1A)






§4.1.26 Historic Preservation (B205T™-2007) Not Applicable
§ 4.1.27 Furniture, Furnishings, and Equipment Design | Not Provided -
(B2531M-2007) Add Service
~PAGE 11

1 Two (2)reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittal of the
Contractor

.2 Fifeteen (:15) visits to the site by the Architect over the duration of the Project during construction

3 Two ( 29 ihspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is
- substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents

4 One (‘ 1) inspéétions for any portion of the Work to determine final completion

§ 4.3.4 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within -(—)-nenths-of the date-ofthis
Agreement-Thirty (30 ) weeks of August 23, 2018, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect’s
services beyond that time shall be compensated as Additional Services.

PAGE 14

[ X ] : Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ = 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale,

User Notes: (3BSADATA)






‘PAGE 16

(Design Phase) Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction Documents

Professional Fee - $128.650
Construciton Phase Bidding and Negotiations, Construction Administration
Professional Fee $53.482
Total Professional Fee $182.132
~ REMIT ALL PAYMENTS TO:
OPN Architects Inc.

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale,

User Notes: (3BYADA1TA)






200 Fifth Avenue SE, Suite 201

Cedar Rapids, 1A 52401

e

‘A‘TTN :_Vickie Choate (vchoate@opnarchitects.com)

‘ Becky Ulferts ( bulferts@opnarchitects.com)

T

Stipulated Sum per service or per Standard Hourly Rates

Per Standard Hourly Rates

§ 1 1,.‘4 Compensation for Additional Services of the Architect’s consultants when not included in Section 11.2 or
11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus Ten percent ( 10 %), or as otherwise stated below:

El. i Desion Phas 3 %)
Construetion Phase pereent{ %)
PAGE17 . -

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B1617* — 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BOADATA)






See Exhibit 'B'

xe

§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the
Architect’s consultantsplus—pereent-{—94)-, Reimbursable expenses are not included in Professional Fees and will
be-invoiced at 1.1 times actual cost. Reimbursable expenses include authorized travel, courier services, express
mail, in house untm mileage and meal reimbursement. Estimated Reimbursable range between $4.000 -

ef—the—expense&«meu&ed—Rennbmsab]e expense not included would be plan review fees, permits and fees,

reproduction of project documents printing for project bid documents, photography [if required], out-of-house

“digital processmg

anx

Not Applicable

§ 11 10 1An 1n1t1al payment of Zero Dollars ($ 0 ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the
- minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner’s account in the final invoice.

- §11.10.2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed.
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s invoice. Amounts unpaid Sixty ( 60 ) days after
the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate prevailing

~ from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect.

PAGE 18

15 % monthly

Tax Allocation for Designers of Government-Owned Buildings. The Owner agrees to
allocate to the Architect and the Architect's participating and responsible Consultants all Section 179D tax
deductionsdedicated the Designers of energy efficient commercial property, provided these commercial property
- improvements qualify for allocations per the Energy Policy Act of 2005, Section 179D, Notice 2008-40. Upon

achieving Substantial Completion for the Project, the Architect will prepare and submit the Form of Allocation letter

to the Owner for approval on behalf of the design team and participating Consultants. The Architect and Architect's

participating Consultants will maintain records as are sufficient to establish the entitlement to, and amount of, any

deduction claimed by the Consultant relevant to 197D per IRS regulations.

; Reference: As part of the Energy Policy Act of 2005, Congress enacted Section 179D of the Internal Revenue Code
in order to encourage the energy efficient design and construction of new or rehabilitated properties. Notice 2008-
40 of Internal Revenue Bulletin 2008-14 sets forth guidance as to the allocation off the section 179D dedcution to

designers of government owned buildings. Notice 2008-40 provides that in the case of a government owned

efficient buildings

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ ~ 2007 (formerly B151™ ~ 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.
4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3BSADA1A)






may be allocated to the designer for the taxable year that includes the date on which the property was placed in
service. These tax allocations are not possible to claim as a government enetity and are therefore assigned to the
responsible designer(s) of qualifying energy efficient property incorporated into the Project. A designer may
include, for example, an architect, engineer, contractor, environmental consultant or energy services provider who
creates the technical specification for a new building or an addition to an existing building that incorporates energy
efficient commercial property allowed under seciton 179D.

Exhibit'A' - Proposal

Exhibit 'B" - Standard Hourly Rates

PAGE 19

- Eric Jensen, Mavor - Danielle C. Hermann, ATA, Associate Principal

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document B101™ = 2007 (formerly B151™ = 1887). Copyright ©® 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The

American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties.
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No.

4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (3B9ADA1A)






Certification of Document's Authenticity
AIA® Document D401™ — 2003

I, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the attached final document

simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017

under Order No. 4396204884 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final

- document I made no changes to the original text of AIA® Document B101™ - 2007, Standard Form of Agreement
Between Owner and Architect, as published by the ATA in its software, other than those additions and deletions shown

in the associated Additions and Deletions Report.

(Signed).

“(Title)

'(Da{eeﬂ

AIA Document D401™ = 2003. Copyright © 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may 1
result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law, This document was produced by AlA

software at 18:21:21 on 12/11/2017 under Order No. 4396204884 which expires on 03/04/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3BSADA1A)






December 18, 2017

Mr. Mike Pogge-Weaver
City Manager

City of Carroll

112 E. 5 Street

Carroll, 1A 51401-2799

RE: Proposal for Phase Il Services (Basic Services) for City of Carroll
City Hall

Mike:

OPN could not be more excited to be a part of this project. Please find below the scope of
services for the Library Project located at 627 N. Adams St. Carroll, IA 51401.

We have separated out the Library and the City Hall into two individual fee proposals. We
have also divided up the fee for Design Phase services from Bidding and Construction
Administration services. The follow is specific to the City Hall building only. A lum sum
professional fee for the two design phases are indicated below.

Programming Review — Additional services if desired

This phase of the work is intended to review, analyze and confirm prior space needs work
that was performed for the City Hall during the Concept Development. This is outside of
the standard design services. The City Hall program was initially established during
conceptual phase to get a estimation of space needs. Assumptions have already been
made based on meetings between OPN and city staff from the summer of 2016 fo allow a
rough space needs to be established. We would like to offer another look at confirming
space needs with the City and its staff and confirm the space allocations identified in the
Concept study. Alternatively the city could also internally confirm the space need
requirements and provide that information to OPN versus an additional programming
phase. If the city choses to include these service in our scope, OPN would provide an
additional meeting with the staff to review the existing program and provide meeting
minute documentation of the updates. A full programming document would not be included
in this scope of work.

¢ The current Commercial Savings Bank site at 627 N. Adams Street.

Standard Professional Services (Design) — Schematic Design, Design Development
and Construction Documents

OPN and our consultants would prepare design documents read to be bid in a typical
Design — Bid — Build Public Project delivery method.
Consultant Services provided:

- Landscape Design Services provided by Confluence — Single design concept of

site design and landscaping..

ARCHITECTS

Daniel }. Thies, AlA
Steven K. Knierim, AlA
Bradd A. Brown, AlA

Terry L. Gebard, AlA

David J. Sorg, AlA

Cedar Rapids

200 Fifth Ave, SE, Sle, 201
Cedar Rapids, A 52401
Phone (319) 363 6018
Fax (319) 363 7349

Dés Moines

100 Court Ave., Ste. 100
Des Moipes, 1A 50309
Phone (515) 309 0722
Fax (515) 309 0725

www.opnarchitects.com






- MEPT Design Services provided by Alvine Engineering — Mechanical HVAC,
Plumbing, Fire Protection, Fire Alarm Services, Building Services up to 5-0"
outside the building, Electrical, Lighting and Controls, Telecommunications (voice
and data), Security and video surveillance, Audio/Visual Design for Council
Chambers only.

- Structural Design Services provided by Shuck Britson — Standard services

- Cost Estimation Services provided by Stecker-Harmsen — cost estimates provided
at end of Schematic Design, end of Design Development and at 50% Construction
Documents.

Standard Professional Services (Construction) — Bidding, Negotiation and

Construction Administration

OPN and our consultants would complete standard professional services to see the
project Bid and to provide typical Construction Admistration services.

Assumptions:

o To evaluate the existing building conditions no destructive demolition will be
necessary, nor will any special equipment. All areas necessary to the evaluation
are assumed to be visible or accessible.

o Hazardous material testing and reports and required abatement are to be
provided by the owner outside of the scope of these services.

s Both the City Hall and Library project are to be designed and constructed
concurrently to utilize fewer trips on the project. Fees would need to be re-
negotiated if the projects are sequenced in a method that does not allow for them
to be designed or constructed at different times.

¢ No design services would be provided to assist in moving the existing city hall
space into temporary space during the construction phase as part of this scope of
services.

e Construction Administration services fees based on a 30 week construction
schedule accounting for bi-weekly construction meetings

e Services not included as part of standard services; LEED, energy modeling,
record documentation.

Owner initiated changes in project scope would require a re-evaluation in fee.

e Professional Fee is based on an estimated construction cost of $1,453,629,

developed from concept work completed during the feasibility study.

Proposal Summary

Schedule: Desigh Phase to commense mid-December and complete in the summer of
2018. Construction start date around August 234 2018 with a duration estimate of 30
weeks.

Compensation: Professional fees to complete (Design) Phase services as outlined in this
proposal will be a lump sum fee as follows:

(Design Phase) Schematic Design, Design Development and Consturction Documents

Professional Fee $128,650

Optional Programming Review (see description above) $ 3,200

ARCHITECTS

Daniel J. Thies, AlA
Steven K. Knierim, AlA
Bradd A. Brown, AlA
Terry L. Gebard, AlA

David J. Sorg, AlA

Cedar Rapids

200 Fifth Ave. SE, Sle, 201
Cedar Rapids, IA 52401
Phone (319) 363 6018
Fax (319) 363 7349

Des Moines

100 Court Ave., Ste, 100
Des Moines, JA 50308
Phone (515) 309 0722
Fax (615) 309 0725

www.opnarchitects.com






Not included in total professional fee amout below

(Construction Phase) Bidding and Negotiations, Construction Administration

Professional Fee $ 53,482

Total Professional Fee $182,132

Reimbursable expenses are not included in Professional Fees and will be invoiced at 1.1
times actual cost. Reimbursable expenses include authorized travel, courier services,
express mail, in house printing, mileage and meal reimbursement.  Estimated
Reimbursable expense range between $4000-$5000

Reimbursable expense not included would be plan review fees, permits and fees,
reproduction of project documents, printing for project bid documents, photography [if
required], out-of-house digital processing.

OPN will invoice monthly based on a percentage of work completed-to-date. Payment is
due the Architect within (30) days from the date the invoice.

Professional Services Agreement between the City of Carroll and OPN Architects is
anticipated to be an AIA B101 [Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and
Architect]. Shuck-Britson, Alvine Engineering, Confluence and Stecker-Harmsen will be
sub-consultants to OPN Architects.

Again, | would like to thank you and the City of Carroll for the opportunity to present our
fee proposal. These projects will undoubtedly be of great benefit to the community and
we are excited for the opportunity to be a part of them.

If you find you have any questions or desire additional information, please do not hesitate
to call. Should you find our proposal acceptable, please sign and return this letter and we
will prepare a draft contract for your review and signature.,

We thank you for considering OPN Architects and | look forward to your response.

Danielle Hermann, AIA Accepted:
OPN ARCHITECTS
Associate Principal Title:

ARCHITECTS

Daniel J. Thies, AlA
Steven K. Knierim, AIA
Bradd A. Brown, AlA
Terry L. Gebard, AlA

David ). Sorg, AIA

Cedar Rapids

200 Fifth Ave. SE, Sle. 201
Cedar Rapids, 1A 52401
Phone (319) 363 6018
Fax (319) 363 7349

Des Moines

100 Court Ave., Ste. 100
Des Moipes, 1A 50309
Phone (515) 308 0722
Fax (518) 309 072%

www.opnarchitects.com






ARCHITECTS

Cadar Raplds

200 Fifth Avenue SE Ste, 201
Cedar Rapids, lowa 52401
(319) 363-6018

DesMoines

100 Court Avenue Ste, 100
Des Moines, lowa 50309
{515) 309-0722

fowa City

24 % 8, Clinton Street
lowa City, lowa 52240
{310) 863-6018

Madison

301 N, Broom Street Ste. 100
Madison, Wisconsin 53703
{608} 819-0260

opnarchitects.com

CARROLL PUBLIC LIBRARY AND CITY HALL

EXHIBIT 'B'

OPN ARCHITECTS, INC.
2017 HOURLY FEE RATE

PRINCIPAL

ASSOCIATE PRINCIPAL

ASSOCIATE

PROJECT ARCHITECT/PROJECT MANAGER
ARCHITECT

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

JOB CAPTAIN

INTERN ARCHITECT

INTERN LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
SENIOR INTERIOR DESIGNER
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATOR

REVIT DRAFTSPERSON

INTERIOR DESIGNER (NCIDQ CERTIFIED)
INTERIOR DESIGNER

DIRECTORS OF BUSINESS SUPPORT
MARKETING COORDINATOR
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

COLLEGE INTERNS

$225/HOUR
$150/HOUR
$140/HOUR
$115/HOUR
$95/HOUR
$80/HOUR
$85/HOUR
$65/HOUR
$65/HOUR
$95/HOUR
$90/HOUR
$45/HOUR
$75/HOUR
$60/HOUR
$90/HOUR
$55/HOUR
$50/HOUR

$35/HOUR

These rates are subject to annual adjustment (on or about January 1) and your
contract will adjust accordingly






LEASE ~BUSINESS PROPERTY

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this day of

» by and between R & R RENTAL. INC., an Iowa Corporation, (“Landlord™), whose address for ‘

the purpose of this lease, is 624 N, Carroll Street; Carroll, lowa 51401 and Citv of Carroll
(“Tenant™), whose address for the purpose of this lease is _112 East 5% St : Carroll_ Ta. 51401

THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

w

10.

Pre-Lease

PREMISE AND TERM. Landlord leases to Tenant the following real estate, situated in Carroll
County, Iowa in a building situated on the following property:

Approximately 3722 square feet of available space in a building situated at 515 North Carroll
Street; Carroll, Iowa. .

Together with all improvements thereon, and all rights, easements and appurtenances thereto
belonging, for a term beginning on the first day of __December 18_, 2017 and ending on ___
July 31 (7.5 months) upon the condition that Tenant performs as provided in this lease.

RENT. Tenant agrees to pay Landlord rent as follows:
e §792.00 (including utilities) the first day of each month.

Lease

ON __ August1,2018 (eight months after beginning of Pre-Lease) Tenant shall commence
Lease for twelve months. After twelve months there shall be a month-to-month renewal term of

up to six {6) additional months. Prior to occupancy by Tenant, Landlord will paint walls and clean
carpets in the premises. S

LEASE AMOUNT. Lease amount shall be $2559.67 per month, plus utilities; and shall include
OPTIONS A and B, which are attached as Exhibit A (Options are attached).

IMPROVEMENTS. The owner shall be responsible for the completion of Tenant Improvements
that are depicted on Exhibit B including: Office (#4), expand office by removing walls and
relocating door and Conference Room (#12) add a wall that divides space in half and add a door.
Work shall be completed to the Tenant’s satisfaction.

POSSESSION. Tenant shall be entitled to possess on the first day of the lease ter;n, and shall
yield possession to the Landlord at the termination of this lease. Should Landlord be unable to
give possession on said date for situations outside of their control, Tenant’s only damages shall be

prorated abatement of rents. ’

USE. Tenant covenants and agrees during the term of this lease to use and to occupy the leased
premises only for the business affairs of The City of Carroll.

CARE AND MAINTENANCE. Tenant shall make no structural changes or alterations without
the prior written consent of the Landlord.

CARE, MAINTENANCE. Tenant shall be responsible for routine care and maintenance;
including, but not limited to replacement of bulbs, furnace filters, and plumbing repairs.

UTILITIES AND SERVICES. Tenant, during the term of this lease, shall pay, before
delinquency, all charges for use of telephone, sewer, gas, heat, electricity, power, air conditioning,

garbage disposal and trash disposal. Tenant’s responsibility of utilities will begin August ]
,2018.

SURRENDER. Upon the termination of this lease, Tenant will surrender the premises to

Landlord in good and clean condition, except for ordinary wear and tear or damage without fault

or liability of Tenant. Continued possession, beyond the term of this lease and the acceptance of

rent by Landlord shall constitute a month-to-month extension of this lease.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTIN G. No assignment or subletting, either voluntary or by

operation of law, shall be effective without prior written consent of Landlord, which consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld.

PROPERTY INSURANCE. Tenant will maintain liability and property insurance on their own
contents. Landlord will be named as “Additional Insured” on Tenant’s policy.
Landlord will insure building, including glass & windows, against loss.






11.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Dated:

Page 2

INDEMNITY AND LIABILITY INSURANCE. Except for any negligence of Landlord, Tenant
will protect, defend and indemnify Landlord from and against any and all loss, costs, damage and
expenses occasioned by, or arising out of, any accident or other occurrence causing or inflicting
injury or damage to any person or property, happening or done in, upon or about the premises, or
due directly or indirectly to the tenancy, use or occupancy thereof, or any part thereof by Tenant or
any person claimed through or ynder Tenant.

DAMAGE. In the event of damage to the premises, so that Tenant is unable to conduct business
on the premises, this lease may be terminated at the option of either party. Such determination
shall be effected by notice of one party to the other within twenty days after such notice; and both
parties shall thereafter be released from all future obligations hereunder.

. MECHANICS LIEN. Neither Tenant, nor anyone claiming by, through or under Tenant, shall

have the right to file any mechanic’s lien against the premises. Tenants shall give notice in
advance to all contractors and subcontractors who may furnish, or agree to furnish, any material,
service or labor for any improvement on the premises.

TERMINATION UPON DEFAULT OF TENANT. Upon default in payment of rent,
abandonment of the premises, or upon any other default by the Tenant of the terms of this lease,
this lease may, at the option of the Landlord, and without prejudice to any other rights or remedies
afforded Landlord by law, be cancelled and forfeited; provided, however, before any such
cancellation and forfeiture Landlord shall give Tenant notice specifying the default, or defaults,
and stating that this lease will be cancelled and forfeited ten days after notice, unless such default

or defaults are remedied within such period.

TERMINATION OF LEASE PRIOR TO POSSESSION. The tenant reserves the right to
terminate this lease with 30 days written notice, if the Carroll Library/City Hall lowest,
responsive, responsible bid is higher than the budgeted amount determined by the City. If the
lease is terminated prior to possession, the Tenant acknowledges the financial loss that the
Landlord will face and agrees to reimburse the Landlord 200% of the cost of all remodeline
completed by the Landlord for the Tenant to compensate the Landlord for holding the space for
the Tenant. For the purposes of this section, possession means the Tenant has taken control of the
space and has begun to physically relocate the supplies and equipment to the lease space.-

SIGNS. Landlord during the last ninety days of this lease, shall have the right to maintain on the
premises either or both a “For Rent” or “For Sale” sign. Tenant will permit prospective tenants or
buyers to enter and examine the premises.

NOTICES AND DEMANDS. All notices shall be given to the parties hereto at the addresses
designated unless either party notifies the other, in writing, of a different address. Without
prejudice to any other method of notifying a party in writing or making a demand or other
communication such notice shall be considered given under the terms of this lease when it is

deposited in the U.S. Mail, registered or certified, property addressed, return receipt requested, and
postage prepaid.

PROVISIONS BINDING. Each and every covenant an agreement herein contained shall extend

to and be binding the respective successors, heirs, administrators, executors and assignments of
the parties hereto.

Dated:

Landlord: Tenant:

Roger J. Kanne

R & RRENTALS ' THE CITY OF CARROLL; Carroll, Iowa 51401
Fed ID #42-1389265 ‘ FedID #






Exhibit "A" - Page-1 of 4

REVISED PROPOSAL FOR BUILDING LEASE
- TEMPORARY SPACE

SEPARATE SITE - CITY HALL

DATE: __ /(y25-(7

TO:  Carroll City Manager |
112 E5™St
Carroll, IA51401

'FROM: R & R-RENTAL, INC- by @ffm @ <)(S//)1/M
" 624 N Crawford St. PartferV ~
Carroll, 1A 51401
PH: 712-792-5840

K> <> <S> <>

LOCATION: 515 N. Carroll St.: Carroll, lowa 51401

~

<S> <> > <> <>

Attached are the optional rent-proposals based on our discussion for additional
" space. : ' ' ’






Exhibit "A" - Page 2 of 4
" OPTION A: EXPANDED OFFICE AND ADD CONFERENCE ROOM

Price per SF per.year

Monthly Lease Price $1584.00 - ' $6.9020
© Tenant Remodel $4900.00 $1.7792
Adjusted Rent - $1992.33 . $8.6812

R & R RENTAL, IN

(g \\/,W

Roger.l K"anné






Exhibit "A" - Page 3 of 4

OPTION B: ADDITIONAL OFFICE/STORAGE $6.00 PER SF -

Price per SF per year

Back Office Area (168 gf) S 84.00 . $6.0000
Storage Area (800 sf) S 40000 ' : $6.0000
Monthly Lease Price $ 48400 $6.0000
Tenant Remodel $1ooo..o.o $1.0331
Adjusted.Rent' S 567.33 A $7.033£

R & R RENTAL, INC
\ Q/’%/f\/

RogerJ K‘e’mne






Exhibit "A" - Page 4 of 4

TOTALS
Total monthly lease (A-!TB)
12 Month Lease

7 Month Pre-Lease

TOTAL LEASE COST

R & R RENTAL, INC

OPTION A + B TOTALS

$ 2,559.67
$30,716.00

$ 5,544.00 (792 per menth)

$36,260.00

Rogéjr J\.J (ﬁgnn\é '






BAMP UPS

‘| 4o | obeg

- :»8(1 _1,Lq.ILQX_Z]

2

. EXISTINEG FLOOR PLAN.
t T T RChEr Vel O -
LS N Carrall SE -

#»






LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, entered into this 11% day of December, 2017, by and
between Badding Construction Company, an lowa corporation (hereinafter called
"LANDLORD"), and City of Carroll (hereinafter called "TENANT").

ARTICLE I - PREMISES

Section 1.1 Demised Premises

In consideration of the rents, covenants, and agreements to be performed by Tenant,
Landlord demises and leases to Tenant, and Tenant rents from Landlord, the premises known
locally as 425 W. Hwy 30, Suite 340, Carroll, Carroll County, lowa (hereinafter called the
"DEMISED PREMISES"). The Demised Premises are depicted on Exhibit A and consist of
approximately 8,401 square feet.

Section 1.2 Use of Common Areas
Tenant shall have the right to the use, in common with others, the Common Areas of the
Shopping Center, subject to the terms of this Lease and reasonable rules and regulations adopted

by Landlord.

Section 1.3 Shopping Center Defined

The term “SHOPPING CENTER?” shall mean all buildings, structures, parking facilities,
common facilities, and the like constructed or to be constructed on the property containing the
Demised Premises. The Shopping Center is depicted in Exhibit A.

Section 1.4 Common Areas Defined

The term "COMMON AREAS" shall mean all parking areas, driveways, entrances and
exits, sidewalks, landscaped areas, and all other common areas constructed or to be constructed
for use in common by Tenant, other tenants in the Shopping Center and their employees and
business invitees. The Common Areas shall be subject to the exclusive control and management
of Landlord and Landlord shall have the right from time to time to establish, modify and enforce
reasonable rules and regulations with respect to the use of the Common Areas. Landlord shall have
the right to designate employee parking areas within the Common Areas. Landlord reserves the
right to modify the configuration of the Common Areas from time to time, including the right to
construct additional building, kiosks and similar structures thereon. No modifications shall restrict
permanent access to the Demised Premises nor establish permanent employee parking spaces in
front of the Demised Premises.






ARTICLE II - TERM

Section 2.1 Term
The term of this Lease shall be for eighteen (18) months beginning on July 1, 2018
(hereinafter called the "COMMENCEMENT DATE") and ending on December 31, 2019, unless

terminated sooner hereunder.

Landlord agrees to give possession of the Demised Premises to the Tenant thirty (30) days
prior to the commencement date of this lease for Tenant opening preparations if all of the following
conditions are met: (1) execution of this Lease; (2) presentation of insurance certificates described
in Article VI; (3) placement of the utilities for the Demised Premises in the Tenant’s name; and
(4) Landlord has completed all build-out work. The insurance and indemnity provisions contained
in Article VI shall be fully applicable during this period of possession.

Section 2.2 Tenant's Installation of Fixtures

To expedite commencement of Tenant's business in the Demised Premises, Tenant may enter
upon the Demised Premises with the prior written approval of Landlord to perform Tenant's work and
install fixtures and furnishings provided all conditions set forth in Section 2.1 have been met. Landlord
shall not be liable for loss of or damage to fixtures, equipment or other personal property installed or
placed within the Demised Premises. Tenant shall pay the cost of all utilities and insurance from the
time it commences work within the Demised Premises.

Section 2.3 Termination of lease prior to possession

The Tenant reserves the right to terminate this lease with 30 days written notice, if the
Carroll library/city hall lowest, responsive, responsible bid is higher than the budgeted amount
determined by the City. If the lease is terminated prior to possession, the Tenant acknowledges
the financial loss that the Landlord will face and agrees to reimburse the Landlord 100% of the
cost of all remodeling completed by the Landlord for the Tenant and a flat fee of $9,450.00 to
compensate the Landlord for holding the space for the Tenant. Additionally, any lease payments
made by the Tenant prior to terminating the lease will be forfeited by the Tenant. For the purposes
of this section possession means the Tenant has taken control of the space and has begun to
physically relocate supplies and equipment to the lease space.

ARTICLE III - RENT AND OTHER CHARGES

Section 3.1 Rent
Tenant shall pay Landlord as rent for the Demised Premises the monthly amount outlined

below during the term of this Lease (hereinafter called "RENT"), in advance, on the first day of
each month at 814 West 9" Street, Carroll, Iowa, 51401 or at such other place designated by
Landlord:

Period Rate/Month
Months 1-18 $4,725.00






Section 3.2 Option to Renew

So long as Tenant is not in default under the terms and provisions of this Lease Tenant
shall have the right and option to an automatic month to month extension of the Lease Term for
up to an additional six (6) months on the same terms as provided in this Lease. Tenant shall
provide written notice of intent to terminate the agreement at least thirty (30) days prior to the end
of either the initial or extended term.

Tenant may exercise said option by giving Landlord written notice pursuant to Section 13.4
of this Lease.

Section 3.3 Additional Rent
Any other sums of money or charges to be paid by Tenant to Landlord pursuant to this

Lease shall be called "TADDITIONAL RENT."

Section 3.4 Taxes
Tenant shall pay all taxes assessed against Tenant's merchandise, trade fixtures and

equipment located within the Demised Premises. Tenant shall pay all franchise taxes and rent
taxes required for Tenant's business.

Landlord shall pay all real estate and ad valorem taxes, including all general or special
assessments, levied or assessed by any lawful authority for each calendar year during the term of
this Lease, including those assessed against the land and/or buildings comprising the Shopping
Center (hereinafter called “TAXES”).

Section 3.5 Insurance
Landlord shall pay all casualty and liability insurance carried by Landlord pursuant to the

terms of this Lease (hereinafter called “INSURANCE”).

Any additional property, casualty or liability insurance charges incurred by the Landlord due
to the nature of business performed by the Tenant shall be paid entirely by the Tenant.

Section 3.6 Common Area Maintenance

Landlord shall pay common area expenses, including, without limitation, the operating,
managing, equipping, lighting, repairing, replacing, and maintaining the Common Areas,
specifically including landscaping and gardening, line painting, lighting, traffic control, if any,
sanitary control, removal of snow, trash, rubbish and garbage and other refuse, cost of all rentals of
machinery equipment in such maintenance (hereinafter called "CAM").

Section 3.7 Past Due Rent and Additional Rent

If Tenant shall fail to pay any Rent or Additional Rent when the same is due and payable,
Landlord may impose, in addition to the unpaid amount, a late charge penalty equal to ten percent
(10%) of the unpaid amount. Said penalty shall be imposed on the 10™ day after the date the Rent

or Additional Rent is due.

If Tenant shall fail to pay any Rent or Additional Rent when the same is due and payable
and such amount remains unpaid for thirty (30) days, Tenant shall pay interest on such amount
after the thirty (30) day period at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum or the highest rate
allowed by law, whichever is the lesser (hereinafter called the "DEFAULT RATE").

3






Section 3.8 Utility Charges

Landlord shall be responsible for all utility/service charges for water and sewer. Tenant shall
be responsible for all utility/service charges for electricity, gas and trash removal. In no event shall
Landlord be liable for any interruption or failure in the supply of any utilities to the Demised
Premises.

ARTICLE 1V - CONDUCT OF BUSINESS BY TENANT

Section 4.1 Use of Premises

Tenant shall use the Demised Premises solely for the use of a temporary Library and uses
incidental thereto and for no other purpose without Landlord's prior written approval. Tenant shall
comply with all rules, regulations and laws of any governmental authority with respect to its use
and occupancy of the Demised Premises. Tenant shall not violate any exclusive use rights granted
by Landlord at any time during the term of this Lease to other tenants in the Shopping Center.

Section 4.2 Standard of Operation and Business Hours

Tenant shall keep the Demised Premises open for business to the public during the hours
that such businesses are customarily open for business, unless prevented from so doing by strikes,
fires, casualty or other similar cause, and except during reasonable periods for repairing, cleaning
and decorating. Nothing contained herein, however, shall require Tenant to remain open Sunday
or legal holidays.

Section 4.3 Signs
Tenant shall not place any sign upon or within the Demised Premises (including window

signage of any kind) without Landlord's prior written approval, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld. Tenant shall maintain its signs in good condition and repair and shall
ensure that all signs shall be lit from sundown until at least 10:00 p.m. to maintain a professional
and uniform appearance in the Shopping Center. All signs shall comply with applicable
ordinances, restrictions, and covenants, which compliance shall be the responsibility of Tenant.

Section 4.4 Additional Provisions
Tenant's use of the Demised Premises shall further be restricted as follows:

(A)  Tenant shall not use the sidewalks, parking areas or other Common Areas in the
Shopping Center for the sale or display of merchandise or for advertising purposes without
Landlord's prior written approval.

(B)  Tenant shall conduct no auction, fire, bankruptcy, liquidation or similar sale
without Landlord's prior written approval.

(C)  Tenant shall keep the Demised Premises and exterior and interior of all windows,
doors and all other glass in a neat and clean condition.

(D)  Tenant shall not allow any unlawful or immoral activities in the Demised Premises,
create any nuisance or injure the reputation of the Shopping Center, or disturb the quiet enjoyment
of other tenants of the Shopping Center.






(E)  The delivery or shipping of merchandise, supplies and fixtures to and from the
Demised Premises shall be subject to such reasonable rules and regulations as Landlord deems
necessary for the operation of the Shopping Center.

(F)  Tenant shall store all trash and garbage within the designated areas and arrange for
the regular pickup of the same at Tenant's expense.

(G)  Tenant shall keep the Demised Premises at a temperature sufficiently high to
prevent freezing of water in pipes and fixtures.

()  Tenant shall provide for pest extermination services at reasonable intervals, if
necessary.

) Tenant shall comply with the restrictive covenants that have been placed on the
Shopping Center and are attached as Exhibit B.

ARTICLE V - MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS

Section 5.1 Condition of Demised Premises

Landlord shall deliver possession of the Demised Premises to Tenant upon completion of
the Landlord improvements described in the attached Exhibit A, which work is hereby approved
by both Landlord and Tenant. Tenant shall obtain a building permit from the city building
department for any other renovation and any other remodeling of the Demised Premises. Further,
Tenant shall obtain a Certificate of Occupancy for the Demised Premises. Tenant shall deliver a
copy of all building permits and Certificates of Occupancy to Landlord within five (5) days after
issuance by the city building department. All renovations and any other remodeling of the
Demised Premises by the Tenant shall be performed by a qualified and insured contractor, who
must be first approved by the Landlord.

Section 5.2 Tenant's Duty to Repair

Except any repairs required due to the negligence of Landlord, which repairs shall be the
responsibility of Landlord, Tenant shall keep and maintain in good order, condition and repair the
Demised Premises and every part thereof, including (but not limited to) the exterior and interior
portion of all doors, door checks, windows, plate glass, store front, all plumbing and sewage
facilities, fixtures, the heating and air conditioning and electrical system, sprinkler system, walls,
floors and ceilings, meters applicable to the Demised Premises, and all installations made by
Tenant under the terms of this Lease. As part of said duty, Tenant shall contract with a reputable
company to service and maintain the HVAC system and shall provide a copy of said contract to
Landlord upon commencement of this Lease. Tenant shall provide Landlord HVAC unit
maintenance logs on an annual basis each year of the Lease. Tenant shall keep and maintain the
Demised Premises in a clean, sanitary and safe condition.






Section 5.3 Compliance with Laws

Tenant shall make, at its expense, all repairs, additions and alterations to the Demised
Premises ordered or required by the adoption by any governmental authority of new statutes,
regulations, laws or ordinances, whether to meet the special needs of Tenant, or due to the
occupancy of Tenant, or otherwise.

Section 5.4 Alterations by Tenant

Tenant shall not alter the Demised Premises and shall not install any fixtures or equipment
within the Demised Premises without prior written approval of Landlord, which approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld.

Section 5.5 Landlord's Duty to Repair

Landlord shall keep and maintain the foundation, roof, exterior walls and structural
portions of the Demised Premises in good repair, except any repairs required due to the negligence
of Tenant, or its agents, employees, contractors, subtenants or assignees, which repairs shall be the
responsibility of Tenant.

Section 5.6 Surrender of Demised Premises

At termination of this Lease, Tenant shall deliver the Demised Premises to Landlord in
good and clean condition, reasonable wear and tear accepted, and shall surrender all keys for the
Demised Premises to Landlord. During the last thirty (30) days of the term of this Lease, Tenant
shall remove all its trade fixtures and, to the extent required by Landlord, any other installations,
alterations or improvements before surrendering the Demised Premises and Tenant shall repair
any damage to the Demised Premises caused thereby. Also within the last thirty (30) days, Tenant
shall remove its signage from the exterior fascia of the building and shall be obligated to patch and
repaint said fascia to match existing color. Any items remaining in the Demised Premises at the
termination of this Lease shall be deemed abandoned, become the property of Landlord and
Landlord may dispose of the same without any liability at all.

Upon Tenant’s delivery of keys to Landlord, Tenant and Landlord shall complete a walk-
through inspection of the Demised Premises to determine its final condition. Landlord shall also
cause to be completed a review of all mechanical systems servicing the Demised Premises to verify
their proper operation and shall verify that all utility and/or service bills for the Demised Premises
have been paid in full. Upon verification of same, Landlord shall refund Tenant’s security deposit,
if applicable, less any deductions provided for in this Lease, within ten (10) business days.

Section 5.7 Mechanic's Liens

Tenant shall not permit any mechanic's liens or similar liens to be placed against the
Demised Premises or the Shopping Center. If such liens are filed or threatened, Tenant shall
immediately obtain a release of the lien through payment or by posting with Landlord a bond equal
to two (2) times the amount of said lien with a surety reasonably satisfactory to Landlord. If the
lien is not released within ten (10) days from the date of written notice from Landlord, Landlord
shall have the right, at Landlord's option, to paying the lien or any portion thereof and the amounts
paid, including reasonable attorney's fees, expenses and interest at the Default Rate, shall be paid
to Landlord immediately. Tenant shall indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from all losses,
claims, damages, costs and expenses relating to any repairs, installations or improvements to the
Demised Premises made by Tenant.






Section 5.8 Roof.

Tenant shall not cut, puncture or otherwise damage the roof of the Demised Premises.
Tenant shall be responsible for any damage caused to the roof by any acts of Tenant, its agents,
employees, contractors, subtenants or assignees.

ARTICLE VI - INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

Section 6.1 Tenant's Liability Insurance

Tenant shall, at its expense, keep in full force and effect a policy of public liability and
property damage insurance with respect to the Demised Premises and the business operated by
Tenant and any subtenants or assignees. The coverage limits of the policy shall not be less than
$2,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence. The policy shall name Landlord and its
mortgagee as additional insured’s. The policy shall provide that the insurer shall not cancel or
change the insurance without giving Landlord thirty (30) days prior written notice. A copy of the
policy or a certificate of insurance shall be delivered to Landlord.

Section 6.2 Liquor Liability Insurance

In the event that at any time during the term of this lease or any extension or renewal
thereof, beer, wines or other alcoholic liquors or beverages are sold or given away upon or from
the Demised Premises, Tenant shall, at its sole expense, obtain, maintain and keep in force,
adequate liquor liability insurance protecting both Tenant and Landlord in connection therewith
with policy limits covering the full amount of potential liability provided for from time to time
under the laws of this State. Said policies shall be in such companies as are authorized to write
such coverage in this State, shall be acceptable to Landlord and/or its lender (which shall be named
as an additional insured if requested in writing) and copies shall be maintained on file with
Landlord, and shall contain non-cancelable clauses unless Landlord is given at least ten (10) days’
notice of such proposed cancellation. In the event Tenant shall fail to procure such insurance
where applicable, Landlord may procure the same and in the event Landlord shall be unable to
procure the same (all at Tenant's expense) then sales of the foregoing products within the Demised
Premises shall cease immediately.

Section 6.3 Indemnification of Landlord

Tenant shall indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless from all claims, demands,
causes of action, actions, damages, liability, judgments or expenses, including reasonable
attorney's fees and expenses, in connection with any personal injury or damage to property arising
from or out of any occurrence in, upon or at the Demised Premises, or the occupancy or use of the
Demised Premises or any part thereof by Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, subtenants or
assignees, or relating to any act or omission of Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors,
subtenants or assignees, except if caused by the act or omission of Landlord, its agents, employees
or contractors.

Section 6.4 Landlord's Liability Insurance
Landlord shall keep in full force and effect a policy of public liability and property damage
insurance with respect to the Common Areas. Landlord shall determine, in its sole discretion, the

coverage limits of such policy.






Section 6.5 Indemnification of Tenant

Landlord shall indemnify, defend and hold Tenant harmless from all claims, demands, causes
of action, actions, damages, liability, judgments or expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees
and expenses, in connection with any personal injury or damage to property arising from or out of
any occurrence in, upon or at the Common Areas, except if caused by the act or omission of Tenant,
its agents, employees, contractors, subtenants or assignees.

Section 6.6 Tenant's Casualty Insurance

Tenant shall, at its expense, keep all tenant improvements, merchandise, fixtures and other
personal property within the Demised Premises insured against fire, with extended coverage, the
extent of the full insurable value thereof. Tenant shall further, at its expense, carry machinery
repair insurance with coverage limits of no less than $100,000 insuring both Landlord and Tenant
against loss or liability caused by the operation or malfunction of the machinery relating to the
Demised Premises, including the heating and air conditioning and electrical system. The policy
shall provide that the insurer will not cancel or change the insurance without giving Landlord thirty
(30) days prior written notice. A copy of the policy or a certificate of insurance shall be delivered

to Landlord.

Landlord shall not be liable for any damage to any Tenant improvements, merchandise,
fixtures and other personal property within the Demised Premises. Landlord shall not be liable for
loss or damage to any property of Tenant or others by theft or otherwise. Landlord shall not be
liable for any damage caused by other tenants of the Shopping Center, occupants of property next
to the Shopping Center or the public.

Section 6.7 Landlord's Casualty Insurance
Landlord shall keep the Demised Premises insured against loss or damage by fire, with
extended coverage, in such amount determined by Landlord, in its sole discretion.

Section 6.8 Increase in Fire Insurance Premium

Tenant shall not keep, use, sell or offer for sale within the Demised Premises any item that
may be prohibited by the standard form of fire insurance policy. If anything done or omitted to be
done by Tenant causes the rate of fire or other insurance on the Demised Premises or the Shopping
Center to be increased, Tenant shall pay the amount of such increase as Additional Rent.

Section 6.9 Waiver of Subrogation

Where either Landlord or Tenant sustains a loss or damage protected by an existing policy
or policies of insurance, the party sustaining such loss or damage, to the extent that it is so protected
and to the extent that it may legally do so, waives its rights of recovery, if any, against the other
party hereto.

ARTICLE VII - FIRE OR OTHER CASUALTY
Section 7.1 Notice
Tenant shall immediately notify Landlord of any damage caused to the Demised Premises

by fire or other casualty.

Section 7.2 Partial Destruction






In the event of the partial destruction of the Demised Premises by fire or any other casualty,
Landlord shall restore or repair the Demised Premises to its condition immediately before the
damage with reasonable diligence. The Rent shall be reduced in direct proportion to the reduction
in usefulness of the Demised Premises from the date of the damage until the Demised Premises is
repaired or restored.

Section 7.3 Substantial Destruction

In the event that the Demised Premises is substantially destroyed by fire or any other
casualty, Landlord shall have the option to terminate this Lease by giving Tenant written notice
within thirty (30) days after such destruction, and any unearned Rent shall be apportioned and
returned to Tenant. If Landlord does not elect to cancel this Lease, then this Lease shall remain in
full force and effect and Landlord shall proceed with all reasonable diligence to repair and replace
the Demised Premises to its condition immediately before the destruction. The Rent shall abate from
the date of the destruction until the Demised Premises is repaired or restored.

ARTICLE VIII - EMINENT DOMAIN

Section 8.1 Partial Taking

If part of the Demised Premises shall be taken for public improvements or otherwise under the
exercise of the right of eminent domain and the Demised Premises shall continue to be reasonably
suitable for use by Tenant, then the Rent shall be reduced from the date of such taking in direct
proportion to the reduction in usefulness of the Demised Premises.

Section 8.2 Substantial Taking

If the taking shall render the Demised Premises wholly unfit for use by Tenant, then Tenant
shall have the right, at Tenant's option, to terminate and cancel this Lease on thirty (30) days’
written notice to Landlord, and Tenant shall be liable only for the Rent and Additional Rent
accrued and earned to the date of surrender of possession of the Demised Premises to Landlord
and for the performance of other obligations maturing before that date.

Section 8.3 Award

Tenant shall not be entitled to participate or receive any part of the damages or award that
may be paid to or awarded Landlord due to a public taking, except where the award shall provide
for moving or other reimbursable expenses for Tenant under applicable statute.

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Section 9.1 Tenant Assignments

Tenant shall not sublet or assign the Demised Premises without Landlord's prior written
approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. The
approval of Landlord to any assignment or subletting shall not constitute a waiver of the necessity
for approval to any subsequent assignment or subletting.






Section 9.2 Liability After Assignment

In the event that Tenant receives rent or similar payments from a subtenant or assignee more
than that being paid by Tenant to Landlord, then fifty percent (50%) of such excess amounts shall
be paid to Landlord as Additional Rent. Landlord may collect rent or similar charges from the
subtenant or assignee and apply the net amount collected to the Rent hereunder. Notwithstanding
any assignment or sublease, Tenant shall remain fully liable to Landlord under this Lease and shall
not be released from performing any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Lease.

Section 9.3 Landlord Assignments

Landlord shall have the right to freely assign its interest in this Lease without Tenant’s
approval or consent. Upon such assignment, Landlord shall be released from any further liability
under this Lease with Tenant’s consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,

conditioned or delayed.

ARTICLE X - DEFAULT

Section 10.1 Events of Default
The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall constitute an "EVENT OF

DEFAULT" by Tenant:

(A)  Failure to pay when due any installment of Rent or Additional Rent if the failure
continues for ten (10) days after written notice of such default.

(B)  Failure to cure or remedy any default in the performance or observance of any term,
provision or covenant of this Lease to be performed or observed by Tenant, other than as described
in subsection (A) above, if the failure continues for twenty (20) days after written notice of such
default. However, if the default cannot reasonably be cured or remedied within the twenty (20)
day period, Tenant shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant shall have diligently commenced
curing such default within such twenty (20) day period and proceeds thereafter to diligently and in
good faith to remedy or cure the default. In no event shall the cure take longer than sixty (60)
days. If at the end of the sixty (60) day period Tenant has failed to cure the default, the Tenant
shall be deemed in default without further right to cure.

(C)  Abandonment of the Demised Premises before the expiration of the term of this
Lease.

(D)  Delinquency by Tenant in the payment of Rent or Additional Rent after more than
three (3) written notices relative to similar failures during any twelve (12) month period during the
term of this Lease shall be deemed an irrebuttable default without any right to cure.

(E)  Tenant is adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or a receiver is appointed for Tenant's
business or assets on the ground of Tenant's insolvency, or a trustee is appointed for Tenant, or a
petition has been filed naming Tenant as the debtor under the bankruptcy laws of the United States,
or Tenant shall make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors.

10






Section 10.2 Landlord's Remedies

Upon the occurrence of any one or more Event of Default, without notice or demand of
any kind to Tenant, Landlord shall have the option to pursue, in addition to all other legal or
equitable remedies, the following remedies:

(A)  Landlord may elect to terminate this Lease, in which event Landlord may immediately
repossess the Demised Premises and Tenant shall pay at once to Landlord, as liquidated damages, the
sum of the Rent and Additional Rent for the balance of the stated term of this Lease, together with all
expenses incurred by Landlord for legal services, brokerage fees and preparing the Demised Premises.

(B) Landlord may elect to terminate Tenant's right of possession of the Demised
Premises without termination of this Lease, in which event Tenant shall surrender possession and
vacate the Demised Premises immediately and deliver possession thereof to Landlord, and Tenant
hereby grants to Landlord full and free license to enter into and upon the Demised Premises and
remove Tenant and any other person, firm or corporation who may be occupying the Demised
Premises and remove all personal property therefrom, without releasing Tenant from its obligation
to pay the Rent and Additional Rent and perform the covenants, conditions and agreements to be
performed by Tenant under this Lease.

After taking possession of the Demised Premises without terminating this Lease, Landlord
may, but shall not be obligated to, relet all or any part of the Demised Premises for such rent and
upon such terms and to such person, firm or corporation and for such use or uses and such period
or periods as Landlord, in Landlord's sole discretion, shall determine. Landlord shall not be
required to accept any prospective lessee offered by Tenant or to observe any instruction given by
Tenant about such reletting. For such reletting, Landlord may decorate or make repairs, changes,
alterations or additions to the Demised Premises to the extent deemed by Landlord desirable or
convenient. If the consideration collected by Landlord upon any such reletting is not sufficient to
pay as liquidated damages, the Rent and Additional Rent reserved in this Lease, and the cost of
repairs, alterations, additions, redecorating and other similar expenses, including reasonable
attorney's fees and brokerage fees, then Tenant shall pay to Landlord the deficiency upon demand.
Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate damages as required by law.

Landlord, any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, without being under any
obligation to do so and without thereby waiving such default, may cure the default for the account
of Tenant (and enter the Demised Premises for such purpose). Tenant shall pay to Landlord upon
demand, all costs, expenses and disbursements, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by
Landlord in curing such default with interest thereon at the Default Rate.

11






ARTICLE XI - SUBORDINATION, OFFSET STATEMENT AND ATTORNMENT

Section 11.1 Subordination

Landlord is hereby irrevocably vested with the full power and authority, if it so elects, to
subordinate this Lease to any mortgage, deed of trust, or other lien now or hereafter placed upon
the Demised Premises or upon the Shopping Center. Within ten (10) days after request therefore
by Landlord, Tenant shall execute and deliver an agreement subordinating this Lease, provided
such subordination shall be upon the express condition that this Lease shall be recognized by the
mortgagee, and that the rights of Tenant shall remain in full force and effect during the term of this
Lease so long as Tenant shall continue to perform all of the covenants and conditions of this Lease.

Section 11.2 Estoppel Certificate
Within ten (10) days after request therefore by Landlord, Tenant shall execute and deliver

a statement certifying (if such be the case) that this Lease is in full force and effect and that there
are no defenses or offsets thereto.

Section 11.3 Attornment

Tenant shall, in the event any proceedings are brought for foreclosure of, or upon exercise
of the power of sale under any mortgage or deed of trust made by Landlord covering the Demised
Premises, attorn to the purchaser upon any such foreclosure or sale and recognize such purchaser

as landlord under this Lease.

Section 11.4 Attorney-in-Fact

In the event that Tenant shall fail to execute and deliver instruments pursuant to Sections
11.1, 11.2, and 11.3, then Tenant hereby appoints Landlord as attorney-in-fact for Tenant to
execute any such instrument or certificate for and on behalf of Tenant.

ARTICLE XII - HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

Section 12.1 Landlord's Obligations

Landlord represents and warrants that, during the term of this Lease, Landlord shall not use,
generate, place, store, release, or otherwise dispose of, nor allow the use, generation, placing, storage,
release, or disposal of Hazardous Materials in the Shopping Center, except in strict accordance with
all Environmental Laws. If, during the term of this Lease, Hazardous Materials are discovered in
any portion of the Shopping Center outside the Demised Premises, Landlord shall immediately
undertake or cause to be undertaken remediation or removal of the Hazardous Materials according
to all Environmental Laws and, to the extent Tenant's business is interrupted during the remediation
or removal, the Rent shall be abated as is fair and reasonable under the circumstances. Landlord shall
indemnify, defend and hold Tenant harmless against and reimburse Tenant for all Hazardous
Materials Liabilities asserted against or incurred by Tenant arising out of a breach of the
representations, warranties or covenants set forth in this Section 12.1.

12






Section 12.2 Tenant's Obligations

Tenant represents and warrants that, during the term of this Lease, Tenant shall not use,
generate, place, store, release or otherwise dispose of Hazardous Materials in the Demised
Premises or Shopping Center, except in strict accordance with all Environmental Laws. In the
event of a breach of the foregoing, Tenant shall immediately undertake or cause to be undertaken
remediation or removal according to all Environmental Laws. Tenant shall indemnify, defend and
hold Landlord harmless against and reimburse Landlord for all Hazardous Materials Liabilities
asserted against or incurred by Landlord arising out of a breach of the representations, warranties
or covenants set forth in this Section 12.2.

Section 12.3 Hazardous Materials Defined

The term "HAZARDOUS MATERIALS" as used herein means any substance, (i) the
presence of which requires special handling, storage, investigation, notification, monitoring, or
remediation under any Environmental Law, (ii) which is toxic, explosive, corrosive, erosive,
flammable, infectious, radioactive, carcinogenic, mutagenic, or otherwise hazardous, (iii) which is
or becomes regulated by any Governmental Authority, or (iv) the presence of which causes or
threatens to cause a nuisance to the Shopping Center or Demised Premises or to adjacent properties

or Demised Premises.

Section 12.4 Environmental Laws Defined

The term "ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS" refers to all Laws relating to (i) emissions,
discharges, spills, releases or threatened releases of Hazardous Materials onto land or into ambient
air, surface water, groundwater, watercourses, publicly or privately owned treatment works, drains,
sewer systems, wetlands, or septic systems, (ii) the use, treatments, storage, disposal, handling,
manufacturing, transportation, or shipment of Hazardous Materials, or (iii) the protection of human
health or the environment.

Section 12.5 Hazardous Materials Liabilities Defined

The term "HAZARDOUS MATERIALS LIABILITIES" as used herein means all claims,
damages, losses, forfeitures, expenses, or liabilities arising from or caused in whole or in part,
directly or indirectly, by a breach by the other party of its representations, warranties, or covenants
under Section 12.1 or 12.2, including (but not limited to) all costs of defense (including reasonable
attorneys' fees and other costs of litigation), all consultant's fees, and all costs of investigation,
repair, remediation, restoration, clean up, detoxification or decontamination, and/or preparation
and implementation of any closure, remedial action or other required plan.

Section 12.6 Survival

The provisions of this Article XII shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this
Lease.

13






ARTICLE XIII - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 13.1 Landlord's Right of Entry

Landlord reserves the right, at all times during the term of this Lease, to enter the Demised
Premises for inspecting and examining the same, and to show the same to prospective purchasers
or tenants, and to make such repairs, alterations, improvements or additions as Landlord may deem
necessary or desirable. During the last ninety (90) days of the term of this Lease, Landlord may
exhibit the Demised Premises to prospective tenants or purchasers, and place upon the Demised
Premises the usual notices advertising the Demised Premises for sale or lease. If Tenant shall not
be present to open and allow an entry into the Demised Premises, at any time, when for any reason
entry shall be necessary or permissible, Landlord may enter by use of a master key or by forcible
entry without rendering Landlord liable therefore, and without in any manner affecting the
obligations and covenants of this Lease. Nothing herein contained, however, shall be deemed or
construed to impose upon Landlord any obligation, responsibility or liability at all for the care,
maintenance or repair of the Demised Premises except as otherwise herein specifically provided.

Section 13.2 Quiet Enjoyment

Tenant shall lawfully and peaceable have, hold, possess, use and occupy and enjoy the
Demised Premises while this Lease remains in force, without hindrance, disturbance or
molestation from Landlord, subject to the specific provisions of this Lease.

Section 13.3 Trade Fixtures

At the expiration of this Lease, provided Tenant is not in default, Tenant shall have the
right to remove any trade fixtures installed by Tenant at the Demised Premises. Tenant shall repair
any damage to the Demised Premises caused by such removal. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Landlord shall have a lien upon the fixtures, or any additions thereto, during the term of this Lease
to secure performance by Tenant.

Section 13.4 Notices

Wherever any notice is required or allowed hereunder, such notice shall be in writing. Any
notice or document required or allowed to be delivered hereunder shall be deemed to be delivered,
whether actually received or not, when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid,
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the parties hereto at the following

addresses:

LANDLORD: TENANT:

Badding Construction Company City of Carroll

Nick Badding, President Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager
814 West 9™ Street 112 E 5™ St

Carroll, Iowa 51401 Carroll, IA 51401

With a copy to: With a copy to:

Neu Minnich Comito Halbur Neu Bruner Bruner & Reinhart
& Badding, P.C. David S. Bruner

Gina C. Badding 225 E 5™ St #2

721 N Main Street Carroll, 1A 51401

Carroll, Iowa 51401

14






Section 13.5 Holding Over

In the event Tenant, with Landlord's consent, remains in possession of the Demised
Premises after the expiration of this Lease and without execution of a new Lease, it shall be deemed
to be occupying said Demised Premises as a tenant from month to month as set forth in Section
3.2, and otherwise subject to all the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease.

Section 13.6 Partial Invalidity

If any term or condition of this Lease shall to any extent be invalid and unenforceable, then
the remainder of this Lease, other than those to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not
be affected and each term, covenant and condition of this Lease shall be valid and be enforced to

the fullest extent allowed by law.

Section 13.7 Waiver
Waiver of any default, breach or failure under this Lease shall not be construed as a waiver

of any subsequent or different default, breach or failure.

Section 13.8 Amendment
All amendments to this Lease shall be in writing executed by the parties.

Section 13.9 Successors
The provisions, covenants, and conditions of this Lease shall bind and inure to the benefit of

the legal representatives, successors and assigns of each party. Landlord shall have the right to assign
this Lease and be released therefrom upon the sale of the Demised Premises.

Section 13.10 Choice of Law
The laws of the State of lowa shall govern interpretation, validity, performance and

enforcement of this Lease.

Section 13.11 Superseding Lease
This Lease supersedes all previous leases or other agreements between the parties hereto

concerning the Demised Premises.

ARTICLE X1V - GOVERNMENTAL APPROVALS

Section 14.1 Governmental Approval Changes

Landlord shall have the right to modify the site plan for the Shopping Center, the design of
the buildings within the Shopping Center, including (but not limited to) the Premises, or otherwise
modify matters relating the Shopping Center in connection with the governmental approvals
required for Landlord’s intended development and use of the Shopping Center.

15






SIGNATURE

DATED this day of December, 2017.

LANDLORD:

BADDING CONSTRUCTION COMPANY,
an Iowa corporation

By:

Nick Badding, President

TENANT:

CITY OF CARROLL, IOWA

By:

Eric P. Jensen, Mayor
ATTEST:
By:

Laura A. Schaefer, City Clerk

16






EXHIBIT A

CITY OF CARROLL — CARROLL PUBLIC LIBRARY
LEASE SITE SPECIFICATIONS

Site shall refer to both the land and building, including parking facilities and furnishings.

A. Site(s) must be with the City of Carroll or within 0.5 miles from the Carroll City
Limits.
a. Depot Business Center is centrally located within Carroll’s Business District.

B. Site(s) should be located in a highly visible and easily accessible area.
a. Depot Business Center is highly visible from US Highway 30, Northwest Street,
West 5 and West 6% Street.
b. Various restaurants and retail businesses are located at the Depot Business
Center. Collectively they bring hundreds of people to the Center on a daily basis.
c. The Center is within walking distance of our entire Central Business District and is
easily accessible from Highway 30, Northwest Street, 5t Street and 6 Street.

C. Downtown Commercial Area is highly desirable.
a. Depot Business Center is centrally located within Carroll's Downtown Commercial

District.

D. Site must be available for lease for a minimum of two (2) years. The initial term for
the Library only shall be for a period of eighteen (18) months and subject to
automatic month to month renewal at the end of the initial term unless the City of
Carroll provides written notice of intent to terminate the agreement at least thirty
days prior to the end of the term of the lease.

a. An eighteen (18) month lease with month to month renewal after the initial term

is acceptable.

E. Site must be available for lease and occupancy by July 1, 2018.
a. Site will be available for lease on or before July 1, 2018.

F. Site must meet any and all existing codes.
a. Site meets all existing codes.

G. Site must meet ADA requirements
a. Site meets ADA requirements.

H. Site must be suitable for public use as a Library facility.
a. Siteis suitable for public use as a Library facility.






Building structure for the library space must be able to support a full load of books
placed on standard library shelving throughout the facility. Typically, this requires
a floor load of at least 150 Ibs. per sq. ft.

a. Floor structure is adequate for library shelving loading requirements.

. Site must have adequate lighting.
a. New lighting will be installed throughout the space to provide ample, efficient

lighting. Emergency exit signs/lighting will be provided at all exit doors.

. Site must have adequate air conditioning and heat.
a. New roof top heating, ventilating and air conditioning units will be installed to

provide comfortable and efficient air conditioning and heating. Units will be
zoned to control temperature throughout the space.

. Site must have electrical and telephone capacity suitable for Library computer and

telecommunications equipment.
a. New electrical service will be installed with outlets installed to meet the needs of

the Library. Data junction boxes will be installed for City of Carroll supplied
data/communication wiring.

. Building size requirements.
a. Library - Commercial rental facility with a minimum of 8,000 square feet of
space. Larger spaces will be considered.
i. The space within the Depot Business Center will be approximately 8,401

square feet per the attached floor plan.

. Parking requirements
a. Library - Must have a minimum of 35 parking spaces near the building.
i. The site has more than the requested 35 parking spaces but to help
facilitate parking in the area an additional 15 spaces will be added along
the north/south frontage road per the attached site plan.

. Proposal shall list all property owners and the Management Company (if any).
a. The Depot Business Center is owned and managed by Badding Construction.

. Proposal shall include plat and plans.
a. Afloor plan, site plan and plat are included as attachments.






Q. Proposal shall include an all-inclusive monthly rental price, inclusive of common
area maintenance (CAM) for the initial term and the following month to month
renewal term.

a. The all-inclusive monthly rental price for the 8,401 square feet located at the
Depot Business Center will be Four Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars
($4,725.00) per month.

b. The all-inclusive rental fee includes base building rent, property taxes, building
insurance, water/sewer usage and common area maintenance. Common area
maintenance includes snow removal, lawn care, maintenance of parking lot,
sidewalks, exterior building facade, roof and mechanical equipment.

R. Proposals need to specify if the following utilities/services are included in the lease
cost. These utilities/services include: 1) electric, 2) gas, 3) water, 4) sewer, and 5)
trash. If they are not included, proposal are asked to include information on the
expected cost for each utility/service.

a. The following services will be the responsibility of the Landlord
i. Water and sewer

b. The following services will be the responsibility of the Tenant
i. Electricity, gas, trash

S. The building owner is responsible to meet all requirements of the building code
including, but not limited to, ADA access, required number of restrooms, and fire
protection. The City understands that due to the temporary nature of the proposed
use(s), that the requirement to install or have a fire sprinkler system can be waived
under provisions in the building code. The owner is responsible for understanding
all building code requirements as they apply to their building and the proposed
uses. Questions on the building code should be directed to Greg Schreck at 712-792-
1000.

a. The Depot Business Center site will meet ADA access requirements.

b. Two restroom facilities will be provided. A Women'’s with two (2) toilets and a
Men’s with one (1) toilet and one (1) urinal. Both restrooms will meet ADA
requirements.

c. The existing fire sprinkler system will remain as is. Horn/strobe alarms will be
installed. All demising walls will be insulated, one hour rated construction.

d. The site will meet building code exiting requirements.






T. Responses to the RFP shall indicate the level of finishes the building will offer. Due
to the temporary nature of the lease, the City understands the need to balance the
cost of a finished space with the budgetary constraints of a short-term lease.
Finishes will be considered as part of the site suitability section of the evaluation.
Some items to consider and the City will accept:

a. Ceiling
i. The existing open ceiling structure will remain as is.

b. Walls
i. All walls will be insulated, finished drywall and painted.

c. Flooring
i. Existing floors will be sealed concrete with City of Carroll applied flooring
in locations deemed appropriate. Vinyl base will be installed at all walls.
Restrooms will have sheet vinyl flooring and vinyl base installed.

d. Additional Improvements
i. Landlord shall provide additional improvements including circulation area,
office and book storage. New area to include painted drywall walls, check-
out counter, doors and acoustical ceiling in office and circulation room.






7-7 3/8"

" SERENDIPITY]. s e
Y CHECKOUT - T . o T i T T
o CONTER & e o
STAFF
21'-7"
PARTIAL
> V 2 \EXT.ELEVATION
. . . OFFICE = - SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"
. N
SUITEC @ 16-0
R =
8,407 S.F. STOR.
I
. 105'-2 1/2" 7 =
gé 68'-9 5/8" b 364 /87
9 1
&)
L m a (
9 o
=
x
11]
n
e TE “E ET
by s .
) - 2
7'-5" "
Gy . i
- A SUE—U TRRINON, T
~ SERVICE CORR.
I & 5
PARTIAL ~ OVERALL
1 \FLOOR PLAN 3 \FLOORPLAN
WSCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0" WSCALE: 1/64" = 1'-0"
CITY OF CARROLL TEMPORARY LIBRARY SPACE .
DEPOT BUSINESS CENTER simar
425 US HIGHWAY 30 A
CARROLL, 1A S i

12-13-2017






s . T

S N ' 1
DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

GROSS SITE AREA: 7.33 ACRES .

LOT 1-1.37 ACRES
10,000 S.F. OFFICE / RETAIL
5.4 /1,000 S.F. PARKING PROVIDED

LOT 2 - 5.36 ACRES s
72,000 S.F. RETAIL / RESTAURANT £
4.6 /1,000 S.F. PARKING PROVIDED ¢

LOT 3 - 0.60 ACRES
6,895 S.F. RETAIL =
4.8/1,000 S.F. PARKING PROVIDED :

.,

Py

L TR T DEPOT B E ENTE
ler hit . Ti
I e PO USINESS CENTER -
i, dricutes and v SAkel ean how NORTH
hataln ate based on the information avallabla to th SITE PLAN
Teats s e plamconcestniy arddoms o 0 100"
s oy
Dacassarly relect ol Goverminy autnonty CARROLL, lowA
2= CONSTRUCTION ===l Nl ieriions ambsbme e ot "™ % ke
manarcment iy nput,tesgnage, araing, and 1" = 100'-0" ® 11°17" Sheet 1717 Ingersell avene suite 117 des moines s yoroy
Camoll, Towa. e e i o as
ot e o
* T documantaton. (C) Copyraht 2017 by *

SRR S SEPTEMBER 26,2017 P, B e

pEn S5 440 3626 assoc.com






il

o
7S

arroll Public Library ,

I epot Business Center






Carroll Public Library

Depot Business Center






9/28/2017

PIN
Address
Owner
Class

maps.camavision.com/map/carrollia?BBOX=-10561785.791139,5170754.7083281,-10560780.393163,5171171.5806593& SERVICE=print&SRS=EPS G:3857 &HEIGHT=680&WIDTH=1640&LAYE...

06-24-379-017

425 US HWY 30

BADDING CONSTRUCTION COMPANY
COMMERCIAL

06:24:379:-017

o

http://maps.camavision.com/map/carrollia?BBOX=-10561785.791139,5170754.7083281,-10560780.393163,5171171.5806593&SERVICE=print&SRS=EPSG:3857&HEIGHT=680&WIDTH=1640&LAYE. ..

7





el











B

Pl

g:?\wm

R






-

K

il

i
4 -

B

!






EXHIBIT B

RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS—Depot Business Center Use Restrictions

e From the Restrictive Covenant between Wal-Mart Corporation (Seller) and Badding
Construction Company (Purchaser):

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND RESTRICTIONS. (a) Purchaser covenants that the
Property will not be used for or in support of the following: (i) a grocery store or supermarket,
as hereinafter defined below, (ii) a wholesale club operation similar to that of a Sam’s Club
owned and operated by Wal-Mart, (iii) a discount department store or other discount store,
as hereinafter defined, or (iv) a pharmacy (the “Property Restrictions”). “Grocery store” and
“supermarket”, as those terms are used herein, shall mean a food store or a food department
containing more than 35,000 square feet of gross leasable area, for the purpose of selling food
for consumption off the premises, which shall include but not be limited to the sale of dry,
refrigerated or frozen groceries, meat, seafood, poultry, produce, delicatessen or bakery
products, refrigerated or frozen dairy products, or any grocery products normally sold in such
stores or departments, “Discount department store” and/or “discount store”, as those terms
are used herein, shall mean a discount department store or discount store containing more
than 50,000 square feet of gross leasable area, for the purpose of selling a full line of hard
goods and soft goods (e.g. clothing, cards, gifts, electronics, garden supplies, furniture,
lawnmowers, toys, health and beauty aids, hardware items,

bath accessories and auto accessories) at a discount in a retail operation similar to that of
Wal-Mart. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Property Restrictions shall not apply to Wal-
Mart Stores, Inc. or any parent company, affiliate, subsidiary, or related company. (b) The
Property Restrictions shall survive the Closing and remain in effect for a period of twenty-
five (25) years. The aforesaid Property Restrictions shall run with and bind the Property and
shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by Seller, or its successors and assigns, by
any appropriate proceedings at law or in equity to prevent violations of such aforesaid
Property Restrictions or to recover damages for such violations.

o From that certain Lease Agreement between Appliance & Furniture RentAll, Inc. (Lessee) and
Badding Construction Company (Lessor):

o Lessor agrees to give Appliance & Furniture RentAll, Inc., the exclusive right to operate
a rental/leasing business in the Depot Business Center and will not lease space to any
other tenant who rents and/or leases the above mentioned items.






e From that certain Lease Agreement between Hibbett Sporting Goods, Inc. (Lessee) and Badding
Construction Company (Lessor):

O

Landlord shall not use or permit the use of any portion of the Center as any of
the following: massage parlor; “adult book or video store” or similar business
catering to pornographic interests; amusement center or game room (featuring,
without limitation, pinball, electric and video game machines); bowling alley; tire,
battery or auto parts retail location; skating rink; head shop; off-track betting
facility; billiard parlor; gyms and exercise facilities; automobile leasing facility;
rent-to-own, check cashing, business operation generally referred to as a “flea
market”; night club; comedy club; country and western bar; teenage facility;
dance hall; bingo parlor; or a close-out, thrift, good will or similar store such as
“Big Lots”, “Bud's” or “Odd Lots".

All space in the Center shall be used for retail, service and office (not municipal-
type) use, in accordance with the high standards of a first class shopping center
and Landlord shall maintain in the Center a mix of tenants as will best serve the
interest of all tenants; provided such office use shall be limited to space facing
the west side of the Center. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landiord shall not
permit any other tenant or other user in the Center to conduct the Exclusive Use
(defined below) either as its principal use or within a kiosk or in an area
exceeding the lesser of one thousand (1,000) square feet or more than twenty
percent (20%) of such other tenant's respective premises, sales or inventory
(“Exclusive Covenant”); the measurement of such other tenant's respective
premises shall include any and all racks, tables, displays, etc and the area used
to access these by the customer. For purposes hereof, the Exclusive Use shall
be defined as the retail sale of sporting goods, athletic apparel, athletic shoes or
sports fan licensed products. Further, tenants such as, for purposes of example
and not in limitation, Encore Stores, Lids, Lids Team Sports, Lids Locker Room,
Genesco, Foot Locker, Finish Line, Shoe Department, Shoe Show, Rack Room,
Sports Chalet, Sportsman’s Warehouse, MC Sports, Dunham’s, Shoe Carnival,
Champs, Cabelas, REIl, Play it Again Sports, Gander Mountain, Big 5, Dick’s,
Sports Authority and Academy will be a violation of this provision. Further still,
“athletic shoes”, as used in the Exclusive Use, shall include, but not be limited
to, any shoe whatsoever made or branded by: Adidas, Adio, Airwalk, American
Eagle, And1, Apple Bottoms, Asics, Avia, Bearpaw, Black Label, Body Glove,
Brooks, Champion, Choco, City Sneaks, Colombia, Clarks, Converse, Coodgi,
Crocs, Cross Treckers, DC, Diadora, Dunkman, Ecko, Easton, Etnies, Fila, Guy
Harvey, Heely's, Hi-Tec, Jordan, Kaepa, K-Swiss, Keds, Keens, LA Gear,
Lacoste, Lugz, Kiskeen, Mark Ecko, Merrell, Mizuno, New Balance, Nike,
Oakley, Pearl Izumi, Polo, Predictions, Puma, Quiksilver, Rainbow, Reebok,
Rocawear, Rockport, Rugged Outback, Russell, Ryka, Saucony, Skechers,
Sperry, Steve Madden, Stride Rite, Tapout, Teva, The North Face, Timberland,
Umbro, Under Armour, Vans, Wilson, Zodiac, Zoo York. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, all existing tenants as of the Effective Date shall be excepted from the
Exclusive Covenant provided such existing tenants maintain their current use

and product mix.

18






From that certain Lease Agreement between Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (Lessee) and Badding
Construction Company (Lessor):

o Landlord shall not lease, rent or occupy, or permit to be leased, rented or occupied, any
portion of the Shopping Center for the operation of a single price point variety retail
store or any other retail store the Principal Business of which is the operation of a single
price point variety retail store.

o Landlord will not permit any occupant of the Shopping Center to operate their premises
for any of the following uses without the prior written consent of Tenant, which
consent may be withheld by Tenant in its sole and absolute discretion:

o Variety retail operations with the word “Dollar” or any derivation,
abbreviation, slang, symbol or combination thereof (or their respective
equivalents in any other language) in their trade name; or

° A store whose Principal Business is the sale of merchandise which is
classified as “close-out”, “odd lot”, “clearance”, “discontinued”,
“cancellation”, “second”, “floor model”, “demonstrator”, “obsolescent”,

“over stock”, “distressed”, “bankruptcy”, “fire sale” or “damaged”; or

. A store whose Principal Business is selling a combination of gifts, cards,
gift wrap and other party supplies; or

. An arts & crafts store or a store whose Principal Business is selling a combination
of craft supplies, art supplies, artificial flowers, picture frames and scrapbooking

supplies; or

. A non-membership warehouse store less than 30,000 square feet that sells
restaurant supplies, janitorial supplies and related items; or

® A store whose Principal Business is selling a variety of general merchandise at a
price not to exceed $5.00, provided that such limitation on price is a part of the
regularly advertised attributes of such store; or

) Any of the uses described on Exhibit F attached hereto; provided, however, that
the restrictions related to the Restricted Uses described on Exhibit F attached
hereto shall be limited to the Front Facing Tenants and shall expressly not apply
to the remainder of the Shopping Center.






Exhibit F from Lease Agreement between Dollar Tree Stores, Inc. (Lessee) and Badding Construction
Company (Lessor)

Restricted Uses

Any one or more of the following uses:

1.
2.
3.

A flea market;

A pawn shop;

A bar, pub, nightclub, music hall or disco in which less than 50% of the space or 50% of
the revenue is devoted to and derived from food service;

4. A bowling alley, billiard, pool or bingo parlor;

10.
I1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24,

An arcade, pinball or computer game room (provided that retail facilities which are
otherwise not prohibited or restricted may operate no more than six (6) such electronic
games incident to their primary business);

A facility for the sale or rental of used goods (including thrift shops, secondhand or
consignment stores);

A training or educational facility (including, without limitation, a beauty school, barber
college, reading room, driving school, or other facility catering primarily to students or
trainees rather than customers);

A massage parlor (which shall not be construed to mean a business of the type commonly
referred to as a “day spa”);

A funeral home;

A gymnasium, sport or health club;

A facility for the sale of paraphernalia for use with illicit drugs;
A marijuana dispensary;

A facility for the sale or display of pornographic material;

A lingerie bar, “go go” bar or other similar establishment;

A Laundromat;

An off-track betting parlor;

A carnival, amusement park or circus;

A gas station, car wash or auto repair or body shop;

A facility for the sale of new or used motor vehicles, motorcycles, trailers or mobile homes;
A skating rink;

A banquet hall, auditorium or other place of public assembly;
A hotel or residential facility;

A theater of any kind; or

Other non-retail uses except for office or storage facilities incidental to a primary retail
operation;

20






This instrument prepared by:

Wal-Mart Realty Company

Sam M. Walton Development Complex
2001 8.E. 10™ Street

Bentonville, AR 72716-0550

: . sel
(,:t;r;) g;:gdl;(:%ers. Asst. General Counse A mg g,,e,‘%h Aslnsthio,_2009-2581
el June 25, 2009
When recorded return to; st 12:30 vtk P Mend e
Stewart Title Guaranty Company ok 2009 Pags 228l
Two North LaSalle Street, Suite 1400 feed 32.00 Marllyn Dopeldo Co. Recordsr
Chicago, IL 60602 7 Pages

Attn: Stephanie Natalino

STATE OF IOWA o
MODIFICATION OF DEED RESTRICTIONS
COUNTY OF CARROLL Lo

THIS MODIFICATION OF DEED RESTRICTIONS (this “Modification"), dated
June 11, 2009, is executed and delivered by WAL-MART-REALTY COMPANY, an Arkansas
corpotation (“Wal-Mart”), in favor of BADDING CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, an lowa
corporation (*Badding®).

RECITALS

A. By Special Warranty Deed dated June 3, 2008, and recorded in Book 2008 at
Page 2257 in the County Clerk's Office for Carroll County (the “Deed”), Wal-Mart conveyed to
Badding a parcel of real property located in the City of Carroll, lowa, more particularly
described on Exhibit “A" attached hereto (the “Praperty™).

B. Pursuant to the Deed, Wal-Mart subjected the Property to certain use restrictions,
which are more particularly set forth in the Deed (the “Restrictions™), and retained the right to
enforce the Restrictions for a period of twenty-five (25) years from the date of recording of the
Deed. The Restrictions prohibit certain types of retail uses ou the Property.

C. Badding has requested Wal-Mart 10 ¢xecute this Modification in order to modify
one of the types of retail uses on the property.

MODIFICATION OF RESTRICTIONS
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants set forth

below, Wal-Mart and Badding agree for themselves, and their respective successors, affiliated
companies and assigns, as follows:

1, "The Restrictions contained in the Deed are amended to provide that they shall not
apply to a pharmacy use on the Property up to 15,000 square feet. Notwithstanding anything
contained herein, a drive-thru pharmacy of any size is prohibited on the Property.

2. Except as expressly modified by this Modification, the Restrictions set forth in the
Deed shall continue in full force and effect, and are hereby ratified by the parties.

Carroll, lowa
Store #V1787

21






3. This Modification has been entered into, and shall be construed in accordance
with, the laws of the State of Iowa. This Modification sets forth the entire agreement of the
parties with respect to the matters set forth herein, and supersedes any prior written or oral
understandings between the parties with respect to those matters,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Wal-Mart and Badding have executed this Modification of
Restrictions as of the day and year first above written.

AI" ‘EST WAL-MART REALTY COMPANY, an

Arkansas corporation
,MAQ
Y n
Q‘ By' ¥ "'. 4 (33
. Malfg: ;&_&MLU&QL_MLCZ‘L__ By
> Assitalit Secretary

A q‘iﬂ = Name: R, 0. Kl nnavd
V A Title: \/ice- Presidend | Reahiy
i ~" Disposi-h on ond Appras s+

1.

STATE OF ARKANSAS )

COUNTY OFBENTON )

In the State of Arkansas, County of Benton, on this Q&H\ day of May , 2009,
before me tge ndels’ned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State/ personally
appeﬂred W 1 : z gnaly gggown; who being by me duly swom did say that
she is the e5iE jité of the Grantor coxpomtlon in the foregoing
modification of deed restrictions, and that the seal thereto affixed is the corporate seal of said
corporation and that said modification of deed restrictions was sjgned gnd ses
said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors and said Gl Beks
said modification of deed restrictions to be the free act of said comporation.

acknowledged

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal subscribed and affixed in said county and state, the
day and year in this certificate above written.

Notary Public:
auee Q. JQOA}»
PaM'o.- A Seay

My Commission Expires: __& [ I 2013~

" NOTARY SEAL "
Paula A. Seay, Notary Public

Benton County, Stalo of Arkansas
My Commission Expires 6/1/2012

C-1099692v] 1716500018 2

22






STATE OF Iowa
COUNTY OF cCarxoll

In the State of

Iowa

)
)88
)

, County of Carroll

BADDING CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY, an lowa corporation

BADDING CONSTRUCTION
COMPANY, an lowa corporation

By:

Name: Nick Badding / y i %
Title: President .,.ém--.s "0
A "
I -J% !
8.
a.:.°‘ e °©
);bf- )
o 0 4 v
) Mk ¢
ﬂ'l

.onthis 11 dayof June

2009, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally

Nick Badding

appeared

, to me personally known, who being by me duly sworn did

say that he/she is the President

of Badding Construction Company in the

foregoing modification of deed restrictions, and that the seal thereto affixed, if any, is the
corporate seal of said corporation and that said modification of deed restrictions was signed and
sealed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors and said

Nick Badding  ncknowledged said modification of deed resirictions to be the free act of

said corporation.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal subscribed and affixed in said county and state, the
day and year in this cerlificate above written.

Notary Public:

[0
l ek
{8k

My Commission Expires:

LOIS PETEASON
Gommission Number 718749 -
mcw&«g&s;qu EXPIRES

Lois Peterson

9-27-11

C-1099692v1 17165.00018 3

23






C-1099692v1 1716500018

Exhibit “A”

Lot 5, Block 1, Midwest Towne Subdivision to
Carroll, Carroll County, Iowa, EXCEPT that
portion of Lot 5 lying South of the Southerly
right-of-way of Fifth Street extended Westerly
and lying East of the Northexly extension of
the Westerly line of Lot 3 of said Block 1.,

24






		Library

		color

		r&R

		Project








City of :
4 i@runlamatmn

a
a I/foﬂ National Blood Donor Month
7

EHEREAS, as a way to honor blood donors, who save millions of lives annually, and
to encourage donations during winter months, January was designated as National
Blood Donor Month via a Presidential Proclamation in December of 1969; and,

BHEREAS, a portion of that proclamation reads “No manifestation of this generosity
of spirit is more expressive, and no gift more priceless in time of personal crises, than
the donation of one’s blood. The voluntary blood donor truly gives life itself”; and,

BHEREAS, National Blood Donor Month continues to be an important annual event
for blood centers and patients not only in the City of Carroll but across the county as
winter blood shortages are common due to holiday schedules and seasonal illness that

often limit donations; and,

YHEREAS, it is estimated that over 39,000 units of blood are needed to support
transfusions every day. Without generous donors and teams of dedicated donor
recruitment professionals, such as Life Serve and The American Red Cross, hospitals
and emergency treatment facilities would not be able to properly care for patients.

#)OW THEREFORE, I, ERIC P. JENSEN, MAYOR OF THE CITY OF CARROLL, do
hereby proclaim January as National Blood Donor Month in Carroll, Iowa and do urge
the citizens of Carroll to support blood donations by donating at local blood drives not

only in January but all year long.

Eric P. Jensen, Mayor






City Manager’s

Monthly Activity Report
Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager

November 2017

City of @/fﬂi’l

This is a report of the various departments and divisions of the City of Carroll.

1






Finance Department

As reported by Laura Schaefer, City Clerk/Finance Director

Routine Activities for the month:

Dealt with water issues/collections
Worked with DMACC intern who has an interest in city government
Prepared Annual Urban Renewal Report — due December 1
Prepared annual appropriations resolution for TIF rebate
Prepared and file TIF debt certifications to county auditor — due December 1
Chamber Leadership Institute — November 15 (City Hall)
Attended League of Cities Municipal Leadership Academy — November 29 (Carroll)
Attended budget workshop — November 30 (Johnston)
Prepared budget worksheets for staff
Reviewed draft of FY 17 audit report
Continued to promote wellness initiatives (Carroll County Wellness Coalition and City
wellness program)
o Wellness Coalition Meeting — November 16

Activities planned for next month and other comments:

Continue to work on delinquent water accounts/water issues
Draft financial policies
Prepare management discussion and analysis (MD&A) FY 17 audit report
IPERS compliance review — December 5
Council annual planning session — December 14
Prepare budget information for admin/finance departments
Continue review of temporary office space for City Hall
Continue to promote wellness program with employees
o Wellness Coalition Meeting — December 21
o Live Healthy lowa 10 Week Challenge — January 22 — March 30, 2018

Accomplishments of particular note:

e 288 utility bills and statements were emailed in November 2017






Fire Department

As reported by Greg Schreck, Fire Chief

Routine Activities for the month:
The Department responded to 11 calls for service and held four training sessions in November.
The Fire Department hosted the 95" annual Firemen’s Dance held November 4™,

Firefighters conducted a complete inspection of all portable firefighting and support equipment in
November.

Representatives with Fort Dodge Region V Hazardous Materials Response Team presented annual
refresher training for our Department on November 20™. Carroll County contracts with Region V to
provide technician-level response to any incident involving hazardous material incidents in Carroll
County. This training provided our members with valuable information for the exchange of
information between entities during response to incidents involving hazardous materials.

The Department assisted the Chamber of Commerce in replacing bulbs in the downtown street light

Christmas decorations. The Department also provided transportation for Santa and Mrs. Claus
arriving in town for the Christmas tree lighting event held at the Chamber office November 24",

Run Report for November:

Alarm Date Alarm Location Incident Type

11/04/2017

112 E 51 St

Smoke detector activation — no fire

11/07/2017

741 Granada

False alarm

11/15/2017

714 Simon Ave

Vehicle accident

11/15/2017

506 E 18" St

Food un-attended on stove — smoke
only

11/17/2017

116 Peeble Ln

Carbon monoxide report

11/20/2017

3203 N Grant Rd

HVAC smoke detector activation

11/21/2017

502 N Court St

False alarm

11/24/2017

190" & Phoenix Ave

Grass fire

11/27/2017

2014 Kittyhawk Ave

False alarm

11/29/2017

710 E 18" St

Food un-attended on stove — smoke
only

11/29/2017

610 E 18" St

False alarm






Police Department

As reported by Brad Burke, Police Chief

Routine Activities for the month:

On November 1% and 2", | attended a media relations course in Minneapolis, MN. The course
was sponsored by the Minnesota Chiefs of Police and was focused on creating a positive
relationship with the media and how to get the message of the department to the public through
partnership with the media.

Sergeant Gary Bellinghausen and Detective Alex Klever attended a crime scene conference and
workshop in Council Bluffs on the 7" and 9™. The course provided the offices with knowledge
of evidence collection focusing on fingerprint analysis.

Officer Jeff Nichols began employment with the police department as a patrol officer on
November 13. He has begun field training and will attend the lowa Law Enforcement Academy
beginning January 2, 2018. Nichols is a Kuemper High School and Buena Vista University
graduate.

Officer Justin Ferrin completed K9 handler training school with CPD K9 Eudoris on the 24™.
Eudoris was purchased with donations from the public. The K9 fundraising was started by four
Carroll High School students which raised enough to purchase Eudoris, train the handler, and
equip a vehicle for the K9 team. The K9 team is currently on patrol but will have continued
monthly training for the next 12 months.






CARROLL POLICE DEPARTMENT OFFENSE SUMMARY

Incidents
November November November
2017 2016 2015

Offenses

Forcible Rape
Forcible Fondling
Porno/Obscene Material
Robbery
Aggravated Assault
Simple Assault
Domestic Abuse
Burglary/B&E
Shoplifting

Theft from Vehicle
Theft Vehicle Part
Theft of Bike

Theft from Building
Other Larceny
Motor Vehicle Theft
Arson
Counterfeit/Forgery
Credit/ATM Fraud
Identify Theft

Bad Checks

Stolen Property
Vandalism

Vandalism:

Business

Vandalism:

Residence

Vandalism:

Vehicle

Vandalism:

School

Vandalism:

Other

Weapon Law Violation

Drug/Narc Violations

Drug Equipment Viol

Drive Under Influence

OWI 2nd

OWI 3

Liquor Law Violation

Drunkenness

Disorderly Conduct

Harassment

All Other Offenses

False Information

Trespassing






Runaway

Missing Person

Cruelty to Animal

Found Person

Found Property

Unattended Death

Suicide

Mental Case

Animal Bite

Dispose of Animal

Warrant Outside

Restraining Order

1050F Traffic Acc

10-50 PI Personal Injury

10-50 PI MV Pedestrian

10-50 PI Car & Bike

10-50 PD Prop.

10-50 Car & Deer

1050 PD: Hit and Run

10-50 PD Under 1500

Assist Other Agency

Moving Violations

Op After Revocation

Operate After Suspen

Miscellaneous Public

Total

11/01/2017 thru 11/30/2017

Citations

Animal

Tobacco

Dark Windows

License Violation

11/01/2017 thru 11/30/2017

Other

Violation (Parking)

Registration

Salvage Vehicle
Inspections: 6

Seatbelt

Traffic

Warning Notices

Loud Stereo

TOTAL






Building Department

As reported by Perry Johnson, Building Official

Permits - By Class - By Type - November 2017

Class | Permit Type | Date Issued Valuation Permit #

Agricultural
Building
NONE $0.00 $0.00

Agricultural Building Valuation Total: $0.00 Agricultural Building Fee Total: $0.00

Agricultural Valuation Total: $0.00  Agricultural Fee Total: $0.00

Commercial
Building

11/02/2017 $5,000,000.00 170334 $8,068.00

11/21/2017 $524,000.00 170349 $1,493.00

Commercial Building Valuation Total: $5,524,000.00 Commercial Building Fee Total: $9,561.00
Electrical

11/02/2017 170317 $86.18

11/02/2017 170327 $201.96

11/16/2017 170346 $80.88

Commercial Electrical Fee Total: $369.02
Mechanical
11/02/2017 170319 $41.89
Commercial Mechanical Fee Total: $41.89
Plumbing
11/02/2017 170318 $61.50
11/10/2017 170336 $75.50
Commercial Plumbing Fee Total: $137.00
Right of Way
11/14/2017 170340 $7,038.15

11/14/2017 170341 $2,713.42
Commercial Right of Way Fee Total: ~ $9,751.57

$0.00
Commercial Sign Fee Total: $0.00

Commercial Valuation Total:  $5,524,000.00 Commercial Fee Total: $19,860.48






Residential
Building
11/16/2017 $28,000.00 170345 $185.00
Residential Building Valuation Total: $28,000.00 Residential Building Fee Total: $185.00
Electrical
11/02/2017 170329 $152.00
11/17/2017 170347 $37.00
11/17/2017 170348 $35.88
Residential Electrical Fee Total: $224.88
Mechanical
11/02/2017 170322 $46.51
11/02/2017 170326 $46.51
11/02/2017 170332 $56.01
11/10/2017 170335 $34.76
11/10/2017 170339 $53.26
11/16/2017 170344 $56.01
Residential Mechanical Fee Total: $293.06
Plumbing
11/02/2017 170323 $87.00
11/02/2017 170325 $79.00
11/02/2017 170331 $73.00
11/16/2017 170343 $76.50

Residential Plumbing Fee Total: $315.50

Right of Way
11/02/2017 170316 $25.00
11/02/2017 170320 $25.00
11/02/2017 170321 $25.00
11/02/2017 170324 $25.00
11/02/2017 170330 $25.00
11/02/2017 170333 $25.00
11/10/2017 170337 $25.00
11/10/2017 170338 $25.00
11/16/2017 170342 $25.00

Residential Right of Way Fee Total: $225.00

$0.00
Residential Sign Fee Total: $0.00

Residential VValuation Total: $28,000.00 Residential Fee Total: $1,243.44

Valuation Grand Total: ~ $5,552,000.00 Fee Grand Total: $21,103.92






Permits - YTD - through November 2017

Class Permit Type Valuation

Fee

Agricultural
Building $0.00
Agricultural

Valuation Total: $0.00

Agricultural
Fee Total:

$0.00

$0.00

Commercial
Building $20,780,620.00

Electrical

Mechanical

Plumbing

Right of Way

Sign

Commercial
Valuation Total: $20,780,620.00

Commercial
Fee Total:

$39,492.33
$2,825.32
$1,232.77
$1,273.00
$10,051.57
$305.00

$55,179.99

Residential
Building
Electrical

$8,629,104.64

Mechanical
Plumbing
Right of Way
Sign

Residential

Valuation Total:  $8,629,104.64

Residential
Fee Total:

$29,800.08
$3,407.61
$1,293.97
$2,396.50

$7,114.99

$44,013.15

Valuation Grand Total:

$29,409,724.64 Fee Grand Total:

$99,193.14

9






As reported by Randy Krauel, Public Works Director/City Engineer

Routine Activities for the month:
Division: Streets; Tom Weber, Street Superintendent

Excavated nine graves for Cemetery

Swept streets and CBD at 5:00 AM on Thursdays.

Maintained signs and signals.

Crack seal new concrete pours.

Hauled 45 loads of clay to former golf course house site on November 17,

Put up Christmas lights in CBD on November 1%,

Finished sidewalks at UPRR on Main Street.

Tom attended continuing education class for Ornamental and Turf Grass on November 8" at
the ISU Extension office.

Removed a tree a High Service Pump Station on November 16",

Worked on bi-annual bridge inspection report, repairing reported items.

Division Safety Meeting: Union Pacific Winter Weather Planning; November 21%,

Division: Water; Terry Kluver, Water Superintendent

e Water production:

Monthly Total: 32.364 million gallons

Daily Average: 1.079 million gallons

Daily Maximum:  1.306 million gallons

e Completed 127 lowa One Call locate requests.
e Meter Department

- 50 service orders.

- 14 delinquents.

- 3rereads.

- 4 stuck meters.

Division Safety Meeting: Jared Hays and Garold Sorensen attended an Excavation
Training Workshop in Storm Lake on October 23, 2017. They presented the workshop
principles and the importance of using proper methods for safe and effective excavations to
Water Plant personnel on November 7, 2017.

Division: Sean Kleespies, Wastewater Superintendent

e \Wastewater treatment:
Monthly Total: 40.093 million gallons
Daily Average: 1.393 million gallons
Daily Maximum: 1.357 million gallons
Performed laboratory analysis.
Completed DNR Monthly Operating Report.
Daily plant sampling and operations.
Division Safety Meeting: “November IMWCA Informer” November 28", 2017.

10






Special Activities/Accomplishments of particular note:

Division: Streets; Tom Weber, Street Superintendent

Assisted the Wastewater Division with a water leak on November 13",

Assisted the Water Division with a water leak at Main Street and Hillcrest Drive on
November 9" and 10"

Assisted the Water Division with a watermain repair on West 3™ Street on November 15,
Assisted the Water Division with a fire hydrant replacement on Crawford Street and 3™ Street
on November 16",

Assisted the Water Division with a fire hydrant replacement on West Street and 3™ Street on
November 29",

Division: Water; Terry Kluver, Water Superintendent

Installed replacement fire hydrant and valve at Crawford Street and 3™ Street.

Repaired watermain break on Main Street and Hillcrest Drive on November 9" and 10™.
Installed replacement fire hydrant and valve at N. West Street and 3™ Street.

Completed winter checklist on 490 fire hydrants.

Repaired 8-inch storm sewer at HSPS.

Division: Sean Kleespies, Wastewater Superintendent

Repaired vacuum tube on the jet/vac.

Repaired the electrical wiring to the hydraulics on the jet/vac.
Assisted Street Division with hanging Christmas decorations.
Carroll Controls completed the annual boiler inspection.
Replaced bad alarm float at the 12™" Street Lift Station.

E & F Custom Pumping cleaned out the sludge lagoon.






Activities planned for next month and other comments:

Division: Streets; Tom Weber, Street Superintendent

Maintain signs and signals.
Plow and sand, as needed.

Crack seal.
Haul sweeping debris to Landfill.

Division: Water; Terry Kluver, Water Superintendent

Install new fire hydrant and valve at Clark Street and 5™ Street.
Prepare F.Y. 18 — 19 Budget requests.

Update utilities maps with completed projects.

Abandon and plug four (4) test wells on W. 3" Street.

Division: Sean Kleespies, Wastewater Superintendent

Laboratory Analysis.

DNR Monthly Operating Report.

Perform preventative maintenance on equipment.
Begin CCTV inspections of the sanitary sewer.
Working on Wastewater training manuals for testing.






CAPITAL PROJECT STATUS SUMMARY -12-12-17

PROJECT

ANTICIPATED

CONTRACT DATA

Project Name

Action
Plan

Budget

Estimated
Cost

Projected
Completion

Contractor

Contract Cost

Start Date

Expenditure

%
Complete

Completion
Date

Trails

2015
On-
going

FY16

Rec Center
Locker Rooms

2015
On-
going

Streambed
Stabilization

$385,000

Street
Resurfacing
2013

JEO
Consulting
Group, Inc.

Godbersen-
Smith
Construction
Co.

$60,800.00 +

$555,808.75

09-24-12

$143,848.36

$563,827.37

11-15-13

11-15-13

Plus Hourly
Construction
Services

Street
Maintenance
Building

$4,308,500

FEH Design

$22,500.00

01-25-16

$2,250.00

05-01-16

Space Needs/
Prelim. Design

US 30 — Grant
Road
Intersection

$1,466,150

Snyder &
Associates,
Inc.

Snyder &
Associates,
Inc.

$4,900.00

$199,600.00

07-22-13

04-14-14

$4,900.00

$198,731.90

08-15-13

TSIP
Application

Design

Downtown
Streetscape
Phase 8

$998,500

Confluence
Confluence

Badding
Construction
Company

$101,940.00
$25,196.000

$1,294,844.41

11-10-14
06-12-17

06-12-17

$142,656.91

$1,043,470.88

05-15-17
11-15-17

11-15-17

Design
Completion
Const. Services






PROJECT ANTICIPATED CONTACT DATA

Project Name Action Estimated Projected Contractor Contract Cost | Start Date Expenditure % Completion
Plan Cost Completion Complete Date

Corridor Entry | 2016 $440,000 2018 Confluence $19,550.00 01-23-17 $18,861.96
Features On-

going

Third Street 2016 $1,036,000 JEO $71,193.00 09-26-16 | $129,623.95 Design
HMA On- Consulting $80,078.00 Construction

Resurfacing going Group, Inc. Services

Tri-State $777,872.17 Late Start | $750,868.47 40 Working
Paving Date Days

08-14-17
Well and JEO $324,000.00 07-28-14 $327,680.61

Transmission Consulting
Main Group, Inc.

Ha_“sm'és'on Drake $790,134.07 | 03-23-14 | $751,752.95 Contract
ain — Group Construction, Completion
A L.C. 11-30-15

Watermain $500,000
Replacement

Leachate King $661,257.50 07-18-16 CCSwWMC 08-31-16 CCSWMC
Forcemain & Construction Total $325,605.01 Contract

Gravity Sewer $335,962.50
City

Water System JEO $49,600.00 08-14-17 $23,175.00 12-29-17
Hydraulic Consulting
Model Group, Inc.

Downtown $985,500 Confluence $85,500.00 10-23-17 $5,699.80
Streetscape
Phase 9






Parks and Recreation

As reported by Jack Wardell, Parks and Recreation Director

Routine Activities for the month:

Parks: Scott Parcher, Parks Superintendent
e Clean up all park areas
Dump trash cans
Trim trees
Winter decorations put in downtown pots
Mulch leaves
Trim shrubs downtown
Water sod at Thomas and softball fields
Equipment maintenance
Haul mulch to 4™ Street track area
Put some equipment away for season
Turn all electricity off to the parks

: Scott Haakenson, Golf Superintendent
Mulched leaves as needed
Serviced mowers as needed
Brought in all tee markers
Brought in all trash cans and power washed
Brought in all ball washers and cleaned
Brought in fountain from #7 pond and cleaned
Winterized bathrooms and blew out water lines to them

Cemetery: John Snyder, Cemetery Sexton
e Removed one large ash tree in block 3 that was in bad shape
e Continued working on the boulder fence mortar joints that are deteriorating as time
and temperature allows
Took care of 11 interments, 10 of these were full burials
Worked with numerous families on finding grave locations
Sold graves whenever needed
Mulched leaves and finished cleaning out flower gardens
Cleaned up mowers and put them in storage
Cleaned up all summer equipment, winterized and put away for the winter
Removed mower deck and mounted snow blower on John Deere
Got snowplow out of storage and prepared it for winter use
Picked up sticks and branches and garbage daily
Removed old broken up concrete pad next to old Chapel Building
Talked to Jack about planting some trees for later transplant use in area by new
shop
Removed pile of rocks from next to the bathroom bldg. near old shop building
Laid off all part time seasonal help

Did all paperwork and records pertaining to the cemetery operation and
maintenance

15






Recreation Center: McKenzie Kiger, Recreation Center Superintendent

Interviewed 5 potential CRO to fill 2-5:30 MWEF shift, 3 starting to train

Teach Water Aerobics MWF — 12 classes in November

Began attending noon fitness class, subbed 1 class, prepare to teach in future when
Sarah on maternity leave

Covered several CRO front desk shifts

Lifeguarded 2 shifts

Perfect Mind Software — continued bimonthly meetings with contact, work with
Laura/Pam on matching EFT and past due accounts, ongoing issues keeping up with
fixes and cases

Meeting with DMACC on student memberships and future partnerships.

Senior Day food shopping, Senior Day is 1% Wednesday of the month and the REC
is free and we provide light breakfast snacks and coffee in the morning

Walk to Wellness continues - free admission to walk in the gym on Wednesdays —
people just need to sign the “Walk to Wellness” sheet at the front desk

Continued work on App Audio updates and members using it, along with internet
issues which are improving

Recreation Center: Sarah Haberl, Aquatics & Fitness Specialist

Taught 30+ hours of fitness classes

Finished off an 8-week Monday Night POUND class of 10 participants in the
fitness room

Finished off a 4-week Saturday Morning POUND class with 21 participants in the
gym

Fitness Calendar

Lifeguard Schedules

Lifeguard on Friday’s 11-1:30pm

Assist in shelter house reservations

Selling of passes & punch cards

Water testing

Recreation Center: Mike Mertes, Program Specialist

Monitor Production Slideshow update
Updating website & social media with help of Pam Hanlin
Update digital sign at Rec Center

Recreation Center: Pam Hanlin, Secretary

Daily money and reports for Rec Center (CRO Desk & Rec office)

Did CRO’s money a couple days due to Mary being gone

Shelter House reservations (Mainly enclosed shelters this time of year)

Room/Theater reservations

Send out November bills

Work on PAMP memberships

File October PAMP (New, Changes, & Deleted)

Fitness punch cards and class attendance

Enter monthly vending payments (Also showed Sarah how to enter these while | am

gone)

Dealt with questions from the control desk, during work day and after hours

16






Building Maintenance: Andy Snyder, Building Maintenance Specialist
e Changed light bulbs on city property
Back washed filters for pools and spa at Rec Center
General housekeeping
Time sheets for staff
Ordered supplies
Vacuum Pool
Night cleaning crew at Rec Center
Power scrub gym and pool at Rec Center
Bills

Special Activities/Accomplishments of particular note:

Parks: Scott Parcher, Parks Superintendent
e Ice rink installed at Rolling Hills
Fix irrigation pipe on softball field

. Scott Haakenson, Golf Superintendent
Sprayed herbicide on whole golf course
o Fertilized tees, greens, fairways, and some roughs
e Blew out irrigation
e Helped set up ice rink

Cemetery: John Snyder, Cemetery Sexton
e Removal of large ash tree by Annenberg Mausoleum in Block 3 by myself

Recreation Center: McKenzie Kiger, Recreation Center Superintendent

e Special Event Todd Oliver, comedian and ventriloquist, performed November 11.
He did 3 assemblies at Carroll public schools to promote “practice and
encouragement”. We had 164 in attendance, with 63 of those being day of sales.
Revenues were $2535; expenses of $1796.96 plus 1 full-time staff and 2 part-time
staff to work the event.
Received grant in partnership with CAST to assist in payment of starting blocks,
finalized order information and install quote requests. CAST has fundraised to
cover cost of new starting blocks






Recreation Center: Sarah Haberl, Aquatics & Fitness Specialist

Hired 3 new lifegaurds

Lifeguard orientation

SOLD OUT a Christmas 4-week POUND class in 1 day!

Got confirmation on a new fitness class coming to the Rec Center in January 2018
taught by Jo Grundemeier

Training Steve Blackburn to take over Fit Mix AM classes

Recreation Center: Mike Mertes, Program Specialist

Parent / Child Turkey Shoot (11/12/17 65 parent / child shooting pairs)
Jingle Bell Run Planning (12/1/17)

Breakfast With Santa Planning (12/2/17)

1%t — 6™ Basketball Programming

Spring / Summer program planning

Recreation Center: Pam Hanlin, Secretary

Helped sell tickets for Todd Oliver

Worked with Laura on EFT payments

Worked with PerfectMind on not being able to be able corporate monthly
memberships.

Started to sell tickets to Breakfast with Santa

Started collecting toys for the Giving Tree Jingle Bell run/walk
Registration started for Kid’s night out

Typed up instructions on how to do money while | am gone

Building Maintenance: Andy Snyder, Building Maintenance Specialist

Fixed bathrooms at city buildings

Worked on vacuums at City Hall and Rec Center
Fixed exercise equipment

Sinks and drains at Rec Center and City Hall
Downtown lights

Working on specs, bids, quotes

Locker locks at Rec Center

Budget items

Theater rentals

Floor drains at Rec Center

Finishing budget items

Next year’s budget items

Street lights to LED

Golf Course winterizing

Heating system at city buildings

New Auto scrubber

Open afterhours plan at Rec Center
Downtown Xmas lights






Activities planned for next month and other comments:

Parks: Scott Parcher, Parks Superintendent
e Icerink flooded (if cold enough)
Mulch put down around shrubs at Depot
Budget
Prepare equipment for snow removal

: Scott Haakenson, Golf Superintendent
Work on 18-19 budget
Cut down and clean up dead trees
Start working on mower cutting units

Cemetery: John Snyder, Cemetery Sexton
e Snow removal when needed
e Standard winter schedule

Recreation Center: McKenzie Kiger, Recreation Center Superintendent
e Lifeguard class scheduled starting Dec 3
e Assist with Breakfast with Santa and Jingle Bell Run
e Working to get Tonic Sol Fa for a concert in the theater 2018, and a couple other
events to bring in to our theater when not in use

Recreation Center: Sarah Haberl, Aquatics & Fitness Specialist
e Lifeguard In-Service, Wednesday Dec 13 @ 2pm
e Revising lifeguard handbook
e Looking into how to grow our fitness classes

Recreation Center: Mike Mertes, Program Specialist
e Jingle Bell Run (12/1/17)
e Breakfast with Santa (12/2/17)
¢ Kids Night Out (12/8/17)

Recreation Center: Pam Hanlin, Secretary
e Would like to work on getting fitness punch cards working in the system before
2018-need to add senior classes \
e Started entering ongoing reservations into PerfectMind

Building Maintenance: Andy Snyder, Building Maintenance Specialist
e ’17-’18 Budget

Safety Topic:
e Cold weather
e CRO staff meeting — discussed child behavior issues, facility current issues, pool
assistance sliding backboard in






/‘
Dﬂ 6&1/0” Director’s Report
November 2017

PUBLIC LIBRARY

INFORM -« INSPIRE « IMAGINE

As reported by Rachel Van Erdewyk, Library Director

Tech Help Friday 43 | Total Print Circulation:
Children’s Library Programs 401 | BRIDGES Circulation:

Children’s Program Outreach 452 | Consumer Reports:

Pet Readers 6 | Public Computer Use:

Diane’s Read Aloud 75 | Wi-Fi Use:

Author Book Signing 20 | Website Visits

Crafty Library Ladies 61 | Gale Databases:

Poetry Group 20 | Global Road Warrior Page Views:
Book Clubs 6 | Learning Express Resources:
Reclaim Your Holidays 14 | Freegal Music Downloads:

Teen Advisory Group 8 | GVRL eBook Downloads:

Test Proctoring 2 | Chilton Auto Manual

ABC Mouse Sessions:

Zinio Digital Magazine Circulation:
Daily Times Herald Page Views:

Total Program Attendance
Monthly Door Count , Total Resources Utilized

Special activities/accomplishments of particular note:

1) Children’s Programs: Children’s programming continued this month with the
regular monthly schedule of Rookie Readers, Diane’s Read-Aloud, Pet Readers,
and outreach with book visits. Additional children’s programs included preschool
children visiting the library for a field trip where they toured the library, learned
about how to take care of books and then check out books. Fairview and Kuemper
preschools do not have access to their school libraries and the teachers greatly
appreciate the public library offering this service. Dr. Whoot and Diane also
attended Title 1 Family Night where teachers instruct parents on how to help their
child become stronger readers and encourage public library use. Diane signed
families up for library cards and the younger kids for the 1,000 Books Before
Kindergarten program.






2) Adult & Teen Programs: Adult programs continued this month with the regular
monthly schedule of Tech Help Fridays, Crafty Library Ladies, Book Club, Teen
Advisory Group, and the Poetry Group. We hosted an event for local authors Glen
Braddy and Dick Tighe to sign and sell their books. This event was well received
with many remembering Dick Tighe being a teacher or coach of theirs. We also
hosted a Reclaim Your Holidays program in partnership with Anjanette Treadway
from ISU Extension Office and Carroll Area Nursing Service. Participants learned
of ways to de-stress during the holidays and created some DIY crafts to give away
as gifts.

Friends of the Library Book Sale: The second week of November the Friends of
the Library hosted their Annual Book Sale held on November 10-11. The Friends
had another successful sale by finding new homes for many books, audiobooks,
and DVDs. Volunteers were hard at work setting up tables, moving and
organizing books, working the cashier table, and tearing down tables at the end.

4) Upcoming Events:
View upcoming events on the library’s Google calendar at www.carroll-
library.org by clicking on the Calendar of Events link on the home page.




http://www.carroll-library.org/

http://www.carroll-library.org/



Annual Planning Session

Carroll City Council Annual Planning Session
2016-2017 Priority Items Work Plan Update as of November 30, 2017

Current and Ongoing Items
e Develop Library/City Hall concept/implementation/financing plan
o Council Work Session with OPN held February 13, 2017

o Council Work Session with PFM held February 27, 2017
o Council Work Session held with OPN on April 10, 2017
o Council took action on May 22, 2017 on the following: 1) approving
elevations and floor plans; reviewed possible cost reductions with OPN; 2)
approved an overall budget for the Library/City Hall project of $6,800,000; 3)
received a letter from William Noth of Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. Attorney at
Law regarding the use of Local Option Sales Tax on the Library/City Hall
project; 4) approved a Property Gift Agreement between the Commercial
Saving Bank and the City of Carroll; and 5) called for a special city election
for August 1, 2017 on the question of permitting the issuance of $3,800,000 in
debt for the Library/City Hall project.
On August 1, 2017 citizens approved a referendum allowing for the issuance
of $3,800,000 in debt for the Library/City Hall project
In October 2017 The Library/City Hall Steering Committee met and made
recommendations for temporary lease spaces for Carroll City Hall and Carroll
Public Library
Continue Street Improvements
o Third Street HMA Resurfacing
= Bid Letting March 21, 2017 - Complete
= Award of Contract: April 24, 2017 - Complete
= Contract late start date: August 24, 2017 - Complete
= Contract working days: 40
Grant Rd/Hwy 30 Improvements
o Project Development Schedule (Tentative)
ROW Offers to Property Owners: June 2, 2017 — Complete
Check Plans and Bid Documents: June 30, 2017 - Complete
Final Plans and Bid Documents: August 18, 2017 - Compete
ROW Acquisition: October 31, 2017
Bid Letting: January 17, 2018
Bid Award: February 12, 2018
Trails Expansion
o Bid Letting — April 11, 2017 — Completed
o Award of Contract — April 24, 2017 — Completed
o Construction — Late July — Under construction as of August 21, 2017
o Completion Date — November 1, 2017
Review Graham Park Athletic District/ISU Plan when developed
o Plan reviewed with Committee at the February 10, 2017 meeting
o Final Plan has been reviewed by City Council
o $75,000 in the FY 18 budget for further planning
22






e Continue Corridor of Commerce streetscapes on planning bases
o Streetscape Phase 8 Project Development Schedule
= Plan Hearing: May 22, 2017 - Complete
= Bid Letting: June 6, 2017 - Complete
= Bid Award: June 12, 2017 - Complete
= Construction Substantial Completion: November 15, 2017
o Streetscape Phase 9 Project Development Schedule
= Begin Design Development — November, 2017
= Complete Design Development — January, 2018
= Complete Construction Documents — March, 2018
= Bid Letting — April, 2018
= Start Construction — May, 2018
FY 2018 Budget
o Conducted Council Work Sessions on January 26 and 30, 2017
o Public Hearing and FY 2018 Budget approved: March 13, 2017
City Entryway Signs
o City Council Workshop: January 9, 2017 - Complete
o Monument signage and Trail Improvement Capital Loan Note Public Hearing
and Resolutions: February 27, 2017 - Complete
Downtown Business Sign Selection: April 10, 2017, November 27, 2017
delayed to 2017 Planning Session
o US 30 East Entrance Sign Consideration: April 10, 2017, April 24, 2017,
May 8, 2017, November 27, 2017 delayed to 2017 Planning Session
Competitive Bidding Laws for lowa
o City Council Workshop: January 23, 2017 - Complete
o No further scheduled action
Implement Housing Study
o Held City Council workshop on June 26, 2017
o City Staff continues to work with partners to explore options to expand
housing opportunities in Carroll
o No further scheduled action at this time but future action is likely
Rental Housing Inspection Program
o Held City Council workshop on June 26, 2017
o No further scheduled action at this time






Upcoming Actions (Tentative Dates)
e Develop Library/City Hall concept/implementation/financing plan
o Additional work is underway after approval of the August 1, 2017 referendum
to move the project forward. It is likely an architectural services agreement
with OPN will be presented to the City Council in September.
e Develop Sidewalk repair program
o City Council Workshop: May 8, 2017 - Complete
e Trails Expansion
o Applied for REAP Grant 2018 - $125,000.00 — Continue trail north on the east
side of the golf course and continue to E 30" Street — Did not receive grant
funding
e Water Distribution/Street Conditions
o City Council Workshop — Street Conditions — September 11, 2017 — Complete
o Street Conditions — No further action scheduled at this time

Other items on the Horizon (Ongoing/no set timeline at this time)
e Waste Water Treatment Plant Improvements

o DO/Disinfection: Self-Assessment Matrix and Work Record Request:
January 1, 2017 - Complete
Copper: Compliance Strategy: May 1, 2017 - Complete
DO/Disinfection: Facility Plan: October 1, 2017
DO/Disinfection: Progress Report: April 1, 2018
Copper: Progress Report: May 1, 2018
DO/Disinfection: Plans and Specifications: September 1, 2018
Nutrient Reduction: Feasibility Report: November 1, 2018
DO/Disinfection: Construction Contract: November 1, 2018
Copper: Progress Report: May 1, 2019
DO/Disinfection: Progress Report: July 1, 2019
DO/Disinfection: Complete Contraction: March 1, 2020
DO/Disinfection: Compliance: April 1, 2020
Copper: Progress Report: May 1, 2020
Copper: Progress Report: May 1, 2021
Copper: Compliance: October 1, 2021
e Street Maintenance Building — Develop Financing Plan
e Council Adoption of Financial Policies
e Learn more about and provide information on the Community Endowment Fund

0O 0O O O O O O o o o o o0 o0 o







112 E. 5th Street Carroll, lowa 51401-2799 (712) 792-1000 FAX: (712) 792-0139

-~ MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
FROM: Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager é(,t&’?f U-}
DATE: December 14, 2017

SUBJECT: RFP for Municipal Labor Attorney Services

Over the past few weeks the City of Carroll has received notice of the pending retirement of
our labor counsel Jim Gilliam of Long & Gilliam and our bond counsel Bill Noth of Ahlers &
Cooney. Mr. Gilliam plans to retire during the first quarter of 2018 and Mr. Noth at the end of

2017.

Recently Bill Noth has been transferring part of his work load to other individuals in his firm
and staff has had a number of interactions with Kristin Billingsley Cooper and others at Ahlers
& Cooney. We have been very satisfied their performance and would recommend we retain
Ahlers & Cooney as the City’s bond counsel.

When the City originally retained Jim Gilliam as our labor attorney he was with BrownWinick
in Des Moines. A few years ago Mr. Gilliam left BrownWinick and open a new independent
practice. Due to this, the City will need to find a new Labor Attorney. Attached is a RFP
seeking those services.

Staff recommends that the Council approve the RFP and appoint a working committee that
would review the proposals we receive and recommend a single firm that the Council would
interview at their January 22, 2018 meeting. It is worth noting that we have delayed starting
negotiations with the Teamsters representing the City’s Police Officers until we retain the
services of a new Labor Attorney. I would recommend appointing 2 councilmembers, Laura
Schaefer, Brad Burke, and myself to the committee.

RECOMMENDATION: Mayor and City Council consider a motion approving the attached
RFP for Municipal Labor Attorney Services and appointing members to a committee charged
with reviewing submitted proposals and recommend firm(s) to the Council to be interview at

their January 22, 2018 meeting,






City of Request for Proposals

{[‘6” Municipal Labor Attorney Services
(b

Submittal Deadline: 12:00 noon CDT on Friday, January 5, 2018

The City of Carroll, Iowa, population 10,103, requests letters of interest and qualifications from
qualified law firms to provide labor relation legal services for the City.

City staff consists of approximately 64 full time employees and 90 patt time employees such as
seasonal employees and recreation center employees. The City has two bargaining units with the
first representing police officers (public safety unit) and the second representing public works,
parks and recreation, & library employees (non-public safety unit). Further information about
the City can be found at http://www.cityofcarroll.com.

The firm must have substantial experience in the area of labor relations, including contract
negotiation experience with cities in Iowa. Firms need to demonstrate specialization in the

following areas:

1. Civil Rights/Discrimination Law

2. Public Sector Labor Law/Negotiating/Arbitration/Interpretation of Collective
Bargaining Agreements

3. Workers Compensation

4, Family Medical Leave Act/ADA

5. First Amendment Rights

6. General Employment Law

Specific Response Requirements

All proposals should be submitted in accordance with the instructions detailed below.
Responses should address the following requests for information or questions.

1. Letter of Transmittal

Each proposal should be accompanied by a letter of transmittal which summarizes the key points
of the proposal and which is signed by an authorized officer.

2. Firm Experience and Qualifications

A. Provide an overview of the firm and its qualifications. Include the location of your firm’s
primary office, as well as any other offices in Iowa or other states.

B. Describe your firm’s relevant municipal labor practice for the past five (5) years.

C. Submit evidence of errors and omissions insurance coverage.

D. Submit three (3) references for different municipalities of like size with names and direct
line telephone numbers.






3. Legal Services Team

A. Provide summaries of experience for each individual who would be assigned to represent
the City. Then describe the specific roles that each attorney would be expected to play
with respect to the City and identify the lead or senior attorney.

B. Provide detailed resumes for each of the attorneys summarized above.

4, Conflicts of Interest

Describe any matter (clients, financial relationships, or family relationships) that your firm
believes may create the appearance of a conflict of interest in representing the City and the
manner in which such conflicts described in this paragraph will be resolved.

5. Fee Proposals

It is requested that you provide an hourly fee proposal for lead attorney, associates and staff as
applicable. This fee proposal should clearly delineate reimbursable expenses. This proposal

should also delineate any rate adjustment such as the difference between the typical rate versus
municipal rate. Rate must also include what increment of time is billable. Indicate whether the

firm will hold the fee proposal for one, two, or three years.
6. Evaluation Criteria and Selection Process
The Carroll City Council reserves the right to:

a) Select a proposal in its entirety or some portion(s) thereof;

b) Reject any and all proposals, in whole or in part;

¢) Waive irregularities;

d) Request oral presentations and/or individual interviews from those individuals or firms
determined to be in a competitive range;

e) Make the final selection using criteria judged to be the maximum benefit to the City as a
whole.






7. Proposal Submission

e Proposals, including any/all attachments, cover letter and tabs should not exceed ten (10)
pages in length on 8 72” x 11” paper, single spaced using a minimum font size of 12 pt.

e Proposals shall be scanned as a PDF file and submitted in electronic format via email to
the below email address. Faxed proposals will not be accepted.

e One (1) original hard copy of the proposal to be submitted.

e Electronic proposal must be received by 12:00 noon CDT on Friday, January 5, 2018.

e Proposals are to be submitted to:

Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager
Attn: Municipal Labor Attorney RFP
112 E 5% St
Carroll, TA 51401

mpoggeweaver@cityofcarroll.com
Subject line: Municipal Labor Attorney RFP

Selection Timetable
Selection of the successful firm will be based on proposals submitted and in-person interviews of

a final group of firms as determined by Carroll City Council. A committee will review all
submitted proposals, conduct interviews with one or more firms, and make a recommendation to
the Carroll City Council. It is anticipated that the Carroll City Council will hold in-person
interviews with one or more firms at their January 22, 2018 City Council meeting.

Questions
Questions should be directed to Mike Pogge-Weaver, City Manager at (712) 775-7505 or

mpoggeweaver(@cityofcarroll.com,






